
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Select Board Meeting 
Meeting Packet 
March 4, 2025  











Brittney Franklin <bfranklin@medfield.net>

Fwd: Resignation from Medfield Outreach Advisory Board

Kathy McDonald <kmcdonald@medfield.net> Mon, Feb 24, 2025 at 1:27 PM
To: Brittney Franklin <bfranklin@medfield.net>

fyi 

Kathy McDonald, M.Ed., MSW, LICSW
Director Human Services/Medfield Outreach
Pronouns: she/her/hers (what's this?)

(508) 359-7121 x2 | Medfield Outreach Website

kmcdonald@medfield.net

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Molly F. <mmfrankel@gmail.com>
Date: Sun, Feb 23, 2025 at 7:40 PM
Subject: Resignation from Medfield Outreach Advisory Board
To: Kristine Trierweiler <ktrierweiler@medfield.net>
Cc: Kathy McDonald <kmcdonald@medfield.net>

Dear. Ms. Trierweiler, 

I am writing to formally notify you that I have chosen to resign from the Medfield Outreach Advisory Board.  I informed
Kathy McDonald about my resignation earlier in the week.  

It has been my pleasure and privilege as a Medfield resident to volunteer on the Advisory Board for over 7 years, the last
several of which I served as Board Chair.  The organization does critical work supporting some of our most vulnerable
residents.  Kathy and her staff  are true professionals and deeply committed to the community.  I am confident that
whomever fills my seat on the Board will value  the work and feel valued by the Outreach team. 

Kind regards,
Molly Frankel 
128 Philip St., Medfield  

This email is intended for municipal use only and must comply with the Town of Medfield's policies and state/federal laws.
Under Massachusetts Law, any email created or received by an employee of The Town of  Medfield is considered a public
record.  All email correspondence is subject to the requirements of M.G.L. Chapter 66. This email may contain confidential
and privileged material for the sole use of the intended recipient. Any review or distribution by others is strictly prohibited.
If you are not the intended recipient please contact the sender and delete all copies.

2/28/25, 11:42 AM Town of Medfield Mail - Fwd: Resignation from Medfield Outreach Advisory Board

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=2c9f17abf6&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1824964516530824260&simpl=msg-f:1824964516530824260 1/1

https://uwm.edu/lgbtrc/support/gender-pronouns/
tel:(508)+359-7121+x4
http://town.medfield.net/403/Medfield-Outreach
mailto:kmcdonald@medfield.net
https://www.town.medfield.net/403/Medfield-Outreach
https://www.town.medfield.net/403/Medfield-Outreach
mailto:mmfrankel@gmail.com
mailto:ktrierweiler@medfield.net
mailto:kmcdonald@medfield.net
https://www.google.com/maps/search/128+Philip+St.,+Medfield?entry=gmail&source=g






















 
 

INVITATION FOR BID 
 

MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY  
FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT 

 
 

  
 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
459 MAIN STREET 

MEDFIELD, MA, 02052 
 
 

DECEMBER 18, 2024 
 
 

BLW ENGINEERS, INC. 
311 Great Road 

Post Office Box 1551 
Littleton, MA  01460 

Tel: 978.486.4301 
Fax: 978.428.0067 

bidding@blwengineers.com 
 
 

 

mailto:bidding@blwengineers.com


Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS - 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
TITLE PAGE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PART A - BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT FORMS, AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 

INVITATION TO BID 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

FORM FOR GENERAL BID 

UNIT PRICE FORM 

CERTIFICATE OF TAX COMPLIANCE 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD FAITH 

OSHA COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 

BID BOND FORM         

LABOR AND MATERIALS PAYMENT BOND FORMS 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD AGREEMENT BETWEEN CONTRACTOR AND OWNER 

AIA 201-2017 – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS     

CORI FORM 

SORI FORM 

CLASSIFICATIONS AND MINIMUM WAGE RATES 
 
PART B – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
DIVISION 01 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
01 01 00 – SCOPE OF WORK 
01 10 00 – SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
01 14 00 – WORK RESTRICTIONS 
01 30 00 – SUBMITTALS 
01 31 00 – SUMMARY OF WORK 
01 40 10 – UNIT PRICES 
01 40 20 – ALTERNATES 
01 70 00 – CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 

DIVISION 02 – EXISTING CONDITIONS 

02 41 00 – DEMOLITION 

DIVISION 26 – ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 – ELECTRICAL 



 
 
 

INVITATION FOR BID 
 

MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY  
FIRE ALARM REPLACMENT 

 
 

  
 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
459 MAIN STREET 

MEDFIELD, MA, 02052 
 
 
 

PART A 
 
 
 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT FORMS 
 
 AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
 
 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INVITATION TO BID - 1 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
MEDFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

 
 
1.01 The Town of Medfield, the Awarding Authority, will receive sealed bids for TOWN OF 

MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT, located at 468 Main St, 
Medfield, MA 02052 in accordance with the Contract Documents prepared by BLW Engineers, 
Inc., P.O. Box 1551 - 311 Great Road, Littleton, MA 01460. 

1.02 The estimated cost of the project is:  $90,000. 

1.03 Bidding procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, 
Chapter 149, Section 44A through Section 44I, inclusive, and State Laws, Chapter 30, Section 
39F, G, K, N, O, P, Q, R. 

1.04 Sealed bids for the General Contract will be received at the Town of Medfield, 459 Main Street, 
Second Floor, Medfield, MA, 02052, prior to 11:00 AM on January 15, 2025 after which time 
all bids will be opened and read aloud. 

1.05 Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, or cash, or certified check on, or treasurer’s or 
cashier’s check issued by a responsible bank or trust company, payable to the Town of Medfield 
Massachusetts, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the bid amount. Bid Bonds shall be T-
Listed; Surety company(ies) shall be listed in the U.S. Treasury Department Circular 570, most 
recent edition, as amended. 

1.06 Plans and Specifications will be available on December 18, 2024.  Information can be found on 
the Town’s website Bid Postings • Medfield, MA • CivicEngage.  Interested bidders should email 
Ben Jachowicz bjachowicz@medfield.net if they would like the documents; those requesting 
documents will be added to the plan holders. Addenda will be emailed to all plan holders; 
however, it is bidder’s responsibility to check the website for any addenda before submitting a 
bid. 

1.07 A Pre-Bid Conference shall be held at the Town of Medfield Public Library located at 468 Main 
St, Medfield, MA 02052 on January 8, 2025 at 1:00 PM at which time the job site shall be made 
available for inspection. A representative from the Town of Medfield and BLW Engineers will be 
there to walk you through the site. 

1.08 General Bids must be accompanied by the Form for General Bid, Unit Price Form, Bid Deposit, 
Certificate of Tax Compliance, Certificate of Authority, Certificate of Good Faith and OSHA 
Compliance Certification shall be enclosed in envelopes (outer and inner) in order to guard 
against premature opening of the Bid; both of which shall be sealed and clearly labeled with the 
words: 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY 

FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT 

(Date Submitted) 

*Bidder’s Company Name and Address shall appear on the sealed envelope. 

 

https://town.medfield.net/bids.aspx
mailto:bjachowicz@medfield.net


Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INVITATION TO BID - 2 

1.09 The successful General Bidder will be required to furnish a labor and materials payment bond as set 
forth in the specifications; in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the contract price. Such bond 
shall be of a surety company qualified to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. 

1.10 The Awarding Authority reserves the right to reject any or all bids if it be in the public interest to 
do so.  All bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty days after the day of the Bid opening, 
but the Awarding Authority may, in its sole discretion, release any bid and return any Bid 
Security before that date. 

1.11 Prevailing wages are to be paid on the work of the project in accordance with the Schedules 
issued by the Massachusetts Commissioner of Labor and Industries of which are contained in the 
Contract Documents are made part of the Contract.  Additional copies of the schedule are 
available from the Awarding Authority upon request. 

1.12 No bid shall be withdrawn for a period of thirty (30) days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays 
excluded, after receipt of award, without written consent by the Awarding Authority. 

1.13 Town of Medfield is exempt from sales tax, for which reason, bidders should not include sales tax 
in figuring or in reference to any bid. 

 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
459 MAIN STREET 

MEDFIELD, MA, 02052 
 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INVITATION TO BID - 2 

 
TOWN OF MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY 

FIRE ALARM REPLACEMENT 

(Date Submitted) 

*Bidder’s Company Name and Address shall appear on the sealed envelope. 

 
1.10 The successful General Bidder will be required to furnish a labor and materials payment bond as set 

forth in the specifications; in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the contract price. Such bond 
shall be of a surety company qualified to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. 

1.11 The Awarding Authority reserves the right to reject any or all bids if it be in the public interest to 
do so.  All bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty days after the day of the Bid opening, 
but the Awarding Authority may, in its sole discretion, release any bid and return any Bid 
Security before that date. 

1.12 Prevailing wages are to be paid on the work of the project in accordance with the Schedules 
issued by the Massachusetts Commissioner of Labor and Industries of which are contained in the 
Contract Documents are made part of the Contract.  Additional copies of the schedule are 
available from the Awarding Authority upon request. 

1.13 No bid shall be withdrawn for a period of thirty (30) days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays 
excluded, after receipt of award, without written consent by the Awarding Authority. 

1.14 Town of Medfield is exempt from sales tax, for which reason, bidders should not include sales tax 
in figuring or in reference to any bid. 

 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
459 MAIN STREET 

MEDFIELD, MA, 02052 
 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS - 1 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

 
1.01 PREPARATION OF GENERAL BIDS AND SUB-BIDS  

A. Bidding procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General 
Laws, Chapter 149, Section 44A through Section 44I, inclusive and Chapter 30, Section 
39M as amended.  Said statutes are hereby made a part of these instructions to bidders to 
the same extent as though herein reproduced in full.  In the event of any inconsistency 
between any of the provisions of these Contract Documents and of cited statute, anything 
herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of said statute shall govern. 

B. General Bids must be accompanied by a copy of the Form for General Bid, Unit Price 
Form, Bid Deposit, Certificate of Tax Compliance, Certificate of Authority, Certificate of 
Good Faith and OSHA Compliance Certification. 

1.02 ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS 

A. No interpretation of the meaning of the Contract Documents will be made to any bidder 
orally. Every request for such interpretations shall be in written form and may be emailed 
to: bidding@blwengineers.com and to be given consideration, must be received no later 
than 12:00 PM, six (6) calendar days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids.  Any 
and all such interpretations and any supplemental instructions pertaining to Bidders, will 
be in the form of written Addenda to the Contract Documents which, if issued, will be sent 
by email to all persons on record as having received a complete set of Contract Documents 
(at the respective addresses furnished for such purposes).  Any such Addenda will be 
emailed no later than 48 hours prior to time set for the opening of bids. 

B. Failure of any bidder to receive any such Addenda shall not relieve such bidder from any 
obligation under his bid as submitted.  All addenda so issued shall become part of the 
Contract Documents.  At the same time of the opening of the bids, each bidder will be 
presumed to have inspected the site and to have read and to be thoroughly familiar with 
the Contract Documents (including all Addenda).  The failure or omission of any bidder 
to examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve any bidder from 
any obligation in respect to his bid. 

1.03 FORM AND AMOUNT OF BID DEPOSITS 

A. Every general bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, or cash, or certified check, or a 
treasurer’s or cashier’s check issued by a responsible bank or trust company, payable to 
Town of Medfield, in the amount of five (5%) of the bid amount.  Bid Bonds shall be T-
Listed; Surety company(ies) shall be listed in the U.S. Treasury Department Circular 570, 
most recent edition, as amended. 

B. The return of such bid deposits will be in accordance with the applicable Massachusetts 
General Laws. 

1.04 REQUIREMENTS FOR FOREIGN CORPORATIONS 

A. The attention of all bidders is called to the provisions of General Laws, Chapter 30, 
Section 39L, added by Chapter 446 of the Acts of 1963 which provided that the 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS - 2 

Awarding Authority may not enter into a Contract for construction work a foreign 
corporation which has not complied with the requirements of Section 3 and 5 of Chapter 
181 of the General Laws.  The term “foreign corporation” means a corporation not 
incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

1.05 BID MODIFICATIONS 

A. No modification of any bid will be considered by the Awarding Authority, unless same is 
in writing, sealed, and received by the Awarding Authority prior to the times respectively 
established herein for the receipt of General Bids and Sub-Bids. 

1.06 WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS 

A. A bid may be withdrawn by written or telegraphic request subsequently confirmed in 
writing, provided that such request is received prior to times respectively established 
herein for the receipt of General Bids.  The Awarding Authority will not be responsible, 
however, for the timely receipt of any request for withdrawal in ample time for delivery 
before the bid opening hour. 

1.07 RIGHT TO REJECT BIDS RECEIVED 

A. The Awarding Authority reserves the right to reject any or all general bids if it be in the 
public interest so to do.  All bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty days after 
the day of the Bid opening, but the Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and 
return Bid security before that date. 

1.08 INSPECTION OF EXISTING BUILDING 

A. All bidders may inspect the existing building and to familiarize themselves with 
conditions as they exist, prior to submitting their bids.   

B. A Pre-Bid Conference shall be held at the Town of Medfield Public Library located at 
468 Main St, Medfield, MA 02052 on January 8, 2025 at 1:00 PM at which time the job 
site shall be made available for inspection. A representative from the Town of Medfield 
and BLW Engineers will be there to walk you through the site 

1.09 METHOD OF AWARD 

A. The Contract will be awarded to the lowest responsible and eligible general bidder on the 
basis of the proposed Contract Price. 

1.10 EXECUTION OF GENERAL CONTRACT AND SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL 
PERFORMANCE 

A. The general bidder who is selected as General Contractor shall execute a contract within 
ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays excluded, after presentation thereof 
by the Awarding Authority, in accordance with the general bid; and furnish with the 
executed Contract, a Labor and Materials Payment Bond, which shall be in the sum of 
fifty percent (50%) of the Contract Price, the premiums for which are to be paid by the 
General Contractor and are included in the Contract Price. Such bond shall be of a surety 
company qualified to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. If 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS - 3 

the General Contractor is a partnership, the bond shall be signed in the correct corporate 
name by duly authorized officer, agent, or attorney-in-fact. The executed bond shall be 
accompanied by (a) appropriate acknowledgment of the respective parties; (b) 
appropriate certified copy of power-of-attorney or other certifications of authority where 
bond is executed by an agent, officer or representative of the General Contractor or 
Surety; (c) a duly certified extract from the by-laws or resolutions of the Surety under 
which power-of-attorney or other certificate of authority of its agent, officer, or 
representative was issued; and (d) a duly certified copy of the latest published financial 
statement of assets and liabilities of the Surety.  Certificates of insurance, required under 
the Contract Documents, shall be submitted with bonds. 

1.11 SALES TAX EXEMPTION 

A. All materials and items which will be incorporated into the project, and which will 
become the property of the Owner upon completion of said project, will be exempt from 
the Massachusetts Sales Tax.  The General Contractor shall obtain from the Owner the 
Sales Tax exemption number, applicable for the project, and shall include said number 
when ordering materials for the project. 

1.12 POST-BID CONFERENCE 

A. A post-bid conference will be held prior to the execution of the General Contract, with 
the successful General Bidder to discuss phasing and other operations of the Contract.  
The date of such conference will be established by the Awarding Authority. 

1.13 BUILDING PERMIT 

A. The successful bidder shall be responsible for obtaining any permits required. The cost of 
such permits shall be waived by the Town. 

1.14 COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 

A. The Contractor shall commence work upon receipt of Notice to Proceed from the Owner.  
Contractor shall bring each phase of the work required under the contract to final 
completion, as defined in the general conditions, no later than that which is specified in 
Division 01, Section 01 31 00, of these specifications. 

 
 
 

END OF SECTION 































 
 
 
 
 
 

INVITATION FOR BID 
 

MEDFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY  
FIRE ALARM REPLACMENT 

 
 

  
 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
459 MAIN STREET 

MEDFIELD, MA, 02052 
  

 
PART B 

 
 
 SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 00 00 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

1.02 SPECIFICATION ARRANGEMENT 

A. Titles to and arrangements of sections and paragraphs in these specifications are used 
merely for convenience and shall not be taken as a correct or complete segregation of the 
several categories of materials, equipment and labor, nor as an attempt to outline or 
define jurisdictional procedures. 

1.03 INTENT 

A. The entire work provided for in these technical specifications and on the Drawings shall 
be constructed and finished in every respect in a good workmanlike and substantial 
manner.  All parts necessary for the proper and complete execution of the work whether 
the same may have been specifically mentioned or not, or indicated in a manner 
corresponding with the rest of the work shall be provided as if the same were particularly 
described and specifically provided for herein.  It is not intended that the Drawings shall 
show every detailed piece of material or equipment, but such parts and pieces as may be 
in accordance with the best practices and regulatory requirements, even though not 
shown, shall be furnished and installed.  All materials and equipment shall be new, unless 
specifically stated otherwise in these Contract Documents. 

1.04 SCOPE 

A. The work required by these specifications shall include furnishing all labor, skill, 
supervision, tools, construction plant, equipment and materials and performing all 
operations necessary for the properly completed contract work as shown on the 
Drawings, as mentioned in these specifications, and as evidently required, to the 
complete satisfaction of the Engineer.  

1.05 ORDER OF AND COMPLETION OF WORK 

A. Upon the award of the contract, the Contractor shall commence work immediately, carry 
it on with all reasonable and proper activity and dispatch, give all notices, take out all 
permits and pay all charge, fees and rates therefore, and bring the work to entire 
completion within the period of time specified in the contract.  “Entire Completion” as 
herein used, shall be construed as meaning the completion of all work as called for by 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 - 2 

these specifications and the contract executed in accordance herewith and the date when 
such completion takes place will be decided by the Engineer. 

1.06 PROTECTION - IN GENERAL 

A. The Contractor is to cover and protect his work and materials from all damage during the 
process of the work and deliver the whole in a clean perfect condition. 

1.07 CONSTRUCTION RISKS 

A. The Contractor will understand that the materials, work in place and equipment, are 
entirely at his risk, including loss by theft or fire during the construction period, and he 
will be held responsible and liable for its safety. 

1.08 SANITARY ACCOMMODATIONS 

A. The Contractor shall use a designated toilet within the building. 

1.09 UTILITIES 

A. Water and electric power shall be available from existing sources where Contractor’s use 
is not excessive and does not interfere with normal use of the building.  Where existing 
utilities of the facility are not adequate or cannot be used, the Contractor is responsible 
for providing alternative sources, the cost of which is to be included in bid price.  The use 
of the facility's utilities shall be coordinated through the Engineer. 

B. Temporary lighting and other utilities (except for heating the building) shall be provided 
by the Contractor, the cost of which is to be included in the Bid Price. 

C. The Contractor shall provide all wiring, cables, safety devices, switches, etc., necessary 
for the utilities used by the Contractor and remove the same upon completion. 

1.10 RECORD DRAWINGS 

A. The Contractor shall maintain at the job site, at all times, a complete and separate set of 
black line prints of the Drawings on which he shall mark clearly, accurately, and 
promptly as the work progresses, any changes in the work made by change orders or 
other instructions issued by the Engineer.  These drawings shall be used daily to record 
the progress of the work by coloring in the various pipes, equipment and associated 
appurtenances when installed.  This progress shall incorporate both the above stated 
changes together with all other deviations from the design, whether resulting from the job 
conditions encountered in the field or from any other cause.  Principal dimensions of all 
concealed work and valve numbers shall be recorded as applicable. 

B. The marked-up prints shall be used as a guide in determining the progress of work 
installed.  The Engineer will inspect these prints periodically and if found to be 
inaccurate or incomplete, they shall be corrected immediately. 

C. At completion of work these marked-up prints shall be the basis of the preparation of the 
final record drawings.  Each drawing shall be marked “RECORD AS BUILT 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 - 3 

DRAWINGS” and dated when printed.  Two complete and reproducible sets of as-built 
drawings must be submitted before final acceptance of the work.  The cost of preparing 
the record drawings shall be borne by the Contractor. 

1.11 OFFICE 

A. None required. 

1.12 VISITATION TO SITE 

A. All bidders shall, before submitting a bid, visit the site to familiarize themselves with 
existing conditions.  Lack of knowledge of on-site conditions shall not be cause for 
changes to the contract values. 

1.13 DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIALS 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the removal of all waste material and equipment 
from the site. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the removal of all hazardous materials and 
improperly licensed disposal sites, disposal and transportation permits. 

1.14 BUILDING SECURITY 

A. The Owner will provide security for the building; however, it shall be the responsibility 
of the Contractor to secure all exit doors in the area where work is to be performed, 
coordinating same with the facilities staff or an assigned representative of the Owner.  
The Owner will not provide security or be responsible for the Contractor’s property, 
fixtures, fittings, tools, equipment, etc. 

1.15 ACCESS TO BUILDING 

A. The building will be opened during regular working hours.  Exceptions to this clause may 
be made by mutual agreement between the Owner and the Contractor in the initial phase 
of the project.  The cost of custodial overtime for work beyond the building’s regular 
working hours will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

1.16 PUBLIC PROTECTION 

A. While the work is in progress, erect safe barricades to effectively protect persons from 
injury. 

B. Protect all ground areas where stationary equipment is placed and protect wall areas from 
hoisting or material conveyers. 

C. Power-brooming may create a dust problem in finished areas.  The Contractor will be 
responsible for spreading drop cloths or plastic over furniture.  Clean up of these areas so 
affected will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 - 4 

D. During the demolition and boiler rigging work, plywood barriers shall be installed at all 
corridors leading to the loading dock. 

1.17 CUTTING AND PATCHING 

A. General Requirements: 

1. All of the contract documents including General and Supplementary Conditions 
and Division 01 General Requirements, apply to the work of this Section. 

B. Work Included: 

1. The intent of this Section is to describe, in general, procedures for performance 
of minor alterations, minor removals, and cutting and patching including: 

a. All necessary cutting, coring, drilling, grouting, and patching to fit 
together the several parts of the work including repairs in kind of 
disturbed existing surfaces. 

b. Where conflicts exist between the requirements specified herein and 
those of the Technical Trade Sections, those of the Trade Sections shall 
prevail. 

c. The Contractor shall be responsible for all his cutting, coring, drilling, 
grouting, fitting and patching of the work that may be required to make 
its several parts come together properly and fit, as shown upon, or 
reasonably implied by, Drawings and Specifications for completed 
structure, and he shall make good after them as Engineer may direct. 

d. Expense caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by party 
responsible therefore. 

C. Cutting and Patching Operations: 

1. Patch and refinish to match adjacent work in quality and appearance at locations 
where installed work has been installed and requires reworking to accommodate 
other work, or has been damaged. 

2. Patch and match using skilled mechanics.  The quality of patched or extended 
work shall be not less than that specified for new work. 

3. Patch or replace any portion of a finished surface which is found to be damaged, 
lifted, discolored, or shows other imperfections, with matching material. 

a. Provide adequate support or substrate prior to patching the finish. 

b. Refinish patched portions of painted or coated surfaces in a manner to 
produce uniform color and texture over entire surface. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

01 00 00 - 5 

c. When surface finish cannot be matched, refinish the entire surface to the 
nearest intersections. 

4. Make the transition as smooth and workmanlike as possible.  Patched work shall 
match adjacent work in texture and appearance so that the patch or transition is 
invisible to the naked eye at a distance of five feet. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

01 01 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 01 00 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby 
made a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 LOCATION OF WORK 

A. The work of this Contract shall be performed at the Town of Medfield Public Library, 
located at 468 Main St, Medfield, MA 02052. 

1.03 GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK 

A. The work to be done under this contract consists of the following: 

1. Contractor shall visit the site prior to commencement of work to coordinate work 
with Awarding Authority’s Designated Representative. 

2. Electrical work shall include: 

a. Complete replacement of the existing fire alarm system with new as 
detailed on the drawings.  

b. Removal of existing system once new system has been fully constructed.  

c. At no time shall the building be without a fire alarm system. 

d. Submit a NFPA 241 temp construction plan to the AHJ and engineer for 
approval. 

e. Tie in new fire alarm system to the fire department and 24 hour 
monitored location 

3. Contractor shall final clean the electrical rooms and the switchboard.  

4. All work shall be in strict conformance with all applicable code requirements. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

01 01 00 - 2 

B. The General Contractor shall be the electrical contractor, and they shall furnish and do 
everything, except as otherwise provided by specific notations herein or on the drawings, 
necessary to complete the work in accordance with the Plans and Project Manual.  He 
shall furnish all labor, materials, supplies, tools, machinery, implements, light, power, 
transportation, and other facilities required, and do all work necessary for the complete 
execution and completion of the Contract, except that work or materials specifically 
stated to be done or furnished by others. 

C. All work and materials furnished and installed shall be of the best quality and 
workmanship, and to the satisfaction of the Engineer.  There shall be no defect in the 
work or the operation thereof due to inferior materials or the workman like placing of any 
part.  The work under this contract shall be performed at such times as may be necessary 
to facilitate the orderly progress of the work.  It is the intention of these Specifications 
and Plans to cover all work necessary and incidental to the completion of this project, 
including all trades, as shown on the drawings or specified. 

D. Contractor shall do all necessary cutting and patching of structural and finish work as 
necessary to provide the finished results shown on the Contract Drawings and as herein 
specified. 

1.04 PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING 

A. A Schedule of Values for the Project shall include a complete breakdown of the costs of 
the various trades with further breakdown of each trade as required by the Engineer.  This 
Schedule of Values shall be submitted to and approved by the Engineer prior to the 
submission by the Contractor for the first Application for Payment and shall be used for 
all subsequent applications. 

1.05 LIST OF DRAWINGS 

TS  Title Sheet 
FA-001         Legend, Riser Diagram, and Details 
FAD-100 Fire Alarm Demolition – All Floors 
FA-100  Fire Alarm Proposed – All Floors 
 
 

 
   

END OF SECTION 
 
 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 10 00 
 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby made 
a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 RESPONSIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE 

A. All requirements set forth under this Section are directed to the General Contractor. 

B. Be responsible for arranging for facilities as specified herein and as required for proper and 
expeditious prosecution of the work.  Pay costs for such general services and temporary 
facilities, except as otherwise specified, until final acceptance of the work, and remove 
same at completion of work. 

C. Comply with applicable OSHA, state, and municipal regulations and requirements for 
services and facilities required under this section, and in performance of all requirements 
of this Contract. 

1.03 COORDINATION OF THE WORK 

A. The Contractor shall coordinate all work with all adjacent work and shall cooperate with 
all other trades so as to facilitate general progress of the work.  Each trade shall afford all 
other trades every reasonable opportunity for the installation of their respective work and 
for the storage of their materials and equipment.  The Contractor shall be responsible for 
coordination. 

B. The Contractor shall assume responsibility for the correctness and adequacy of his work.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for and pay for all damages done by his work or his 
workmen. 

C. The Contractor shall cooperate with, and provide access and working area to other Owner’s 
contractors for the performance of specific work assigned to them. 

1.04 PROJECT MEETINGS 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 2 

A. The Contractor will be required to meet with the Owner, Engineer and the Owner’s 
representatives, at the site of the work, at regular intervals during the course of the contract 
for purposes of progress review, coordination of shop schedules, sample submittals, and 
any other items of work requiring such coordination. 

1.05 FACILITY IN USE 

A. The facility will be in use by the Owner for the duration of the contract.  The Contractor 
shall coordinate all deliveries, work, and shipments so as the routine operation of the facility 
shall suffer the least disruption for the shortest time, as well as extend full cooperation to 
the Owner in all matters involving the use of facilities.  At no time shall the Contractor cause 
or allow to be caused conditions which may cause risk or hazard to occupants of the building 
outside the work area or conditions that might impair safe use of the facility. 

B. The Contractor shall prearrange with the Owner as to when services can be shut down and 
the length of shutdown periods. 

C. The use of the facility's electricity, water, or like utilities by the Contractor shall be 
thoroughly coordinated with the Owner. 

D. The library opens each day at 10:00. However, access to the library will be allowed at either 
7:00AM Monday through Friday as coordinated with the owner.  

1.06 CONTINUOUS WORK 

A. The Contractor, without regard to contract time allowed, shall carry out work on a 
continuous basis, unless work is ahead of schedule and written notice is given to Owner at 
least 24 hours before planned interruption.  Owner reserves the right to assess penalties for 
failure to perform in said fashion that stem from direct costs to the Owner associated with 
this project, such as consultants’ fees, and to charge these against monies due the Contractor 
for performing the work under this contract. 

1.07 EXISTING BUILDING CONDITIONS 

A. Before ordering any materials or doing any work, verify all measurements and existing 
building conditions and be responsible for the correctness of same.  No extra charge or 
compensation will be allowed on account of difference between actual dimensions and the 
measurements indicated on the Drawings; any difference which may be found shall be 
submitted to the Engineer in writing for consideration before proceeding with the work. 

1.08 PROTECTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS 

A. Take all proper precautions to protect the Owner and adjoining property from injury and 
unnecessary interference; and replace or put in good condition any existing items which 
are damaged or injured in carrying out the work, unless designated to permanently be 
removed or demolished. 

B. Keep all access drives and walks clear of debris during building operations.  Repair streets, 
drives, curbs, sidewalks, poles, and the like, where disturbed by building operation and 
leave them in as good condition after completion of the work as before operations started. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 3 

1.09 NOTIFICATION, PERMITS 

A. It is the specific responsibility of the Contractor and Subcontractors to make, in proper and 
timely fashion, all necessary notifications to relevant federal, state, and local governing 
bodies and to obtain and comply with the provisions of all permits or applications required 
by the work specified, as well as to make all required submittals required under those 
auspices.  The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner from, and pay for all claims resulting 
from failure to adhere to these premises. 

B. Care of Work 

1. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property 
that occur as a result of his fault or negligence in connection with the prosecution 
of the work and shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of all work 
performed until completion and final acceptance, whether or not the same has been 
covered in whole or in part by payments made by the OWNER to the 
CONTRACTOR. 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall safely secure the worksite, to include materials and 
equipment, every day, including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  The site shall 
be secured and protected in such a manner that is acceptable to the OWNER. 

3. The CONTRACTOR shall avoid damaging, the structure or any other property, 
public or private, (except that which is to be replaced or removed) either on or 
adjacent to the site.  He shall repair, at his own expense and in a manner satisfactory 
to the OWNER, or adjacent property owner, any damage thereto caused by his 
operations. 

4. The CONTRACTOR shall shore, brace, underpin, secure, and protect as may be 
necessary all parts of structures on the project site, or which are adjacent to or in the 
vicinity of the site, and which may be in any way affected by his operations.  Proper 
barriers shall protect and secure the building.  The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify 
and save harmless the OWNER from liability for any injury or damage to said 
structures and their premises or to persons due to his operations. 

5. Throughout the progress of work, do not interfere with use of or access to adjacent 
buildings or property. 

6. Maintain accessibility from street at all times to any fire hydrants within 
construction area. 

7. Provide for safe pedestrian travel adjacent to buildings or property. 

8. In an emergency affecting health or safety the CONTRACTOR shall take 
immediate measures to minimize or reduce the hazard, contact local public safety 
officials, OSHA (when appropriate) and the OWNER. 

1.10 TESTS AND INSPECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 4 

A. Make, or have made, such tests and inspections on workmanship and materials as may be 
required by the building code, state or municipal laws, or as called for under the various 
sections of this Specification. 

B. Bear all expense to such tests and inspections, unless otherwise specified under the various 
sections of the Specifications and furnish all labor, tools, instruments, water, temporary 
power and light, construction, and equipment necessary for these tests and inspection.  
Furnish records of all tests and inspections to the Engineer.  Remove all temporary work, 
materials, and equipment upon completion of tests and inspections. 

C. Where, the various sections of the Specifications, inspections and testing of materials, 
processes, and the like is called for, the selection of bureaus, laboratories, and/or agencies 
for such inspection and testing shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer. 

D. Should any material or work be found, after testing or inspections, to be defective or 
inferior, remove and replace such material and/or work with new sound materials and/or 
work as approved by the Engineer, and bear all costs thereof. 

1.11 FIRE PROTECTION AND PREVENTION 

A. Comply with the following minimum requirements for fire prevention: 

1. Provide sufficient quantity of carbon dioxide fire extinguishers in all areas of work. 

2. Do not permit an accumulation of inflammable rubbish to stay in the building 
overnight. 

3. Store no more than one gallon, in an approved safety can or sealed container, of 
any volatile inflammable liquid in any portion of the building. 

4. Keep all used paint rags in a can with sufficient water to cover. 

5. Make arrangements for periodic inspection by local fire protection authorities and 
insurance underwriters’ inspections.  Cooperate with said authorities to facilitate 
proper inspection of the premises.  Comply with all applicable laws and ordinances 
and with the Owner’s fire prevention requirements. 

6. Ensure that tarpaulins that may be used during construction of work are made of 
material which is resistant to fire, water, and weather, are U.L. approved, and 
comply with FS-CCC-D-746. 

1.12 ACCIDENT PREVENTION 

A. Comply with all federal, state and municipal recommendations and requirements for safety, 
and accident prevention, and those of the Associated General Contractors of America, and 
the American Standards Association Standard A10.2.  Ensure that the field superintendent 
conducts regular, frequent inspections of the site for compliance with safety regulations. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 5 

B. Neither the Owner nor the Engineer shall be responsible for providing a safe working place 
for the Contractor, contractors, or their employees, or any individual responsible to them 
for the work. 

1.13 WELDING AND CUTTING 

A. Where electric or gas welding or cutting work is done above or within ten (10) feet of 
combustible material or above space that may be occupied by persons, use interposed 
shields of incombustible material to protect against fire damage or injury due to sparks and 
hot metal. 

B. Place tank supplying gases for gas welding or cutting at no greater distance from the work 
than is necessary for safety, securely fastened and maintained in an upright position where 
practicable.  Such tanks, when stored for use, shall be remote from any combustible 
material and free from exposure to the rays of the sun or high temperatures. 

C. Maintain suitable fire extinguishing equipment near all welding and cutting operations.  
When operations cease for the noon hour or at the end of the day, thoroughly wet down the 
surroundings adjacent to welding and cutting operations. 

D. Station a workman equipped with suitable fire extinguishing equipment near welding and 
cutting operations to see that sparks do not lodge in floor cracks or pass through floor or 
wall openings or lodge in any combustible material.  Keep the workman at the source of 
work which offers special hazards for thirty (30) minutes after the job is completed to make 
sure that smoldering fires have not been started. 

E. Place a qualified electrician in charge of installing and repairing electric or arc welding 
equipment. 

F. All welding and cuttings shall be performed by certified welders. 

G. Contractor shall be responsible for all costs associated with fire details required by the 
Local Fire Department during welding and cutting operations. 

1.14 OVERLOADING 

A. Do not permit materials and fabricated work to be stacked on, or be transported over, floor 
and roof construction that would stress any of said construction beyond the designed live 
loads.  Any materials placed on the roof shall be placed on pads to prevent roof membrane 
damage, as well as distribute weight to avoid insulation compression. 

1.15 STORAGE 

A. Limited storage space will be provided by the Owner inside the facility.  Storage areas 
outside of the building will be coordinated with the Owner.  Contractor will supply any 
additional temporary storage as needed.  All materials and equipment are to be kept in 
orderly fashion in designated areas, free and clear of halls and doorways, and in 
conformance with all regulations, codes, and in consideration of building usage.  Contractor 
shall leave waste dumpster in specified location at specified times, and shall secure it at all 
times. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 6 

1.16 RUBBISH REMOVAL 

A. Ensure that each workman engaged upon the work bears his full responsibility for cleaning 
up during and immediately upon completion of his work, and removes all rubbish, waste, 
tools, equipment, and appurtenances caused by and used in the execution of his work, but 
this shall in no way be construed to relieve the Contractor of his primary responsibility for 
maintaining the building and site clean and free of debris, leaving all work in a clean and 
proper condition satisfactory to the Engineer and/or Owner. 

B. Do not permit rubbish to be thrown from the windows or roof of the building. 

C. Immediately after unpacking, all packing materials, case lumber, excelsior, wrapping or 
other rubbish, flammable or otherwise, shall be collected and removed from the building 
and premises. 

1.17 BLASTING 

A. No blasting will be permitted. 

1.18 WORK AREAS, STORAGE, ACCESS, AND PARKING 

A. The Contractor’s work areas shall be as designated on the Drawings, and shall be strictly 
adhered to.  Access to the existing building shall be kept free of all obstructions at all times.  
Assume full responsibility for trespass on and/or damage to other property by a person 
employed on the project.  Exterior doors may not be propped open to enable unimpeded 
entry by unauthorized personnel.  Contractors shall use the buzzer to gain entry into the 
locked building. 

B. Storage trailer shall be provided by the Contractor for storage of materials on site.  Trailer 
location shall be coordinated with Owner.  Storage of materials beyond the designated area 
will not be permitted.  Prior to the start of the school year, the storage trailer shall be 
removed and any remaining materials shall be reduced and stored in a designated area 
within the building. 

C. Vehicular access to the site, and parking for employees’ vehicles shall be restricted only to 
the specific areas designated by the Owner. 

1.19 TEMPORARY SCAFFOLDING AND CONVEYANCES 

A. Furnish, install, maintain, remove and pay for all temporary staging and planking, ladders, 
hoisting (including operator), rigging, and safety devices for all trades. 

B. Staging shall be approved design, erected and removed by experienced stage builders and 
shall have all accident prevention devices required by state and local laws.  Staging can be 
an attractive nuisance.  At the end of each workday, lock and secure the exterior staging to 
prevent unauthorized use by others. 

C. Permit no materials to be passed through the finished openings of exterior walls, without 
first providing protection to the opening thereof of a type as approved by the Engineer.  Be 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 7 

responsible, and bear all costs, for repairs and/or replacement of damaged work caused 
thereby. 

1.20 TEMPORARY PROTECTION 

A. Furnish, erect, and maintain for the duration of the work period, temporary fire-retardant, 
dustproof coverings as required to prevent the spread of dust beyond the immediate area 
where work is being performed. 

1.21 COPYRIGHTS AND PATENTS 

A. The Contractor is responsible to pay all licensing fees, royalties, and other costs necessary 
for the use of any copyrighted or patented product, design, invention or process in the 
performance of the job specified in these Contract Specifications.  The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for costs, damages, or losses resulting from any infringement of these 
patent rights or copyrights.  The Contractor shall hold the Owner and the Owner's 
Representative harmless from any costs, damages, and losses resulting from any 
infringement of these patent rights or copyrights.  If the Contract Specifications request the 
use of any product, design, invention, or process that requires a licensing fee or royalty fee 
for use in the performance of the job, the Contractor shall be responsible for the fee or 
royalty fee and shall disclose the existence of such rights. 

1.22 ADVERTISING MATTER 

A. Signs or advertisements will not be allowed on building enclosure or premises, unless 
written approval has been obtained from the Owner. 

B. Advertising matter shall not appear on equipment, unless so specified. However, 
nameplates of a nominal size and inconspicuous nature will be permitted. 

1.23 MUNICIPAL POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENT SERVICES 

A. Make all necessary arrangements with the municipal police and fire departments in 
advance of times when regular off-duty, or reserve police officers or firemen will be needed 
for traffic control protection or fire watch, due to the operations performed under this 
Contract.  Pay police officers and firemen at the prevailing wage rates in the municipality 
for such services.  Extend the Workingmen’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance, required under the General Contract to cover police and firemen used 
on the project. 

1.24 UTILITIES 

A. Water, electric power, lighting and other utilities, toilets, and other facilities, shall be 
provided by the Owner from existing sources where Contractor's use is not excessive and 
does not interfere with buildings normal use.  Where existing utilities of the facility are not 
adequate or cannot be used, the Contractor is responsible for providing alternative sources, 
the cost of which is to be included in bid price.  The use of the Facility's utilities shall be 
coordinated through the Owner. 

B. Removal of Debris, Cleaning, Etc. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 8 

1. All rubbish shall be removed from the building daily and legally disposed of offsite 
by the CONTRACTOR, who shall keep the Project Area and public rights-of-way 
reasonably clear at all times.  The CONTRACTOR will be permitted to locate a 
dumpster on site, with prior approval of the owner. 

2. Upon completion of the work, the CONTRACTOR shall remove all temporary 
construction, equipment, trash and debris of all kinds leaving the entire Project Area 
in a neat and orderly condition.  Disposal of demolition and site debris shall be at a 
certified facility that accepts construction debris.  The name and location of disposal 
facilities shall be provided to the Project Engineer prior to the issuance of a 
Demolition permit. 

C. Notices 

1. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the OWNER and the occupant forty-eight (48) 
hours before the start of construction operations. 

D. Final Inspection 

1. When the work is substantially complete, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the 
OWNER or its representative, in writing, that the work will be ready for final 
inspection on a definite date, which shall be stated in such notice.  The notice shall 
bear the signed concurrence of the OWNER and shall be given at a reasonable time 
prior to the date stated for final Inspection. 

2. If the OWNER determines that the work is completed as represented, it will make 
the arrangements necessary to have final inspection commenced on the date stated 
in such notice, or as soon thereafter as is practicable. 

E. Liquidated Damages 

1. The work shall be completed on or before said dates.  In case the work embraced in 
this contract shall not have been completed due to the failure of the Contractor to 
complete the work or any part of the work within the time specified, the Owner shall 
recover as liquidated damages $500.00 per day for every day beyond the contract 
completion dates. 

2. Owner and Contractor recognize that Owner will suffer financial loss if the work is 
not completed on schedule, thus, such liquidated damages for delay reflect an 
agreed upon approximation of loss suffered by Owner because of such delay and do 
not constitute a penalty. 

F. Site Work 

1. Prior to the start of any demolition work, the CONTRACTOR shall obtain all 
permits and give all notifications as required by the specifications and terms and 
conditions of the contract. 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall meet with the OWNER, or his representative, for the 
proper interpretation of these specifications. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 9 

G. Guarantee 

1. All materials and workmanship shall be guaranteed by the contractor and each 
product manufacturer for a period of one (1) year from the date of final completion 
and acceptance by the owner. 

1.25 USE AND OCCUPANCY PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE BY THE OWNER 

A. Prior to the date of completion as stipulated in the Contract, or authorized extension 
thereof, the Contractor agrees to permit selected use and occupancy of the building(s) or 
any portion thereof before final acceptance by the Owner.  The building will be occupied, 
for normal function thereof, during the stipulated construction period. 

B. If the project has not been completed and accepted by the Owner, by the date of completion, 
the Owner at his election may from time to time occupy the building(s) or any portion of 
any building as the work in connection therewith is completed to such a degree as will, in 
the opinion of the Owner, permit the use of the building(s) or other portions of the project 
for the purpose for which they are intended.  If work within the building, with the exception 
of the boiler room, is not completed and accepted prior to the completion date stated in the 
contract, the owner reserves the right to impose liquidated damages.   

C. The Owner will, prior to any such partial occupancy, give notice to the Contractor thereof 
and such occupancy shall be predicated upon the following items: 

1. In the case of partial occupancy prior to the stipulated completed date, the Owner 
shall secure endorsement from the insurance carrier and consent of the surety 
permitting occupancy of the building or use of the project during the remaining 
period of construction. 

2. In the case of partial occupancy after the stipulated completion date, the Contractor 
shall extend all the necessary insurance coverage as stipulated until the date of 
final acceptance of the project is issued by the Owner.  It is further noted that the 
use and occupancy prior to the formal acceptance does not relieve the Contractor 
of his responsibility to maintain the insurance coverage as required under the 
supplementary conditions. 

3. The one-year guarantee period called for in the contract documents shall not 
commence until the date of Substantial Completion of all work under the Contract, 
as determined by the Engineer. 

4. The occupancy of the building or any portion thereof by the Owner shall not 
constitute an acceptance of work not performed in accordance with the contract 
documents or relieve the Contractor of liabilities, to perform any work required by 
the Contract, but not completed at the time of occupancy. 

5. The Contractor shall be relieved of all maintenance costs on the portion of the 
building occupied under this agreement. 

6. The Contractor will not be held responsible for wear and tear or damage resulting 
solely from temporary occupancy. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS  

01 10 00 - 10 

1.26 GLASS BREAKAGE 

A. The contractor shall be responsible for all breakage of glass as a direct or indirect result of 
his work or actions of his workmen, from the time the construction operations commence 
until the project is complete.  Replace all broken glass and deliver the building with all 
glazing intact and clean. 

1.27 DAMAGE TO EXISTING SURFACES 

A. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for any damage to existing surfaces caused by the 
operations of this Contract, and shall correct all such damage to the Owner’s satisfaction, 
at no additional cost to the Contract.  The Owner reserves the right to withhold payment 
for reasonable damage charges in the event that the Contractor if unresponsive, in a timely 
manner, to repair requests. 

1.28 FINAL CLEANING 

A. Before the final inspection, thoroughly clean the entire exterior and interior areas of the 
building where construction work has been performed, the immediate surrounding areas, 
and corridors, stairs, halls, storage areas, temporary offices and toilets, including the 
following: 

1. Remove all construction facilities, debris, and rubbish from the Owner’s property 
and legally dispose of same beyond the site limits. 

2. Sweep, dust, wash, and polish all finished surfaces.  This includes cleaning of the 
work of all finished trades where needed, whether or not cleaning for such trades 
is included in their respective sections. 

3. Leave pipe and duct spaces, chases, and furred spaces thoroughly clean. 

4. Wash and polish all new glass on both sides, such work being performed by a 
window cleaning contractor specializing in such work. 

5. Clean all new and altered ceilings, wall surfaces, floors, window and door frames, 
hardware, metal work, glass, glazing, enameled metals, and the like. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
WORK RESTRICTIONS 

01 14 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 14 00 
 

WORK RESTRICTIONS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Use of site. 

B. Access to Site. 

C. Coordination with occupants. 

D. Worker conduct, appearance and Work Rules. 

1.02 USE OF SITE 

A. Use of, and access to, site will be Subject to special requirements of the Owner, as 
directed. 

1. Prior to beginning the Work of this Contract, the Contractor shall meet with the 
Owner’s Project Manager, and the Engineer to determine procedures regarding 
access and use of the site, locations and access to staging and storage areas, tree 
protection, temporary barriers and fencing, and any special site conditions or 
restrictions regarding the use of the site areas surrounding the construction. 

2. Hours of construction, must be verified with the Owner’s Project Manager.  
Provisions for working hours other than those originally agreed upon, must be 
arranged with the Owner and confirmed 48 hours before the phase of Work 
requiring special work hours begins. 

3. All work shall be conducted between the hours of 6:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. 
Monday through Friday, exclusive of holidays.  

4. Interior work involving cutting, drilling, hammering or other dust and noise 
generating procedures must be verified with the Owner. 

5. Use of Owner’s receiving/shipping areas and loading dock:  Contractor is 
responsible to deliver and receive all materials and equipment.  Contractor is not 
permitted to have supplies or equipment shipped directly to them in care of the 
Owner. 

6. The Owner will supply storage facilities for equipment and furnishings scheduled 
for salvage and reuse, except equipment scheduled for refinishing or repair. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
WORK RESTRICTIONS 

01 14 00 - 2 

7. Security:  Owner access must be permitted at all times in all construction areas, 
for purposes of security. 

B. The Contractor and their personnel are not permitted to use any of the building’s facilities 
or be present, unless by specific invitation, in any areas of the building which are under 
control of, or occupied by the Owner. 

C. Confine operations to areas within Contract limits indicated on the Drawings.  Portions of 
the site and building beyond areas in which construction operations are indicated are not 
to be disturbed. 

1. Use of on-site areas for storage of materials must be prearranged with Owner.  
Schedule deliveries to minimize requirements for storage of materials. 

1.03 ACCESS TO SITE 

A. The Owner intends to occupy parking areas and access roads during construction.  Notify 
the Owner of work which will affect the use of these areas; coordinate work schedule 
with Owner.  The Contractor shall consult with the Owner on the best ways to provide 
access and on changes to access areas as the work progresses. 

B. Keep all public roads and walks, and access drive to facility clear of debris caused by this 
Work during building operations. 

1.04 COORDINATION WITH OCCUPANTS 

A. General: Perform all work in such a manner as to prevent interference with the Owner’s 
functions of the buildings, nor endanger the health, safety and well-being of the facility, 
staff and building’s occupants. 

1. Take all measures to ensure the safety of staff and the general public.  The 
Contractor must take every reasonable precaution and employ all necessary 
measures including extra cleaning, special supervisory personnel, and additional 
temporary barriers and signage to facilitate the clean, quiet, safe, and continual 
operation of the facility. 

2. The work will be done in an occupied building, on an active site, that is 
accessible to the public.  It is imperative that the Contractor, its subcontractors 
and all their personnel treat the building occupants with consideration and 
respect.  No unnecessary noise or disruption of the academic or social activities 
of the building will be permitted. 

B. Interruption of services:  Any major work entailing disruption to heating, lighting, life 
safety system utility connections or other similar major disruption to building functioning 
must be coordinated with the Owner, and temporary services, safety precautions, or 
connections provided.  Do not shut down any service without approval of the Owner’s 
Project Manager. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
WORK RESTRICTIONS 

01 14 00 - 3 

1. Provide both Owner’s Project Manager and Engineer with 48-hour notification 
for any disruption of service; provide notification for connecting, disconnecting, 
turning on or turning off any service which may affect Owner’s operations. 

2. Provide 48-hour notice to local fire department of disruptions in electrical 
services, fire alarm services and emergency power services. 

3. Any action either planned or unplanned, by the Contractor which impairs the 
operation of anyone or the activation of the fire alarm detection and or 
suppression system shall cause notification of the appropriate party.  In case of 
unplanned, accidental, impairment, the Contractor will immediately notify the 
Owner’s Project Manager.  The Contractor should be prepared to provide 
assistance as required to correct the problem. 

1.05 WORKER CONDUCT, APPEARANCE AND WORK RULES 

A. The conduct and appearance of each worker at the job site is of paramount importance.  
The Owner’s Project Manager, acting in behalf of the Owner, reserves the right to require 
any worker to be banished from the Site. 

B. Privacy:  Conduct all work of the Contract with the maximum effort to maintain the 
privacy of the Owner’s operations and staff.  Do not permit the workers to peer into other 
areas of the building visible from the work area. Invasion of privacy is a major infraction 
of the work rules. 

C. General Conduct and Demeanor:  All construction workers shall treat all other workers, 
Owner’s staff and the public with respect and courtesy. 

D. Physical Appearance:  Require each worker to dress appropriately in a clean, neat, and 
professional manner. Workers may not be “shirtless” at anytime. 

E. Radios and Television:  The use of entertainment devices, including personal devices 
with headphones or earphones is strictly prohibited at all times.  Control the volume of 
communication radios and loudspeakers to avoid creating a nuisance. 

F. Smoking:  Smoking is strictly prohibited on building property. 

G. Language:  Foul and rude language is strictly prohibited. 

H. Physical Actions: Running, horseplay, fighting, and other unprofessional conduct is 
prohibited.  Fighting is a major infraction of the work rules. 

I. Stealing:  Stealing of any materials, objects, furnishings, equipment. fixtures, supplies, 
clothing, or other items will not be tolerated and is a major infraction of the work rules. 

J. Sexual Harassment:  All forms of physical and verbal sexual harassment will not be 
tolerated and is a major infraction of the work rules.  Sexual harassment includes, without 
limitation:  touching, whistling, sexually explicit stories, jokes, drawings, photos and 
similar representations, exhibitionism and all other sexually oriented offensive behavior. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
WORK RESTRICTIONS 

01 14 00 - 4 

K. Employees of the contractor, vendors, and any and all workers shall wear identification 
badges at all limes during work on the site.  Badges shall be issued by the Electrical 
Contractor. 

L. Warnings and Dismissal: 

1. For minor infractions of the rules, the Owner’s Project Manager may issue a 
warning.  Only one warning will be allowed per worker.  A second infraction will 
result in immediate dismissal of the worker from the Site. 

2. For major infractions of the rules, the worker shall be dismissed immediately 
without warning and is subject to possible criminal prosecution. 

M. Notification of Workers:  Clearly notify and educate each worker about these Work Rules 
and the requirements for worker conduct and appearance. 

1. Recommendation: The Owner’s Project Manager recommends that the 
Contractor notify each worker of the work rules in writing and obtain a signed 
acknowledgment of the worker’s understanding of the work rules as a condition 
of employment on this project. 

 
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 
 

 
SUMMARY OF WORK 

01 31 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 31 00 
 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

A. The Contractor, as a minimum, shall fulfill the Contract Schedule specified hereinafter. 

B. Provide all necessary manpower, overtime work, materials and equipment, permits, etc., 
to complete the contract schedule.   

C. The building will be available to the Contractor from 6:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  If, in the 
opinion of the Owner’s Project Manager, the Contractor is disruptive to the work or 
safety of the occupants, the Contractor shall perform all work after hours at no additional 
cost to the Owner.  

D. All cutting in occupied areas shall be performed during non-occupied periods. 

E. A legal means of egress shall be maintained during construction at all times. 

F. During fire alarm drills, the Contractor shall immediately clear the area of work and 
provide complete safe access through the work area.  Review this procedure with the 
Local Building Department and Fire Department. 

1.02 SPECIAL PROJECT REQUIREMENTS 

A. Existing Equipment to be Removed:   

1. The Owner’s Project Manager shall designate equipment, materials, etc. 
indicated to be removed which shall remain the property of Owner.  Items to be 
turned over to Owner shall be carefully removed from service and transported by 
the Contractor to a place designated by Owner’s Project Manager. 

B. Custodial Costs:   

1. If the Owner requires that a member of facilities staff be present during the 
course of any construction work within the building, the Contractor would be 
responsible for additional custodial costs for periods not covered during the 
normal custodial hours (after hours, holidays, weekends) as defined by the 
Owner’s Project Manager.  The cost of custodial after-hours work is $50.00/hr. 

C. Cleaning:   



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 
 

 
SUMMARY OF WORK 

01 31 00 - 2 

1. Prior to the commencement of work within the building, the contractor shall 
carefully relocate stored items within a storage room designated by Owner’s 
Project Manager within the building.  Contractor shall pay for the replacement of 
any items damaged during the course of the relocation work. 

2. Contractor shall thoroughly clean, store materials and equipment and test the 
equipment of each work area to ensure that normal operations are not 
compromised. 

D. Fire Watches:   

1. Contractor shall coordinate and pay all associated costs of fire watches required 
by the Local Fire Department. 

1.03 CONTRACT AND PHASING SCHEDULE 

A. Time for Completion 

1. The time limits stated in the contract documents are of the essence of the 
contract. 

2. The contractor shall be allowed to work in designated areas only, designated by 
Owner’s Project Manager, during the day, 6:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  

3. Work shall be commenced on or about February 11, 2025. 

4. Work shall be substantially complete by May 15, 2025. 

5. Work under this contract shall be complete no later than June 1, 2025. 

6. No work shall be done on holidays, Saturdays, or Sundays, other than for 
emergencies, unless written approval is granted by the Owner’s Representative. 

 
END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SUBMITTALS 

01 33 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 33 00 
 

SUBMITTALS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby 
made a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES 

A. Samples: 

1. Samples of sufficient size and quantity shall clearly illustrate: 

a. Functional characteristics of product or material, with integrally related 
parts and attachment devices. 

b. Full range or color samples. 

B. Electrical Contractor’s Responsibilities: 

1. Coordinate each submittal with requirements of contract documents. 

2. The Electrical Contractor’s responsibility for errors and omissions in submittals 
is not relieved by the Engineer’s review and approval of submittals. 

3. Notify the Engineer in writing at time of submission, of deviations in submittals 
from requirements of contract documents or previous submissions. 

4. Work that requires submittals shall not commence unless submittals with 
Engineer’s stamp and initials or signature indicating review and approval. 

5. After Engineer’s review and approval, distribute copies. 

C. Submission Requirements: 

1. Make submittals promptly in accordance with approved schedules, and in such 
sequence as to cause no delay in the work. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SUBMITTALS 

01 33 00 - 2 

2. Submit number of samples specified in each Section of the Specification. 

3. Forward submittals with transmittal letter, in duplicate. 

4. Submittals shall include: 

a. Date and revision dates 

b. Project title and number 

c. The names of: 

1) Engineer 

2) Electrical Contractor 

3) Supplier 

4) Manufacturer 

5) Separate detailer when pertinent 

d. Identification of product or material 

e. Relation to adjacent structure or materials 

f. Field dimensions, clearly identified as such 

g. Specification section number 

h. Applicable standards, such as ASTM number 

i. A blank space, five-inch by four-inch, for designer’s stamp 

j. Identification of deviations from contract documents 

k. Electrical Contractor’s stamp, initialed or signed certifying review and 
approval of submittal. 

D. Re-submission Requirements: 

1. Product Data and Samples:  Submit new data and samples as required from 
previous submittals. 

E. Distribution of Submittals After Review and Approval: 

1. Distribute copies of shop drawings and product data that display the Engineer’s 
stamp to appropriate Contractors. 

2. Distribute one approved copy of shop drawings and product data to the project 
manager. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
SUBMITTALS 

01 33 00 - 3 

3. Distribute samples as directed by the Engineer. 

 
END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

UNIT PRICES 
01 22 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 

SECTION 01 40 00 

UNIT PRICES 

PART  1  - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS  

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The sections of these specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01, “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby made 
a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 SUMMARY 

A. This Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for unit prices. 

1.03 DEFINITIONS 

A. Unit price is an amount incorporated in the Agreement, applicable during the duration of 
the Work as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services added to or deducted 
from the Contract Sum by appropriate modification, if estimated quantities of Work 
required by the Contract Documents are increased or decreased. 

1.04 PROCEDURES 

A. Unit prices include all necessary material, plus cost for delivery, installation, insurance, 
applicable taxes, overhead, and profit. 

1. Unit price amounts are net changes in the Contract Sum for additional work and 
include the Contractor’s and any Subcontractor’s amount for overhead and profit. 

B. Measurement and Payment: Refer to individual Specification Sections for work that 
requires establishment of unit prices. Methods of measurement and payment for unit prices 
are specified in those Sections. 

C. Owner reserves the right to reject Contractor's measurement of work-in-place that involves 
use of established unit prices and to have this work measured, at Owner's expense, by an 
independent surveyor acceptable to Contractor. 

1.05 UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE 

No. Description of Work Unit ADD Price 
1 (1) audio/visual ceiling mounted device EA  
2 (1) audio/visual wall/surface mounted device EA  
3 (1) wall mounted pull station EA  
4 (1) ceiling mounted smoke/heat detector EA  
5 Install 50’-0” of fire alarm cable mounted above accessible ceiling LF  

 
 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

ALTERNATES 
01 40 20 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 40 20 
 

ALTERNATES 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The sections of these specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01, “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby made 
a part of this section of the Specifications. 

C. Each General Bidder shall be held fully responsible for examining the scope of the alternate 
generally defined herein and for recognizing any modifications to his work caused by any 
Alternate, whether or not his particular trade section is mentioned therein. 

D. General Bidders shall enter a single amount in the appropriate space provided in the Form 
for General Bid which total amount shall consist of the amount for all work to be 
performed. 

E. The work to be performed under Alternates shall be in strict accordance with the 
requirements of the Specifications. 

1.02 ALTERNATE NO. 1 – Deduct alternate 

A. Electrical – surface mount conduit will be allowed 

1.03 ALTERNATE NO. 2 – Add alternate 

A. Half of all job hours shall be calculated at “off hours” rates (nights and or weekends). 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 

01 50 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 50 00 
 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby 
made a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 REQUIREMENTS 

A. Hoisting Equipment and Machinery 

B. Staging 

C. Maintain Access 

D. Dust Control 

E. Noise Control 

F. Cleaning and Protection During Construction 

G. Toilet Facilities 

H. Use of Site 

1.03 TEMPORARY POWER 

A. The Electrical Contractor shall utilize existing 120-volt receptacles and panelboards for 
any power requirements. 

B. The Owner shall pay for the cost of electric energy consumed by himself. 

C. The Electrical Contractor shall furnish all extension cords, sockets, motors and 
accessories required for their work. 

1.04 HOISTING EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY 

A. All hoisting equipment and machinery required for the proper and expeditious 
prosecution and progress of the work shall be furnished, installed, operated and 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 

01 50 00 - 2 

maintained in safe condition by the General Contractor.  All costs for hoisting operating 
services shall be borne by the General Contractor. 

1.05 STAGING 

A. All staging required to be over eight feet in height, shall be furnished and erected by the 
general contractor and maintained in safe condition by him. 

1.06 MAINTAIN ACCESS 

A. The Electrical Contractor shall maintain all entrances and exits from the building for the 
duration of the contract as well as access to and around the building for vehicular traffic 
and authorized personnel. 

B. All materials resulting from demolition and removal operations shall be transported to the 
ground into dumpster bodies. 

1.07 DUST CONTROL 

A. The Electrical Contractor shall provide adequate means for the purpose of preventing 
dust caused by construction operations throughout the period of the construction contract. 

B. The committing of nuisances and creating dust on the land and adjacent property shall be 
rigorously prohibited and adequate steps taken to prevent it. 

C. This provision does not supersede any specific requirements for methods of construction 
or applicable general conditions set forth in the Contract Articles with added regard to 
performance obligations of the general contractor. 

1.08 NOISE CONTROL 

A. Develop and maintain a noise-abatement program and enforce strict discipline over all 
personnel to keep noise to a minimum. 

B. Execute construction work by methods and by use of equipment which will reduce excess 
noise. 

1. Equip air compressors with silencers, and power equipment with mufflers. 

2. Manage vehicular traffic and scheduling to reduce noise. 

1.09 CLEANING AND PROTECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION 

A. Unless otherwise specified under the various trade sections of the specifications, the 
Electrical Contractor shall perform clean-up operations during construction as herein 
specified.  Location of any dumpsters, storage trailers, or equipment left overnight shall 
be closely coordinated with and approved by the Owner. 

B. Control accumulation of waste materials and rubbish; periodically dispose of off-site.  
The General Contractor shall bear all costs, including fees resulting from such disposal. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 

01 50 00 - 3 

C. Maintain project in accordance with all local, Commonwealth of Massachusetts and 
Federal Regulatory Requirements. 

D. Store volatile wastes in covered metal containers, and remove from premises. 

E. Prevent accumulation of wastes which create hazardous conditions. 

F. Conduct cleaning and disposal operations to comply with local ordinances and anti-
pollution laws. 

1. Do not burn or bury rubbish and waste materials on site. 

2. Do not dispose of volatile wastes such as mineral spirits, oil, or paint thinner in 
storm or sanitary drains. 

G. All areas of the grounds, walks, bushes, etc., shall be restored to their original condition 
prior to construction and any damage caused by workmen, staging, chemicals, etc., shall 
be repaired by contractor at no cost to the Owner. 

1.10 TOILET FACILITIES 

A. The Contractor shall be allowed to use the existing toilet facilities in the building.  
However, if the Owner determines that the Contractor is not maintaining the facilities, 
then the use of the toilets can be revoked and the cost for temporary facilities shall be 
paid for by the Contractor. 

1.11 USE OF SITE 

A. New construction and alterations work shall be scheduled and performed in a 
workmanlike manner. Light, ventilation, power, vehicle access and legal egress shall be 
maintained in the building at all times. 

B. The work schedule shall be conducted between the hours of 6:00A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 
Monday through Friday, exclusive of holidays.   

C. Use only those areas so designated for construction and personnel parking, storage needs, 
etc. 

D. Arrange and maintain materials in orderly manner with use of walks, drives, roads, and 
entrances unencumbered. 

 

 
END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

01 60 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 60 00 
 

MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby 
made a part of this section of the Specifications. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.01 PRODUCTS 

A. Comply with industry standards except when more restrictive tolerances or specified 
requirements indicate more rigid standards or more precise workmanship. 

B. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality. 

C. Secure products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand 
stresses, vibration, and racking. 

2.02 MANUFACTURING INSTRUCTIONS 

A. When work is specified to comply with manufacturer’s instructions, submit copies as 
specified in Section 01 33 00 - Submittals, and distribute copies to persons involved, and 
maintain one set in field office. 

B. Perform work in accordance with details of instructions and specified requirements. 

2.03 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING 

A. Refer to Contract and General Conditions and Specifications sections for requirements 
pertaining to transportation and handling of materials and equipment. 

B. Transport products by method to avoid product damage; deliver in undamaged condition 
in manufacturer’s unopened containers or packaging, dry. 

C. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to prevent soiling or 
damage. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

01 60 00 - 2 

D. Promptly inspect shipments to assure that products comply with requirements, that 
quantities are correct, and products are undamaged. 

2.04 STORAGE AND PROTECTION 

A. Refer to Contract and General Conditions and Specification section for requirement 
pertaining to transportation and storage and protection of materials and equipment. 

B. Store products in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions, with seals and labels 
intact and legible.  Store sensitive products in weather-tight enclosures; maintain within 
temperature and humidity ranges required by manufacturer’s instructions. 

C. For exterior storage of fabricated products, place on sloped supports above ground.  
Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering; provide 
ventilation to avoid condensation. 

D. Arrange storage to provide access for inspection.  Periodically inspect to assure that 
products are undamaged, and are maintained under required conditions. 

E. No extended storage of materials will be permitted on site.  Delivery of materials shall be 
scheduled in a manner that will limit “on site time” to 30 days or less before installation. 

 
END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 

01 70 00 - 1 

DIVISION 01 
 

SECTION 01 70 00 
 

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 
 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby 
made a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 FINAL CLEANING 

A. Unless otherwise specified under the various sections of the specifications, the Electrical 
Contractor shall perform final cleaning operations as herein specified prior to final 
inspection. 

B. Maintain project site free from accumulations of waste, debris, and rubbish, caused by 
operations.  At completion of work, remove water, materials, rubbish, tools, equipment, 
machinery and surplus materials, and clean all sight-exposed surfaces; leave project clean 
and ready for occupancy. 

C. Cleaning shall include all surfaces, interior and exterior in which the Electrical 
Contractor has performed work and has used as access to areas where work was 
performed whether existing or new. 

D. Refer to sections of the specifications for cleaning of specific products or work. 

E. Use only those materials which will not create hazards to health or property and which 
will not damage surfaces. 

F. Use only those cleaning materials and methods that are recommended by the 
manufacturer or surface material to be cleaned. 

G. Employ experienced workmen, or professional cleaners, for final cleaning operations. 

H. Remove grease, mastic, adhesives, dust, dirt, stains, fingerprints, labels, and other foreign 
materials from sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces. 

I. Repair, patch and touch up marred surfaces to specified finish, to match adjacent 
surfaces. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 

01 70 00 - 2 

J. Prior to final completion, the Electrical Contractor shall conduct an inspection of sight-
exposed interior and exterior surfaces, and all work areas, to verify that the entire work is 
clean. 

1.03 GLASS 

A. The Electrical Contractor shall survey the worksite prior to the start of construction and 
identify all existing broken or cracked glass.  All glass broken during performance of the 
work of this contract shall be replaced at the expense of the General Contractor. 

B. Prior to final completion, or User Agency Use and Occupancy, the Electrical Contractor 
shall conduct an inspection of sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces, and all work 
areas, to verify that the entire work is clean. 

1.04 RECORD DRAWINGS 

A. Record drawings shall consist of all the contract drawings. 

B. The Electrical Contractor shall be required to maintain one set of record drawings, as the 
work relates to their sections of the specifications at the site. 

C. The record drawings shall be stored and maintained in the field apart from other 
documents used for construction.  The record drawings shall be maintained in a clean, dry 
and legible condition and shall not be used for construction purposes. 

D. Record drawings, as submitted by the Electrical Contractor, shall be verified in the field 
by the Engineer.  Verification by the Engineer shall occur during the construction process 
and prior to the related work being completed and covered up. 

E. The record drawing shall be available at all time for inspection by the Engineers.  All 
deficiencies noted shall be promptly corrected. 

F. The following information shall be indicated on the record drawings: 

1. Record all changes, including change orders, in the location, size, number and 
type both horizontally and vertically of all elements of the project that deviate 
from those indicated on all the contract drawings. 

G. The Engineer shall review the drawings and shall verify by letter to Owner that the work 
is accurate.  The Contractor shall arrange to have all changes incorporated on the original 
drawings.  The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer, reproducible drawings on 
AUTOCAD and Adobe Acrobat files with three sets of prints to be used for the final 
inspection of the project.  Inaccuracies in record drawings, as determined by the 
Engineer, may be grounds for postponement of the final inspection until such 
inaccuracies are corrected. 

1.05 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. At least one month prior to the time of turning over this contract to the Owner for Use 
and Occupancy or Final Acceptance, the Electrical Contractor shall secure and deliver to 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 

01 70 00 - 3 

the Owner via the Engineer two complete maintenance manuals, shop drawings, and 
other data. 

1. Catalog sheets, maintenance manuals, and approved shop drawings of all 
equipment, piping and valve tag charts. 

2. Names, address and telephone numbers of repair and service companies for each 
of the major systems installed under this contract. 

1.06 CLOSEOUT REQUIREMENTS AND SUBMITTALS 

A. Final Inspection: 

1. The Electrical Contractor shall submit written certification that: 

a. Project has been inspected for compliance with contract documents and 
has satisfied the Building Department. 

b. Equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of Engineer and 
are operational and satisfactory. 

c. Project is completed, and ready for final inspection. 

2. Building Department Use and Occupancy Permit: 

a. Arrange for a final inspection and secure the signed Certificate of 
Inspection for Use and Occupancy from the Building Department if 
required. 

1.07 GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES 

A. Submit to the Engineer all extended guarantees and warranties that have been specified in 
various, individual sections of the specifications. 

1.08 COMMISSIONING AGENT PENDING ISSUES: 

A. Address and close all of commissioning agent pending issues, if any. 

 
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 1 

DIVISION 02 

SECTION 02 41 00 

DEMOLITION 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby made 
a part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 DESCRIPTION OF WORK  

A. Work Included: 

1. Demolition and removal of existing fire alarm system equipment as required for 
new work.  Refer to the Drawings for additional requirements. 

2. Salvage of existing items to be reused or turned over to the facility. 

3. Removal and legal disposal of demolished materials off site.    Except those items 
specifically designated to be relocated, reused, or turned over to the facility, all 
existing removed materials, items, trash and debris shall become property of the 
Contractor and shall be completely removed from the site and legally disposed of at 
her/his expense. Salvage value belongs to the Contractor. On-site sale of materials 
is not permitted. 

4. Scheduling and sequencing operations without interrupting utilities serving 
occupied areas.  If interruption is required, obtain written permission from the 
utility company and the Building Manager. Schedule interruption when the least 
amount of inconvenience will result. 

B. Related Work: The following items are not included in this Section and will be performed 
under the designated Sections: 

1. Section 26 00 00 - ELECTRICAL WORK: 

a. Disconnecting, and otherwise making inactive existing electrical services in 
areas where demolition and removal work is required.  Electrical tradesmen 
will disconnect, and inactivate such items were required to be removed 
under Section 26 00 00 - ELECTRICAL WORK.  Removal and disposal of 
such materials shall be then done under this Section 02 41 00 - 
DEMOLITION. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 2 

b. Disconnect and reinstallation of electrical equipment temporarily 
interrupted during construction. 

1.03 DEFINITIONS 

A. Remove:  Detach items from existing construction and legally dispose of them off-site, 
unless indicated to be removed and salvaged or removed and reinstalled. 

B. Remove and Salvage:  Detach items from existing construction and deliver them to the User 
Agency ready for reuse, at a location designated by the User Agency.  Protect from weather 
until accepted by User Agency reinstall them where indicated. Protect from weather until 
reinstallation. 

C. Existing to Remain:  Existing items of construction that are not to be removed and that are 
not otherwise indicated to be removed, removed and salvaged, or removed and reinstalled. 

1.04 MATERIALS OWNERSHIP 

A. Historic items, relics, and similar objects including, but not limited to, cornerstones and 
their contents, commemorative plaques, antiques, and other items of interest or value to the 
Town of Medfield that may be encountered during selective demolition remain property of 
the Commonwealth or user Agency as applicable.   Carefully remove each item or object in 
a manner to prevent damage and deliver promptly to a location acceptable to the Property 
Manager. 

1.05 SUBMITTALS 

A. Schedule of Selective Demolition Activities: Indicate the following: 

1. Detailed sequence of selective demolition and removal work, with early and late 
starting and finishing dates for each activity. Ensure User Agency's on-site 
operations are uninterrupted if applicable. 

2. Interruption of utility services. Indicate how long utility services will be interrupted. 

3. Coordination for shutoff, capping, and continuation of utility services. 

4. Locations of means of egress, including for other occupants affected by selective 
demolition operations. 

5. Coordination of User Agency's continuing occupancy of portions of existing 
building and of User Agency's partial occupancy of completed Work. 

6. Means of protection for items to remain and items in path of waste removal from 
building. 

B. Inventory: After selective demolition is complete, submit a list of items that have been 
removed and salvaged, and turned over to the User Agency. 

C. Pre-demolition Videotapes:    Show existing conditions of adjoining construction and site 
improvements, including finish surfaces, that might be misconstrued as damage caused by 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 3 

selective demolition operations. Comply with Division 01.  Submit before Work begins. 

D. Landfill Records:  Provide trip tickets (receipts) indicating receipt and acceptance of 
hazardous wastes by a landfill facility licensed to accept hazardous wastes. 

1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Examination of Existing Conditions: The Contractor shall examine the Contract Drawings 
for demolition and removal requirements and provisions for new work.    Verify all existing 
examine the existing conditions as he finds them and shall inform herself/himself of the 
character, extent and type of demolition and removal work to be performed.  Submit any 
questions regarding the extent and character of the demolition and removal work in the 
manner and within the time period established for receipt of such questions during the 
bidding period. 

B. Demolition Firm Qualifications:  An experienced firm that has specialized in demolition 
work similar in material and extent to that indicated for this Project. 

C. Refrigerant Recovery Technician Qualifications:  Certified by an EPA-approved 
certification program. 

D. Regulatory Requirements:    Comply with governing EPA notification regulations before 
beginning selective demolition.  Comply with hauling and disposal regulations of 
authorities having jurisdiction. 

E. Standards: Comply with ANSI A10.6 and NFPA 241. 

F. Pre-demolition Conference:  Conduct conference at Project site to comply with 
requirements in DIVISION 01 AND Section 02 41 00 - Demolition. Review methods and 
procedures related to selective demolition including, but not limited to, the following: 

1. Inspect and discuss condition of construction to be selectively demolished. 

2. Review structural load limitations of existing structure. 

3. Review and finalize selective demolition schedule and verify availability of 
materials, demolition personnel, equipment, and facilities needed to make progress 
and avoid delays. 

4. Review requirements of work performed by other trades that rely on substrates 
exposed by selective demolition operations. 

5. Review areas where existing construction is to remain and requires protection. 

1.07 WARRANTY 

A. Existing Warranties:  Remove, replace, patch, and repair materials and surfaces cut or 
damaged during selective demolition, by methods and with materials so as not to void 
existing warranties. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (Not Used)  



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 4 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.01 EXAMINATION 

A. Verify that utilities have been disconnected and capped. 

B. Survey existing conditions and correlate with requirements indicated to determine extent of 
selective demolition required 

C. Inventory and record the condition of items to be removed and reinstalled and items to be 
removed and salvaged. 

D. When unanticipated mechanical, electrical, or structural elements that conflict with intended 
function or design are encountered, investigate and measure the nature and extent of 
conflict. Promptly submit a written report to Designer. 

E. Engage a professional engineer registered in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to survey 
condition of building to determine whether removing any element might result in structural 
deficiency or unplanned collapse of any portion of structure or adjacent structures during 
selective demolition operations. 

F. Survey of Existing Conditions:     Record existing conditions by use of preconstruction 
videotapes. 

1. Before selective demolition or removal of existing building elements that will be 
reproduced or duplicated in final Work, make permanent record of measurements, 
materials, and construction details required to make exact reproduction. 

G. Perform surveys as the Work progresses to detect hazards resulting from selective 
demolition activities. 

3.02 UTILITY SERVICES AND MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

A. Service/System Requirements: Locate, identify, disconnect, and seal or cap off indicated 
utility services and mechanical/electrical systems serving areas to be selectively 
demolished. 

1. Arrange to shut off indicated utilities with utility companies and User Agency. 

2. If services/systems are required to be removed, relocated, or abandoned, before 
proceeding with selective demolition provide temporary services/systems that 
bypass area of selective demolition and that maintain continuity of services/systems 
to other parts of building. 

3. Prior to commencing cutting work in existing surfaces, take all precautionary 
measures to assure that mechanical and electrical services to the particular area 
have been made inactive. Only licensed tradesmen of that particular trade shall 
disconnect and cap existing mechanical and electrical items that are to be removed, 
abandoned and/or relocated. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 5 

4. If, during the process of cutting work, existing utility lines are encountered which 
are not indicated on the Drawings, regardless of their condition, immediately report 
such items to the Designer.  Do not proceed with work in such areas until 
instructions are issued by the Designer. Continue work in other areas. 

3.03 PREPARATION 

A. Site Access and Temporary Controls:    Conduct selective demolition and debris-removal 
operations to ensure minimum interference with roads, streets, walks, walkways, and other 
adjacent occupied and used facilities. 

1. Maintain adequate passage to and from all exits at all times.  Before any work is 
done which significantly alters access or egress patterns, consult with the Designer 
and obtain approval of code required egress.   Under no condition block or interfere 
with the free flow of people at legally required exits, or in any way alter the 
required condition of such exits. 

B. Temporary Shoring:  Provide and maintain shoring, bracing, and structural supports as 
required to preserve stability and prevent movement, settlement, or collapse of construction 
and finishes to remain, and to prevent unexpected or uncontrolled movement or collapse of 
construction being demolished. 

1. Strengthen or add new supports when required during progress of selective 
demolition. 

2. Remove temporary shoring, bracing and structural supports when no longer 
required. 

3. Post warning signs and place barricades as applicable during placement and 
removal of temporary shoring. 

C. Conduct demolition operations to prevent injury to people and damage to adjacent buildings 
and facilities to remain. Ensure safe passage of people around demolition area(s). 

1. Erect temporary protection, such as walks, fences, railings, canopies, and covered 
passageways, where required by authorities having jurisdiction.   Provide temporary 
barricades as required to limit access to demolition areas. 

2. Protect existing site improvements, appurtenances, and landscaping to remain. 

D. Drain, purge, or otherwise remove, collect, and dispose of chemicals, gases, explosives, 
acids, flammables, or other dangerous materials before proceeding with demolition 
operations. 

3.04 SELECTIVE DEMOLITION, GENERAL 

A. General:   Demolish and remove existing construction only to the extent required by new 
construction and as indicated. Use methods required to complete the Work within 
limitations of governing regulations and as follows: 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 6 

1. Neatly cut openings and holes plumb, square, and true to dimensions required.   Use 
cutting methods least likely to damage construction to remain or adjoining 
construction. Use hand tools or small power tools designed for sawing or grinding, 
not hammering and chopping, to minimize disturbance of adjacent surfaces.  
Temporarily cover openings to remain. 

2. Cut or drill from the exposed or finished side into concealed surfaces to avoid 
marring existing finished surfaces. 

3. Do not use cutting torches until work area is cleared of flammable materials.    At 
concealed spaces, such as duct and pipe interiors, verify condition and contents of 
hidden space before starting flame-cutting operations.   Maintain fire watch and 
portable fire- suppression devices during and after flame-cutting operations. 

4. Maintain adequate ventilation when using cutting torches. 

5. Remove decayed, vermin-infested, or otherwise dangerous or unsuitable materials 
and promptly dispose of off-site. 

6. Locate selective demolition equipment and remove debris and materials so as not to 
impose excessive loads on supporting walls, floors, or framing. 

7. Dispose of demolished items and materials promptly. Comply with requirements 
in 

B. Section 01 74 19 - CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION WASTE MANAGEMENT.  
Removed and Salvaged Items: 

1. Clean salvaged items. 

2. Pack or crate items after cleaning. Identify contents of containers. 

3. Store items in a secure area until delivery to User Agency. 

4. Transport items to storage area designated by the User Agency. 

5. Protect items from damage during transport and storage. 

C. Removed and Reinstalled Items: 

1. Clean and repair items to functional condition adequate for intended reuse.   Paint 
equipment to match new equipment. 

2. Pack or crate items after cleaning and repairing. Identify contents of containers. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 7 

3. Protect items from damage during transport and storage. 

4. Reinstall items in locations indicated.   Comply with installation requirements for 
new materials and equipment.  Provide connections, supports, and miscellaneous 
materials necessary to make item functional for use indicated. 

D. Existing Items to Remain:  Protect construction indicated to remain against damage and 
soiling during selective demolition.  When permitted by Designer, items may be removed to 
a suitable, protected storage location during selective demolition and cleaned and reinstalled 
in their original locations after selective demolition operations are complete. 

E. Items for Re-use and Preservation of Existing Surfaces to Remain: 

1. Unless special surface preparation is specified under other Specification Sections, 
leave existing surfaces that are to remain in a condition suitable to receive new 
materials and/or finishes. 

3.05 PROTECTION OF PUBLIC AND PROPERTY 

A. Provide all measures required by federal, state and municipal laws, regulations, and 
ordinances for the protection of surrounding property, the public, workmen, and 
Commonwealth’s employees during all demolition and removal operations.  Measures are 
to be taken, but not limited to installation of sidewalks, sheds, barricades, fences, warning 
lights and signs, trash chutes and temporary lighting. 

B. Protect all walks, roads, streets, curbs, pavements, trees and plantings, on and off premises, 
and bear all costs for correcting such damage as directed by the Designer, and to the 
satisfaction of the User Agency. 

C. Demolition shall be performed in such a manner that will ensure the safety of adjacent 
property. Protect adjacent property from damage and protect persons occupying adjacent 
property from injuries which might occur from falling debris or other cause and so as not to 
cause interference with the use of other portions of the building, of adjacent buildings or the 
free access and safe passage to and from the same. 

D. Every precaution shall be taken to protect against movement or settlement of the building, 
of adjacent buildings, structures, sidewalks, roads, streets, curbs and pavements.   Provide 
and place at the Contractor’s own expense, all necessary bracing and shoring in connection 
with demolition and removal work. 

E. Remove portions of structures with care by using tools and methods that will not transfer 
heavy shocks to existing and adjacent building structures, both internal and external of the 
particular work area. 

F. Provide and maintain in proper condition, suitable fire resistive dust barriers around areas 
where interior demolition and removal work is in progress.   Dust barriers shall prevent the 
dust migration to adjacent areas.  Remove dust barriers upon completion of major 
demolition and removal in the particular work area. 

G. Protect unaltered portions of existing construction, including finishes, furnishings and 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
DEMOLITION 

02 41 00 - 8 

equipment 

H. Provide secure weather protection where demolition has removed a portion of the exterior 
envelope. 

3.06 DISCOVERY OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

A. If hazardous materials, such as chemicals, asbestos-containing materials, or other hazardous 
materials are discovered during the course of the work, cease work in affected area only and 
immediately notify the Designer and the Using Agency of such discovery.  Do not proceed 
with work in such areas until instructions are issued by the Designer. Continue work in 
other areas. 

3.07 CUTTING 

A. Perform all cutting of existing surfaces in a manner which will ensure a minimal difference 
between the cut area and new materials when patched.  Use extreme care when cutting 
existing surfaces containing concealed utility lines which are indicated to remain and bear 
full responsibility for repairing or replacement of all such utilities that are accidentally 
damaged. 

B. Provide a flush saw cut edge where pavement, curb and concrete removals abut new 
construction work or existing surfaces to remain undisturbed. 

3.08 DISPOSAL OF DEMOLISHED MATERIALS 

A. Do not allow demolished materials to accumulate on-site. 

B. Remove and transport debris in a manner that will prevent spillage on adjacent surfaces and 
areas. 

C. Remove debris from elevated portions of building by chute, hoist, or other device that will 
convey debris to grade level in a controlled descent. 

D. Burning: Do not burn demolished materials. 

3.09 CLEANING 

A. Clean adjacent structures and improvements of dust, dirt, and debris caused by selective 
demolition operations.  Premises shall be left in a clean condition and ready to accept 
alteration work and new construction. 

 

 

END OF SECTION 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 1 

DIVISION 26 
 

SECTION 26 00 00 
 

ELECTRICAL 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.01 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. The Town of Medfield Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, together with all 
Amendments and Supplements as hereinbefore listed, shall apply and are hereby made a part of 
this Section of the Specifications. 

B. The Sections of these Specifications entitled “Special Conditions”, “Minimum Wage 
Determination”, and Division 01 “General Requirements” shall apply and are hereby made a 
part of this section of the Specifications. 

1.02 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Examine all Project Specifications and Drawings for requirements which affect work of this 
Section whether or not such work is specifically mentioned in this Section. 

B. Coordinate work with that of all other trades affecting or affected by work of this Section. 
Cooperate with such trades to assure the steady progress of all work under Contract. 

C. When open-flame or spark producing tools such as blower torches, welding equipment, etc., are 
required in the process of executing the work, provide, where necessary, fire protective covering 
and maintain a constant non-working fire watch where work is being performed and until 
completed. 

1.03 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

A. Examine Drawings and other Sections of Specifications for requirements that affect work of this 
Section. 

B. Perform work and provide material and equipment as shown on Drawings and as specified or 
indicated in this Section of the Specifications.  Completely coordinate work of this Section and 
provide a complete and fully functional installation.  Drawings and Specifications form 
complimentary requirements; provide work specified and not shown, and work shown and not 
specified as though explicitly required by both.  Although work is not specifically shown or 
specified, provide supplementary or miscellaneous items, appurtenances, devices and materials 
obviously necessary for a sound, secure and complete installation.  Remove all debris caused by 
contractors’ work. 

C. Drawings are diagrammatic and indicate general arrangement of systems and work included in 
Contract.  It is not intended to specify or to show every offset, fitting or component; however, 
Contract Documents require components and materials whether or not indicated or specified as 
necessary to make the installation complete and operational. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 2 

D. Perform work strictly as required by rules, regulations, standards, codes, ordinances, and laws 
of local, state, and federal government, and other authorities that have lawful jurisdiction. 

E. Give notices, file plans, obtain permits and licenses, pay fees and obtain necessary approvals 
from authorities that have jurisdiction. 

F. As work progresses and for duration of Contract, maintain complete and separate set of prints of 
Contract Drawings at job site at all times.  Record work completed and all changes from 
original Contract Drawings clearly and accurately, including work installed as a modification or 
addition to the original design. 

G. Work shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

1. Base Bid: ALL WIRING SHALL BE CONCEALED, NO SURFACE MOUNT 
ALLOWED 

2. Deduct Alt #1: SURFACE MOUNT CONDUIT SHALL BE ALLOWED. 
3. Conduit and raceways. 
4. Wire and cable. 
5. Wiring devices and plates. 
6. Cable supports and boxes. 
7. Junction boxes, pull boxes and cable troughs. 
8. Terminal connecting cabinets. 
9. Fire seal and fire-proof foam. 
10. Sleeving. 
11. Grounding.  
12. All cores required for electrical equipment and conduit shall be provided by the electrical 

contractor. 
13. Staging, scaffolding, ladders, chutes and other construction aids as required for all 

electrical work. 
14. Supervision and approval. 
15. Fire alarm system including devices, control panels, permitting, testing, additional 

batteries, amplifiers, address modules and others to provide a completely operational fire 
alarm system.  Coordinate exact requirements with the fire department. Training sessions 
shall be included as described elsewhere in this Specification. 

16. Testing.   
17. Operating and maintenance instructions and manuals. 
18. Coordination drawings and shop drawings. 
19. Permit fees 

1.04 DEFINITIONS 

A. As used in this Section, the following items are understood to have the following 
meaning: 

1. Contractor, unless otherwise qualified, shall mean the installer of the work 
specified under this Section. 

2. Furnish shall mean purchase and deliver to the project site, complete with every 
necessary appurtenance. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 3 

3. Install shall mean unload at the delivery point at the site and perform all work 
necessary to establish secure mounting and proper operation at the proper 
location in the project. 

4. Provide shall mean "Furnish" and "Install". 
5. Work shall mean all labor, materials, equipment, apparatus, controls, accessories 

and all other items required for a proper and complete installation. 
6. Concealed shall mean hidden from sight in chases, furred-in spaces, shafts, hung 

ceilings, embedded in construction or in a crawl space.  Areas to be concealed as 
part of tenant alterations to the building shall also be considered in this definition. 

7. Exposed shall mean not installed underground or concealed as defined above. 
8. Work by others shall mean work not provided by Electrical Contractor, but work 

furnished and/or installed by other Contractors (performing their respective 
work) as a part of this contract. 

9. Installer shall mean the contractor or an entity engaged by the contractor, either 
as an employee, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor for a performance of a 
particular construction activity, including installation, erection, application and 
similar operations. Installers are required to be experienced in the operations they 
are engaged to perform. 

1.05 CODES, ORDINANCES, AND PERMITS 

A. Installation of systems and equipment provided under this section shall be done in strict 
accordance with Massachusetts Department of Public Safety Codes, Massachusetts 
Department of Environmental Protection, Massachusetts State Building Code and City 
Regulations having jurisdiction. 

B. All work, where applicable, shall conform to NFPA codes and all material shall be U.L. 
approved. 

C. All electrical apparatus furnished under this section shall be approved by the U.L. and shall 
be so labeled or listed where such is applicable.  Where custom-built equipment is specified 
and the U.L. label or listing is not applicable to the completed product, all components used 
in the construction of such equipment shall be labeled or listed by U.L. where such is 
applicable to the component. 

D. Materials, installation of systems and equipment provided under this section shall be done 
in strict accordance with Massachusetts Department of Public Safety Codes, Massachusetts 
Department of Environmental Protection, Massachusetts State Building Code, 780 CMR, 
Massachusetts State Electrical Code, and any other Codes and Regulations having 
jurisdiction. 

E. Unless otherwise specified or indicated, materials, workmanship and equipment 
performance shall conform with the latest governing edition of the following standards, 
codes, specifications, requirements, and regulations, but not limited to: 

1.  All Applicable NFPA Standards 
2.  State and Local Building Codes 
3.  National Electrical Code 
4.  American Society of Testing and Materials 
5.  American National Standards Institute 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 4 

6.  Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. 
7.  Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

F. Give notices, file plans, obtain permits and licenses, pay fees and obtain necessary 
approvals from authorities having jurisdiction.  Deliver certificates of inspection to 
Engineer.  No work shall be covered before examination and approval by Engineer, 
inspectors, and authorities having jurisdiction.  Replace imperfect or condemned work 
conforming to requirements, satisfactory to Engineer, and without extra cost to the Owner.  
If work is covered before due inspection and approval, the installing contractors shall pay 
costs of uncovering and reinstalling the covering, whether it meets contract requirements or 
not.  

1.06 REFERENCES 

A. For products or workmanship specified by association, trade, or federal standards comply 
with requirements of the standard, except when requirements that are more rigid are 
specified or are required by applicable codes. 

B. The date of the standard is that in effect as of the bid date, except when a specific date is 
specified. The organizations below set the standards for electrical codes referred 
throughout this specification. 

1. AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE (ANSI) 
2. AMERICAN SOCIETY OF MECHANICAL ENGINEERS (ASME) 
3. AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TESTING AND MATERIALS (ASTM) 
4. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS (CFR) 
5. FEDERAL SPECIFICATIONS (FS) 
6. INSTITUTE OF ELECTRICAL AND ELECTRONICS ENGINEERS (IEEE) 
7. INSULATED CABLE ENGINEERS ASSOCIATION (ICEA) 
8. NATIONAL ELECTRICAL MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIATION (NEMA) 
9. NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION (NFPA) 
10. RURAL ELECTRIFICATION ADMINISTRATION (REA) 
11. UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES (UL) 

1.07 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

A. Nameplates:  Each major component of equipment shall have the manufacturer's name, 
address, type or style, model or serial number, and catalog number on a plate secured to 
the equipment. 

B. Equipment Guards:  Belts, pulleys, chains, gears, couplings, projecting setscrews, keys, 
and other rotating parts so located that any person may come in close proximity thereto 
shall be completely enclosed or guarded.  High-temperature equipment and piping so 
located as to endanger personnel or create a fire hazard shall be guarded or covered with 
insulation of type specified for service. 

1.08 RECORD DRAWINGS 

A. Refer to DIVISION 01 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS, of the Specifications for record 
drawings and procedures to be provided under this section. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 5 

1.09 SUBMITTALS 

A. Conform to the requirements of Section 01 30 00, Submittals, for schedule and form of 
all submittals.  Coordinate this submittal with submittals for all other finishes. 

B. Material List:  Before purchasing materials for the work, submit to the Engineer a 
complete list showing (1) the materials specified, and (2) the equivalent materials 
proposed for use, including description of product, if the contractor desires to use 
materials other than those specified. 

1. All materials shall be approved by the Owner’s Representative before 
commitment for materials is made.  Intention of using specified materials shall 
not relieve the contractor from submitting the above list. 

C. Product Data:  Submit complete manufacturer's product description and technical 
information including: 

1. Wire and Cable 
2. Raceways, Fittings and Supports 
3. Disconnect and Safety Switches 
4. Outlet and Junction Boxes 
5. Fire Alarm System & Wiring (as required by Massachusetts State building Code 

tier 2 submissions) 

D. Submit shop drawings and product data electronically in PDF format, grouped to include 
complete submittals of related systems, products, and accessories in a single submittal. 

E. In the event that this Contractor fails to provide Shop Drawings for any of the products 
specified herein: 

1. Contractor shall furnish and install all materials and equipment herein specified 
in complete accordance with these Specifications. 

2. If the Contractor furnishes and installs material and/or equipment which is not in 
complete accordance with these Specifications, he shall be responsible for the 
removal of this material and/or equipment from the Work, and shall be 
responsible for the replacement of this material and/or equipment with material 
and/or equipment which is in complete accordance with these Specifications, at 
the direction of the Owner’s Representative. 

3. Removal and replacement of materials and/or equipment, which are not in 
complete compliance with these Specifications, shall be executed by the 
Contractor at no extra cost to the Owner. 

4. Removal and replacement of materials and/or equipment, which are not in 
complete compliance with these Specifications, shall not be allowed as a basis 
for a claim of delay of completion of the Work. 

1.10 CLEANING 

A. During the progress of the Electrical work, clean up and remove all dust, dirt and other 
debris caused by this work.  At completion, the Contractor shall clean all equipment, 
conduit and wiring systems and leave all work in perfect operating condition. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 6 

1.11 PROTECTION OF MATERIALS, WORK, AND GROUNDS 

A. Materials, fixtures and equipment shall be properly protected and all and openings shall 
be temporarily closed so as to prevent obstruction and damage. 

B. Protect and preserve all materials, supplies and equipment of every description and all 
work performed.  Protect all existing equipment and property of any kind from damage 
during the operations.  Damage shall be repaired or replaced promptly by the Contractor 
at his expense. 

1.12 DRAWINGS 

A. It is the intention of the Specifications and Drawings to call for finished work, tested and 
ready for operation.  Any apparatus, appliance, material or work not shown on the 
Drawings, but mentioned in the Specifications or vice-versa, or any incidental accessories 
necessary to make the work complete in all respects and ready for operation, even if not 
particularly specified, shall be provided by the Contractor without additional expense to 
the Owner. 

B. The Drawings are generally diagrammatic.  The locations of all items that are not 
definitely fixed by dimensions are approximate only.  The exact locations must be 
determined at the project and shall have the approval of the Engineer before being 
installed.  The Contractor shall follow Drawings, including his shop drawings, in laying 
out work and shall check the Drawings of other trades to verify spaces in which work will 
be installed.  Maintain maximum headroom and space conditions.  Where space 
conditions appear inadequate, notify the Engineer before proceeding with the installation.  
The Contractor shall, without extra charge, make reasonable modifications in the layout 
as needed to prevent conflict with work of other trades or for proper execution of the 
work. 

C. Size of shafts and conduits and methods of routing them are occasionally shown, but it is 
not intended to show every offset and fitting, nor every structural difficulty that may be 
encountered.  To carry out the true intent and purpose of the Drawings, all necessary 
parts to make complete approved working systems ready for use, shall be furnished 
without extra charge.  All work shall be installed in such a manner as to avoid being 
unsightly. 

D. All measurements shall be taken at the building by the Contractor, prior to purchasing 
and installing the equipment and conduits. 

1.13 RECORD DRAWINGS 

A. Refer to DIVISION 01 of the Specifications for record drawings and procedures to be 
provided under this section. 

B. Record Drawings (red-line drawings) will be updated by this Contractor monthly for 
review with the monthly requisition. 

1.14 SUBMITTALS 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 7 

A. Submit shop drawings and product data within 30 days after award of contract.  Check, 
stamp and mark with project name submittals before transmitting to Engineer.  Indicate 
deviations from contract documents. 

B. Deviations from contract documents or proposed substitution of materials or equipment 
for those specified shall be requested in separate letter whether deviations are due to field 
conditions, standard shop practice, or other cause. 

C. Within four weeks (except as noted otherwise) after award of contract and before 
ordering materials or equipment.  Submit list of proposed materials and equipment and 
indicate manufacturer’s names, addresses and identifying data.  No consideration will be 
given to partial lists submitted out of sequence. 

D. Schedule at least ten working days, exclusive of transmittal time for submittal review. 

E. Material and equipment requiring Shop Drawing and Product Data submittal shall 
include but shall not be limited to: 

1. Addressable fire alarm system, including battery calculations, equipment cuts and 
riser diagram including wiring methods. 

2. Conduit and raceways. 
3. Wire and cable. 
4. Branch circuit wiring. 
5. Wiring devices and plates. 
6. Fire seal and fire-proof foam. 
7. Sleeving. 
8. Pull boxes and cable troughs. 

F. Provide items for equipment installed under other Sections or Contracts or by Owner. 

G. Electrical Contractor shall refer to specification section for submittal requirements. 
 

1.15 SUBSTITUTIONS  

A. Refer to, Div. 01 requirements in requesting substitutions. The following paragraphs 
supplement the requirements of Div. 01.  

B. If materials or equipment are substituted for specified items that alter the systems shown 
or its physical characteristics, or which have different operating characteristics, clearly 
note the alterations or difference and call it to the attention of the engineer.  

C. Any modifications to the design, as a result of approving a substitution, shall be the 
responsibility of this contractor. Any additional cost to this contractor or any other 
contractor, directly or indirectly, as a result of such substitutions, shall be the 
responsibility of this contractor. 

1.16 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 

A. Provide in accordance with Division 01 for all equipment provided in this section. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 8 

B. Prepare and submit Operating and Maintenance manuals at least 1 month prior to the date 
of Substantial Completion of the Project.  Submit electronic sets of operation and 
maintenance data complete with at least the following. 

C. Table of Contents: 

1. Introduction: 

a. Explanation of Manual and its use 

2. Equipment Operation: 

a. Operating Instructions for all Equipment, Systems, Controls, etc. 

3. Maintenance 

a. Recommended List of Spare Parts: furnish two typed sets of instructions 
for ordering spare parts with charts showing parts numbered or labeled to 
facilitate ordering replacements.  Each set shall include a list with 
itemized prices of those parts recommended to be kept on hand as spares, 
as well as the name and address of where they may be obtained. 

1.17 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT STANDARDS 

A. Where equipment or materials are specified with the name of a manufacturer, such 
specification shall be deemed to be used for establishing a standard for that particular 
item.  No equipment or material shall be used unless previously approved by the Owner’s 
engineer. 

B. Substitutions may be offered for review provided the material, equipment or process 
offered for consideration is equal in every respect to that indicated or specified.  The 
request for each substitution must be accompanied by complete specifications together 
with drawings or samples to properly appraise the materials, equipment or process. 

C. If a substitution of materials or equipment in whole or in part is made, this Contractor 
shall bear the cost of any changes necessitated by any other trade as a result of said 
substitution. 

D. All materials, equipment and accessories provided under this section shall be new and 
unused products of recognized manufacturers as approved. 

1.18 UNDERWRITERS' LABEL AND LISTING 

A. All electrical apparatus furnished under this Section shall be approved by the UL and 
shall be labeled or listed where such is applicable.  Where custom-built equipment is 
specified and the UL label or listing is not applicable to the completed product, all 
components used in the construction of such equipment shall be labeled or listed by UL 
where such is applicable to the component. 

1.19 INTERPRETATION OF DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 9 

A. It is the intention of the Specifications and Drawings to call for complete, finished work, 
tested and ready for continuous operation.  Any apparatus, appliance, material or work 
not shown on the Drawings, but mentioned in the Specifications or vice-versa, or any 
incidental accessories necessary to make the work complete in all respects and ready for 
operation, even if not particularly specified, shall be provided by the Electrical Contractor 
without additional expense to the Owner. 

B. The Drawings are generally diagrammatic.  The locations of all items that are not 
definitely fixed by dimensions are approximate only.  The exact locations must be 
determined at the project and shall have the approval of the Owner’s Representative 
before being installed. The Contractor shall follow Drawings, including his shop 
drawings, in laying out work and shall check the Drawings of other trades to verify 
spaces in which work will be installed.  Maintain maximum headroom and space 
conditions.  Where space conditions appear inadequate, notify the Owner’s 
Representative before proceeding with the installation.  This Contractor shall, without 
extra charge, make reasonable modifications in the layout as needed to prevent conflict 
with work of other trades or for proper execution of the work. 

C. Refer to the Owner’s Representative and coordinate location of all Electrical equipment. 

D. Size of conduits, cable trays, raceways and methods of running them are shown, but it is 
not intended to show every offset and fitting, nor every structural difficulty that may be 
encountered.  To carry out the true intent and purpose of the Drawings, all necessary 
parts to make complete approved working systems ready for use, shall be furnished 
without extra charge.  All work shall be installed in such a manner as to avoid being 
unsightly. 

1.20 INSPECTION OF SITE CONDITIONS 

A. Prior to submission of bid, it is recommended that the bidder visit the site and review the 
related construction documents to determine the conditions under which the Work has to 
be performed.  Inform the engineer in writing, of any conditions which might adversely 
affect the Work of this Section of the Specifications. 

1.21 SURVEY AND MEASUREMENTS 

A. Base all required measurements, horizontal and vertical, from referenced points 
established by the Contractor and be responsible for correctly laying out the Work 
required under this Section of the Specifications. 

B. In the event of discrepancy between actual measurements and those indicated, notify the 
Contractor in writing and do not proceed with the related work until instructions have 
been issued.  

1.22 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 

A. No materials shall be delivered or stored on site until Shop Drawings have been 
approved. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 10 

B. All manufactured materials shall deliver to the site in original packages or containers 
bearing the manufacturer's labels and product identification. 

C. Protect materials against dampness.  Store off floors, under cover, and adequately 
protected from damage. 

D. Deliver products to site and store and protect same under the provisions of DIVISION 01. 

E. Inspect all Fire Protection equipment and materials, upon receipt at the job site, for 
damage and correctness. 

1.23 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY 

A. This Contractor shall be responsible for the care and protection of all work included 
under this Section until the completion and final acceptance of this Contract. 

B. Protect all equipment and materials from damage from all causes including, but not 
limited to, fire, vandalism and theft.  All materials and equipment damaged or stolen shall 
be repaired or replaced with equal material or equipment at no additional cost to the 
Owner. 

C. Protect all equipment, outlets and openings with temporary plugs, caps and covers.  
Protect work and materials of other trades from damage that might be caused by work or 
workmen under this Section and make good damage thus caused. 

D. Damaged materials are to be removed from the site; no site storage of damaged materials 
will be allowed. 

1.24 SUPERVISION 

A. Supply the service of an experienced and competent Construction Supervisor who shall 
be in charge of the Electrical work at the site. 

1.25 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS 

A. Comply with all of the safety requirements of OSHA throughout the entire construction 
period of the project. 

B. Furnish, place and maintain proper guards for prevention of accidents and any other 
necessary construction required to secure safety of life and/or property. 

1.26 SCHEDULE 

A. Provide schedule of work to be submitted to the engineer for review. 

1.27 STOCK PARTS 

A. Furnish the following stock devices to be handed over to the owner’s representative.   
1. (2) audio/visual devices 
2. (2) visual only devices 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 11 

3. (2) manual pull stations 
4. (4) smoke detectors  
5. (2) heat detectors 
6. (2) addressable modules 

1.28 HOISTING, SCAFFOLDING AND PLANKING 

A. The work to be done under this Section of the Specifications shall include the furnishing, 
set-up and maintenance of all derricks, hoisting machinery, scaffolds, staging and 
planking as required for the work. 

1.29 CUTTING AND PATCHING 

A. All cutting and patching in area necessary for the proper installation of work to be performed 
under this Section and subsections shall be performed by the Electrical Contractor. 

B. All work shall be fully coordinated with all phases of construction, in order to minimize the 
requirements for cutting and patching. 

C. The contractor shall see that all such chases, openings, and sleeves are located accurately and 
are of the proper size and shape and shall consult with the Engineer in reference to this work.  In 
so doing, he shall confine the cutting to the smallest extent possible consistent with the work to 
be done.  In no case shall piers or structural members be cut without the approval of the 
Engineer. 

D. Carefully fit around, close up, repair, patch, and point around the work specified herein to the 
entire satisfaction of the Engineer. 

E. Fill and patch all openings or holes left in the existing structures by the removal of existing 
equipment by himself, his subcontractors or other filed subcontractors. 

F. All of this work shall be carefully done by workmen competent to do such work and with the 
proper and smallest tools applicable. 

G. Any cost caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be the contractor’s responsibility therefore. 

H. The fire resistance rating of floors, walls, and ceilings shall be maintained. UL listed 
firestopping shall be installed in accordance with manufacturer’s written instructions. 

I. Cut and patched areas shall be primed and painted to match existing surfaces. 

1.30 VERIFYING CONDITIONS 

A. Before commencing any work under this section, verify all governing dimensions and examine 
all adjoining work on which this work is in any way associated or connected.  Failure to visit 
the jobsite will in no way relieve the Contractor from installing the work according to the intent 
of these specifications and at no additional cost to the Owner. 

B. It is highly recommended that each bidder visits the site and inspects conditions affecting the 
proposed work. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 12 

C. During the recommended site visit, each bidder shall make note of the existing conditions 
affecting hauling, rigging, transportation, installation, etc., in connection with his work and shall 
make all provisions for transportation of all materials and equipment. 

D. Where field conditions require, the Contractor shall arrange for equipment to be shipped to the 
job, dismantled and assembled in place. 

1.31 PAINTING 

A. All finish field painting shall be provided by Electrical Contractor. 

1.32 SLEEVES, INSERTS AND ANCHOR BOLTS 

A. Coordinate the location of and maintaining in proper positions, sleeves, inserts and 
anchor bolts to be supplied and/or set in place under this section of the specifications.  In 
the event of incorrectly located preset sleeves, inserts and anchor bolts, etc., all required 
cutting and patching of finished work shall be done under this section of the 
specifications. 

B. Unless otherwise specified herein, all pipes passing through floors, walls, ceilings or 
partitions shall be provided with sleeves and rating shall be maintained by installation of 
fire stopping. 

C. Field drilling (core drilling), when required, shall be performed under this section of the 
specifications, after receipt of approval by the Construction Supervisor. 

1. When coring can not be avoided, provide ¼ inch pilot hole prior to coring.  When 
coring through floor or slab, verify location of core on floor below and protect 
and piping, ductwork, wiring, furniture, personnel, etc., below the location of the 
core. 

1.33 SUPPLEMENTARY STEEL, CHANNELS AND SUPPORTS 

A. Provide all supplementary steel, channels and supports required for the proper 
installation, mounting and support of all Electrical equipment, piping, etc., required by 
the Specifications. 

B. Supplementary steel and channels shall be firmly connected to building construction in a 
manner approved by the Engineer. 

C. The type and size of the supporting channels and supplementary steel shall be determined 
by the Electrical Contractor and shall be of sufficient strength and size to allow only a 
minimum deflection in conformance with the manufacturer's requirements for loading. 

1.34 STANDARDS 

A. The latest published issue of the standards, recommendations, or requirements of the following 
listed societies, associations, or institutes in effect at the date of Contract are part of this 
Specification.  These shall be considered as minimum requirements; specific requirements of 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 13 

this specification and/or associated drawings shall have precedence.  In case of conflict between 
published requirements, the Owner's representative shall determine which is to be followed. 

1. UL  Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. 
2. ANSI  American National Standards Institute 
3. NEC  National Electric Code 
4. ASME  American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
5. ASTM  American Society for Testing and Materials 
6. FIA  Factory Insurance Association 
7. IEEE  Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers 
8. OSHA  Occupational Safety and Health Act 
9. NEMA  National Electrical Manufacturers Association 
10. NFPA  National Fire Protection Association 

1.35 GUARANTEE 

A. Guarantee that all work installed will be free from any and all defects in workmanship 
and/or materials and that all apparatus will develop capacities and characteristics 
specified. 

B. If, during a period of one year from the date of final completion and acceptance of the 
work, any such defects in workmanship, material or performance appear, the Electrical 
Contractor will, without cost to the Owner, remedy such defects within a reasonable time 
to be specified in notice from the Electrical Engineer. 

C. Correct all damage to insulation, paint or building caused by defects in his work, 
equipment, and its operation.  Guarantee shall include startup, shutdown, maintenance, 
and 24-hour service during the guarantee period. 

D. Any apparatus that requires excessive service during the warranty period will be 
considered defective and shall be replaced. 

1.36 CERTIFICATES OF INSPECTION/APPROVAL 

A. Furnish upon completion of all work, certificates of inspections from the manufacturers 
stating that authorized factory engineers have inspected and tested the operation of their 
respective equipment and found same to be in satisfactory operating conditions. 

1.37 ACCESSIBILITY 

A. All work shall be installed so that parts requiring inspection, operation, maintenance and 
repair are readily accessible.  Minor deviations from the drawings may be made to 
accomplish this, but changes of substantial magnitude shall not be made prior to written 
approval from the Engineer. 

1.38 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

A. Commissioning shall be provided for fire alarm systems prior to final acceptance. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 14 

B. Materials and apparatus shall be installed as fast as conditions permit and must be 
installed promptly when and as desired. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.01 RACEWAYS 

A. Rigid metallic conduit shall be zinc-coated steel that conforms to industry standards, by 
Allied Tube and Conduit, Republic Steel, Wheatland Tube or approved equal. 

B. Electrical metallic tubing (EMT) shall be zinc-coated steel that conforms to industry 
standards, by Republic Steel, Allied Tube and Conduit, Triangle/PWC or approved equal. 

C. Wireways shall be sheet steel with hinged spring-latched covers, galvanized or painted to 
protect against corrosion.  Provide necessary bends, couplings, connectors and other 
appurtenances.  Interior parts shall be smooth and free of sharp edges and burrs.  
Wireways shall be by Square D or approved equal. 

D. Flexible metal conduit shall be type MC aluminum armor cable with current carrying 
conductors as required.  MC cable shall also have full size separate copper grounding 
conductor.  Flexible conduit shall be used above hung ceiling areas, in wall partitions and 
in other concealed areas not subject to moisture or physical abuse.  Flexible conduit used 
for lighting fixture final connections shall be limited to a maximum length of six feet. 
 
1. Flexible conduit shall not be used as follows: 
 

a.  In exposed attic areas; 
b.  In exposed basement areas; 
c.  Surface-mounted in electrical closets; 
d.  In all other areas where conduit is surface-mounted or exposed. 

E. Flexible conduit shall be manufactured by American Flexible Conduit, Eastern Wiring 
Conduit, International Metal Hose Company, or equal. 

F. Liquid-tight flexible metal conduit shall be galvanized steel with separate copper 
grounding conductor.  The outer jacket shall be an extruded, moisture and oil proof, 
covering of polyvinyl chloride.  Liquid-tight flexible metal conduit shall be used for the 
final connections to all roof top equipment and in all areas where motors and other 
equipment are subject to an oil or moisture type environment.  Liquid-tight flexible metal 
conduit shall be manufactured by American Flexible Conduit, Eastern Wiring Conduit, 
International Metal Hose Company, or equal. 

G. Conduit expansion fittings shall be threaded hot-dipped galvanized malleable iron with 
internal bonding assembly by O.Z./Gedney or approved equal. 

H. Conduit fire seat fittings shall have heat-activated intumescent material for fire rating 
equal to or higher than that of floor or wall by O.Z./Gedney or approved equal. 

I. Provide water-tight gland sealing assemblies with pressure bushings as required for 
penetrations. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 15 

J. Provide threaded malleable iron or steel connectors and couplings with insulated throats; 
manufactured elbows; locknuts; and plastic or bakelite bushings at terminations, as 
necessary.  Couplings and connectors shall be gland and ring compression or stainless-
steel multiple point locking or steel concrete-tight set screw.  Compression couplings and 
connectors shall form positive ground.  Set-screw connectors and couplings shall have 
wall thickness equal to conduit, case-hardened, hex-head screws and separate ground 
wire.  Bushings for rigid steel conduit and connectors for EMT shall have insulating 
inserts that meet requirements of UL 514 flame test. 

2.02 OUTLET BOXES 

A. Outlet boxes on concealed work shall be at least 4" square or octagonal, galvanized 
pressed steel with plaster rings as required.  Outlet boxes for exposed conduit work shall 
be cast aluminum alloy with cast aluminum alloy covers. 

B. Outlet boxes mounted in the ceilings of habitable rooms of dwelling occupancies in a 
location acceptable for the installation of a ceiling-suspended paddle fan shall be listed 
for support of ceiling suspended paddle fans. 

C. Where installed in plaster, boxes shall be fitted with galvanized steel plaster covers of 
required depth to finish flush with finished wall or ceiling. 

D. Switch boxes, receptacle boxes and other outlet boxes shall be standard 4" square with 
plaster rings or gang covers as required. 

E. Outlet boxes shall be by Steel City Electric Company, Appleton Electric Company and 
National Electric Products Company or approved equal. 

F. Outlet boxes for various systems and components shall be as required by manufacturer. 

G. Waterproof boxes shall be Condulet Cast Boxes with water-proof devices and covers.  
Provide hot-dipped galvanized corrosion-resistant epoxy enamel finish or PVC-coated 
products, where noted on Drawings. 

H. Provide screw-joint outlet boxes, with gasketed weatherproof covers in exterior locations, 
where exposed to moisture, at kitchen and cafeteria equipment with or next to water or 
steam connections, and where indicated as weatherproof on Drawings. 

I. Provide only enough conduit openings to accommodate conduits at individual location.  
Each box shall be large enough to accommodate number and sizes of conduits, wires and 
splices to meet NEC requirements, but shall be at least size shown or specified.  
Necessary volume shall be obtained by using boxes of proper dimensions.  Box depths 
greater than 2-1/8" shall not be used to obtain necessary volume, but may be used with 
Engineer's approval to facilitate installation.  Standard concrete boxes may be 6" deep 
where necessary to permit entrance of conduits into sides of boxes without interference 
with reinforcing bars.   Octagonal hung ceiling boxes with suspension bars may be 3-1/2" 
deep.  Rectangular boxes for inter-connection of branch circuit conduits may be 2-1/2" 
deep. 

2.03 JUNCTION BOXES, PULL BOXES AND CABLE TROUGHS 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 16 

A. Provide code gauge galvanized steel junction and pull boxes for conduit 1-1/4" trade size 
and larger, where indicated and as necessary to facilitate installation, of required 
dimensions, with accessible, removable screw-on covers.  Provide junction and pull 
boxes in special sizes and shapes determined in field where necessary. 

B. Junction box covers shall be accessible. Do not install junction boxes above suspended 
ceilings except where ceiling is removable or where access panel is provided. EC shall 
refer to Specification Section 08 3050 for access panel requirements. 

C. Sheet metal pull boxes shall be supported adequately to maintain shape.  Larger boxes 
shall have structural steel bracing welded into rigid assembly formed adequately to 
maintain alignment in shipment and installation.  Secure covers with corrosion-resistant 
screws or bolts. 

1. Pull boxes exposed to rain or in wet locations shall be weatherproof. 
2. Pull boxes used with aluminum conduit shall be metal compatible with aluminum. 
3. Provide clamps, grids and other appurtenances to secure cables.  No cable shall be 

unsupported for more than 30". 
4. No pull box shall be within 2 feet of another. 
5. Provided sealed, cast-alloy, hazardous-location boxes with sealing fittings in 

garages and other areas in which flammable gases or vapors may be present to 
prevent transmission of gases or vapors through conduits. 

6. Pull boxes connected to concealed conduits shall be mounted with covers flush 
with finished wall or ceiling.  No aluminum pull box shall be embedded in 
concrete. 

D. Provide cable troughs of special shapes, design and construction required to install, 
support and enclose feeder cable throughout indicated routing.  Troughs shall be as 
specified above for junction and pull boxes, with reinforcing, insulating supports and 
clamping for cable installation.  Cables shall be continuous throughout troughs, and shall 
be racked in distributed phase groupings arranged with phase cables surrounding neutral 
conductors. 

2.04 WIRE AND CABLE (600 V INSULATION) 

A. Provide single-conductor, annealed copper wire and cable with insulation rated 600 V, of 
sizes specified and scheduled on Drawings, by General Electric, Rome, Okonite or 
approved equal, for secondary service, feeders, branch and system wiring.  Wire insulated 
for 300 V may be used where voltage is less than 100 V, if isolated from higher voltages.  
Wire sizes shown and specified are American Wire Gauge for copper. 

B. Non-metallic conduit, type NMC/Romex shall only be used within individual apartments 
only and in accordance with code requirements for building construction type and 
number of floors.  Minimum size shall be 12/2 with ground. All wiring shall be rated for 
600 volt. 

C. Wire #8 and larger shall be stranded; #10 and smaller shall be solid.  Wire and cable shall 
have THWN-THHN or XHHW insulation. 

D. Splices and Terminations 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 17 

1. Make splices in branch circuit wiring with UL-listed, solderless connectors rated 
600 V, of sizes and types required by manufacturer’s recommendations with 
temperature ratings equal to those of wires.  Splice connectors shall be screw-on. 
Insulate splices with integral covers or with plastic or rubber friction tape to 
preserve characteristics of wire and cable insulation. 

2. Provide standard bolt-on lugs with hex screws to attach copper wire and cable to 
panelboards, switchboards, disconnect switches and electrical equipment. 

3. Make terminations and splices for conductors #6 and larger with corrosion-
resistant, high-conductivity pressure indent, hex screw or bolt-clamp connectors, 
with or without tongues, designed specifically for intended service.  Connectors 
for cables 250 MCM and larger shall have two clamping elements or compression 
indents.  Terminals for bus connections shall have two bolt holes. 

4. Ampacity of splices and connectors shall be equal to those of associated wires and 
cables. 

E. Arc-proofing 

1. Provide flexible, flame-retardant, organic-composition-coated elastomer arc-
proofing tape on power cable in manholes and handholes, suitable to withstand 
200 A arc for 30 seconds.  Tape shall be self-extinguishing and shall not support 
combustion. 

2. Apply tape in single, half-lapped layer as required by manufacturer's 
recommendations.  Secure with strips of red plastic film tape on 208Y/120V 
conductors. 

F. Provide three-ply marlin twine lacing or self-extinguishing nylon straps with -65 ºF to 
350 °F range for bundling conductors. 

2.05 WIRE PULLING EQUIPMENT 

A. Provide polyethylene ropes for pulling wire. 

B. Provide fish wires in telephone conduits and other empty conduit systems required, 
without splices and with ample exposed lengths at each end. 

C. Provide wire pulling lubricants that meet applicable UL requirements as necessary. 

2.06 CABLE SUPPORTS AND BOXES 

A. Provide cable supports and boxes for vertical feeders as required by NEC.  Boxes shall be 
10-gauge steel plates fastened to angle iron frame with removable covers secured with 
brass machine screws. 

B. Provide split wedge cable supports with clamps for cable without metallic sheath.  
Provide basket weave or approved equal cable supports approved by cable manufacturer 
for cable with metallic sheath.  Supports shall be by O.Z./Gedney or approved equal. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 18 

 
2.07 GROUNDING 

A. Cables shall be of solid or stranded copper size as specified on the drawings.  Cables 
shall be bare when installed in soil or in open air, and shall be insulated with 600-volt 
green jackets in all runs installed in conduit. 

B. The grounding conductor bonding jumper shall be attached to the circuits, conduits, 
cabinets, equipment and the like, which are to be grounded by means of suitable lugs, 
pressure connectors and clamps. 

C. All feeder and three phase motor circuits shall be provided with an appropriately sized 
grounding conductor.  Sizes shall be based on NEC Table 250-95.  Grounding conductors 
shall also be provided wherever the raceway is not a suitable grounding conductor. 

2.08 IDENTIFICATION 

A. Wire and Cable Identification 

1. Conductor labels shall be white, adhesive self-laminating type.  All text shall be 
typed.  String tags shall not be accepted.  Temporary tagging during construction 
shall be allowed, but all permanent adhesive tags shall be in place prior to 
requesting final acceptance. 

 
2.09 FEEDER IDENTIFICATION 

A. Provide nonferrous identifying tags or pressure-sensitive labels for cables, feeders, and 
power circuits in vaults, pull boxes, manholes and switchboard rooms, at cable 
termination and in other locations. 

B. Tags or labels shall be stamped or printed to correspond with markings on Drawings or 
marked so that feeder or cable may be identified readily.  If suspended tags are provided, 
attach with 1/32" diameter nylon 55-pound test monofilament line or slip-free plastic 
cable lacing unit. 

2.10 FIRESTOPPING 

A. Provide asbestos-free firestopping material capable of maintaining an effective barrier 
against flame, gases, and temperature.  Provide noncombustible firestopping that is 
nontoxic to human beings during installation or during fire conditions.  Devices and 
equipment for firestopping service shall be UL FRD listed or FM P7825 approved for use 
with applicable construction, and penetrating items. 

1. Fire Hazard Classification:  Material shall have a flame spread of 25 or less, a 
smoke developed rating of 50 or less when tested in accordance with UL 723 or 
UL listed and accepted. 

2. Firestopping Rating:  Firestopping materials shall be UL FRD listed or FM P7825 
approved for "F" and "T" ratings at least equal to fire-rating of fire wall or floor in 
which penetrated openings are to be protected, except that "F" and "T" ratings 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 19 

may be 3 hours for firestopping in through-penetrations of 4-hour fire rated wall 
or floor. 

2.11 ADDRESSABLE FIRE DETECTION AND ALARM SYSTEM 

A. General 

1. The Contractor shall furnish, install, and place in operation a 
microprocessor-based addressable analog/multiplex fire alarm system. 

2. The completed fire alarm system shall meet all local and state codes. 
3. Equipment and completed installation shall be UL listed or approved and shall 

meet approval of local fire department and state fire marshall, authorities having 
jurisdiction and shall be in accordance with the applicable sections of the latest 
edition of the State Electrical Code, ADA Code, NFPA 71, 72, 72E, and Life 
Safety Code #101. 

4. Each remote device shall have a unique code.  All remote devices shall be under 
the control of the main system microprocessor. 

5. Fire Alarm system shall have general evacuation capability.  
6. The complete system shall contain smoke detection, horn strobe alarms, pull 

stations, duct smoke detectors, water and tamper flow switches, and other devices 
as required for a complete system. 

7. The Owner shall be responsible for selection of and monthly payments to an 
approved fire alarm third party monitoring company. 

8. The Contractor shall be responsible for all fire alarm testing and certification 
charges. 

9. The existing fire alarm system shall remain fully functional during the entire 
demolition and construction period. Reuse of existing fire alarm system raceways 
shall not be allowed.  All required system shutdowns shall be coordinated with 
and approved by the owner's representative and the authority having jurisdiction.  
Demolition of the existing system shall not commence until the new system has 
been completely installed, tested and approved by the authority having 
jurisdiction. 

B. Operation 

1. Refer to Drawings for Sequence of Operations Matrix 

C. Remote Devices 

1. Smoke detectors shall be addressable solid state, photoelectric type with 3.0% 
nominal sensitivity.  Smoke detectors shall be a plug-in unit which mounts to a 
twistlock base. 

2. Combination heat detector/rate-of-rise heat detectors shall be provided as shown 
on the Drawings.  Heat detectors shall be addressable and shall have an air 
chamber, a vent, and a flexible metal diaphragm.  Units shall have a fixed 
temperature setting of 135ºF or 200ºF as specified on the Drawings.  Rate-of-rise 
capabilities shall be provided via the air chamber, vent, and diaphragm.  Expanded 
diaphragm shall cause normally open contacts to close and signal alarm condition. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 20 

3. Heat detectors shall be addressable, low-profile, matte white, rated 135ºF fixed 
temperature as shown on the Drawings. 

4. Heat detectors rated 200ºF as shown on the Drawings shall be conventional type 
detectors.  Fixed temperature 200ºF detectors shall be low-profile, matte white, 
and shall be zoned together as shown on the Drawings utilizing a conventional to 
addressable conversion module. 

5. Pull stations shall be surface-mounted.  Provide addressable, double-action break 
rod stations.  Pull stations shall mechanically latch upon activation and remain so 
until being mechanically reset by opening with a key.  Pull stations in public areas 
shall, at the option of the Superintendent of Fire Alarm, have an accepted 
protection cover with an integral sounding device.  The operable part of the 
manual pull station shall be mounted between 3½ feet and 4 feet above finish floor 
per NFPA 5.12.4.  Pull stations shall be mounted within five feet of exit doorways 
on each floor level per NFPA 5.12.6.  Pull stations shall be mounted on both sides 
of grouped door openings exceeding 40 feet in width per NFPA 5.12.7.  Travel 
distance to any pull station shall not exceed 200 feet per NFPA 5.12.8. 

6. Horn strobe units shall be installed surface-mounted.  The visual strobe shall meet 
all requirements of the ADA Code.  Strobe shall be rated as follows: 

a. The lamp shall be a xenon strobe type or equivalent. 
b. The color shall be clear or nominal white, i.e., non-filtered, or clear filtered 

white light.  
c. The maximum pulse duration shall be two-tenths of one second (0.2 second) 

with a maximum duty cycle of 40 percent.  The pulse duration is defined as 
the time interval between initial and final points of 10 percent of maximum 
signal 

d. The intensity shall be a minimum of 75 candela 
e. The flash rate shall be a minimum of 1 Hz and a maximum of 3 Hz. 
f. Horn strobe units shall flash synchronously with other horn strobes and 

other strobe only devices in the same zone.  System shall hold 
synchronization for a minimum of 15 minutes. 

g. The audible portion of the device shall be rated to meet ADA Codes and 
shall meet the following criterion: 

1)  The horn shall produce a sound that exceeds the prevailing 
equivalent sound level in the room or space by at least 15 dba or 
exceeds any maximum sound level with a duration of 60 seconds, by 
5 dba, whichever is louder.  Sound levels for alarms shall not exceed 
120 dba. 

2)  Horn strobe units shall be located as shown on the Drawings.  Horn 
strobes shall be mounted at 90 inches above the highest floor level 
within the space or 6 inches below the ceiling, whichever is lower, 
per NFPA 7.4.6.1.  Strobe mounting height shall not exceed 96 
inches per NFPA 7.5.4. 

3)  No place in common corridors or hallways in which visual alarm 
signaling appliances are required shall be more than 50 feet from the 
signal. In corridors, visible notification appliances shall be provided 
not more than 15 feet from the end with a separation not greater than 
100 feet per NFPA 7.5.4.2.5. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 21 

4)  No place in any room or space required to have a visual signal 
appliance shall be more than 50 feet from the signal (in the 
horizontal plane).  In large rooms or spaces exceeding 100 feet 
across, without obstructions 6 feet above the finish floor, such as 
auditoriums, devices may be placed around the perimeter, spaced a 
maximum of 100 feet apart, in lieu of suspending appliances from 
the ceiling.   

7. Remote LEDs with stainless steel backplates shall be provided as required by 
local authorities.  Engraved nameplates shall be provided below remote LEDs to 
indicate position of associated detector(s).   

8. Provide a supervised exterior rotating beacon 24 VDC with a red lens.  Beacon 
shall operate on battery standby power 24 VDC for 15 minutes of alarm.  Beacon 
shall be of non-corrosive Lexan plastic construction with an optically designed red 
lens, a wall-mounting bracket; Neoprene weatherproof gaskets shall also be 
included.  Beacon shall measure over five (5) inches in height for visibility.  
Location shall be determined by the local fire department. 

9. Knox-Box – (existing to remain) 
10. Strobe-only units shall be provided and shall meet all requirements of NFPA and 

ADA codes.  Strobe shall be rated as follows: 

a. The lamp shall be a xenon strobe type or equivalent. 
b. The color shall be clear or nominal white, i.e., non-filtered, or clear filtered 

white light. 
c. The maximum pulse duration shall be two-tenths of one second (0.2 second) 

with a maximum duty cycle of 40 percent.  The pulse duration is defined as 
the time interval between initial and final points of 10 percent of maximum 
signal. 

d. The intensity shall be a minimum of 75 candela. 
e. The flash rate shall be a minimum of 1 Hz and a maximum of 3 Hz. 

D. Wiring and Conduit 

1. All fire alarm wire and cable shall be UL listed for fire alarm use and compatible 
with existing FACP. 

2. The electrical contractor shall coordinate the installation of the fire alarm 
equipment with the manufacturer.  All conductors and wiring shall be installed per 
the manufacturers’ recommendations. 

3. The fire alarm system wiring shall be Class "A" with end-of-line resistors located 
in the FACP.  Both alarm initiating circuits and communications loop circuits 
shall be Class "A" type. 

4. For fire alarm wiring in concealed areas, fire alarm cable shall be plenum rated 
type FPLP, with red outer jacket.  Installation shall meet requirements of NEC 
Article 770 and 725.  Conductors shall be solid copper #14 minimum, with low-
smoke, low-flame type jacket. 

5. For exterior fire alarm wiring in buried conduit, fire alarm cable shall be plenum 
rated type FPLP, with red outer jacket, and rated for use in wet locations.  
Installation shall meet requirements of NEC Article 770 and 725.  Conductors 
shall be solid copper #14 minimum, with low-smoke, low-flame type jacket. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 22 

6. All conduit shall be run concealed unless otherwise noted. If approved by 
owner/engineer, fire alarm wiring in exposed areas shall be type THHN insulation.  
Wire size shall be #14 AWG minimum.  All wiring related to the fire alarm 
system shall be installed in type EMT conduit. 

7. All junction boxes shall be sprayed red and labeled “fire alarm”. 

E. Programming 

1. The system shall be field programmable, either by programming switches on the 
system control unit, or by locally connected PC. 

2. A hard copy of the final system configuration showing all inputs, outputs, 
descriptions, addresses, and programming matrixes shall be provided at final 
acceptance test. 

3. A supervised RS-232 serial port shall be provided to operate a remote printer to 
print all alarms, trouble conditions, local descriptions, time, and date of 
occurrence.  The remote printer itself is not required. 

F. Shop Drawings 

1. Shop Drawings shall include both equipment catalog cuts (product data sheets) 
and one-line riser/interconnect diagrams. 

2. Provide battery calculations showing 20% spare capability. 
3. Catalog cuts shall indicate descriptive information and technical data and shall be 

supplied for all equipment including main fire alarm control panel and all remote 
devices. 

4. One-line riser or interconnect drawing shall be supplied via PDF.  All fire alarm 
devices, power supplies, splice cabinets, and transmitting equipment shall be 
shown with interconnect wire size. 

G. Testing 

1. The Electrical Contractor shall be responsible for all required fire alarm testing. 
2. Prior to formal Fire Department Test, the Contractor shall conduct a preliminary 

test.  The Electrical Contractor and the equipment manufacturer shall completely 
test the system.  The Manufacturer shall issue a letter of acceptability stating that 
all system components are installed and all remote devices are functioning. 

3. After letter of acceptability has been received for the preliminary test, the 
Electrical Contractor shall conduct the acceptance test, as many times as required.  
The Electrical Contractor, Equipment Manufacturers Representative, Owner’s 
Representative, Fire Department Representative and Service Company 
Representative shall conduct the acceptance test in accordance with NFPA 72.  
Every building fire alarm device shall be tested to ensure proper operation and 
correct annunciation at the control panel.  At least one half of all tests shall be 
performed on battery standby power. 

4. Where application of heat would destroy any detector, it may be manually 
activated. 

5. The communication loops and the indicating appliance circuits shall be opened in 
at least two (2) locations per zone to check for the presence of correct supervisory 
circuitry. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 23 

6. When the testing has been completed to the satisfaction of both the Contractor's 
Job Foreman and the Representatives of the Manufacturer and Owner, the 
electrician shall provide a completed Inspection and Testing Form per NFPA 72, 
Section 10.6.2.3. 

7. The Contractor shall leave the fire alarm system in proper working order and, 
without additional expense to the owner, shall replace any defective materials or 
equipment provided by him under this contract within one year (365 days) from 
the date of final acceptance by the awarding authority. 

H. Manufacturers 

1. All system devices including all fire alarm initiating devices, notification devices, 
and main panels shall be labeled with the Manufacturer’s name and logo type.  
"Hybridized" system (containing equipment from several different manufacturers) 
are not acceptable. 

2. Complete system shall be manufactured by FCI (Fire Control Instruments), 
AutoCall, Notifier, or equal. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.01 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 

A. Work shall be executed in workmanlike manner and shall present neat, rectilinear and 
mechanical appearance when completed.  Maintain maximum headroom at all times.  Do 
not run conduits or wiring exposed unless shown exposed on drawings.  Material and 
equipment shall be new and installed according to manufacturer’s recommended best 
practice so that completed installation shall operate safely and efficiently. 

3.02 DEMOLITION 

A. It is recommended that the Electrical Contractor visit the site before submitting his bid to 
familiarize himself with the existing conditions and the extent of his work.  

B. All work shall be provided in strict accordance with the Massachusetts Electrical Code, 
National Codes and all Local Codes, and to the approval of the Engineer and Owner. 

C. Prior to removal from the site, all electrical equipment, conduit and wire shall be 
examined by the Owner to determine if any materials will be retained for maintenance or 
salvage purposes. If none of the material is to be retained all materials shall be removed 
from the site by this Contractor. 

D. All conflicts between existing concealed electrical work and the installation of new work 
of any trade shall be brought to the attention of the Engineer for resolution prior to 
proceeding with the work. 

E. Adequate access shall be provided for all new or relocated equipment, pull or junction 
boxes to comply with codes. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 24 

F. The locations of existing equipment to remain including electrical and fire alarm 
equipment, etc., are shown in an approximate way only.  The Contractor shall determine 
the exact location of all existing equipment before commencing work.  He agrees to be 
fully responsible for any and all damages which might be occasioned by his failure to 
exactly locate and protect any and all equipment. 

3.03 CONTINUITY OF SERVICES 

A. Do not interrupt existing services without Owner’s and Engineer’s approvals. 

3.04 SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Coordinate work of this Section with work of other Sections. 

1. Provide information about items furnished under this Section to be installed under 
other Sections, as necessary. 

2. Obtain detailed information from manufacturers of equipment provided under this 
Section as to proper methods of installation. 

3. Obtain final roughing dimensions and other information as needed for complete 
installation of items furnished under other Sections or by Owner. 

4. Keep fully informed of shape, size and position of openings required for material 
and equipment provided under this and other Sections.  Ensure that openings 
required for work of this Section are coordinated with work of other Sections.  
Provide cutting and patching as necessary. 

B. Coordinate installation and pay back charges to City Building and Fire Departments. 
 

3.05 SPECIAL COORDINATION INSTRUCTIONS 

A. Coordination with work of other trades is required. The following special instructions 
shall also be carefully noted: 

1. Locations and mounting height of all wall outlets and lighting fixtures shall be 
verified with the Engineer prior to roughing-in conduits. Refer to details and wall 
elevations on the Engineer Drawings; mounting heights indicated on these 
Engineer Drawings and/or specific dimensional information given to this 
Contractor by the Engineer shall take precedence over such information indicated 
on the electrical Drawings. 

2. All feeder, branch circuit or auxiliary system wiring passing through pull boxes 
and/or being made up in panelboards shall be properly grouped, bound, and tied 
together in a neat and orderly manner, in keeping with the highest standards of the 
trade, with plastic cable ties. 

3. All duplex convenience and power receptacles shall be mounted vertically with the 
grounding post to the bottom as the outlet is viewed from the front. 

4. All miscellaneous hardware and support accessories, including support rods, nuts, 
bolts, screws, and other such items, shall be of a galvanized or cadmium plated 
finish, or of other approved rust-inhibiting coatings. Care should be taken that 
fixtures shall not be installed on both sides of existing or new building expansion 
joints. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 25 

5. The Electrical Contractor shall provide all materials, equipment, and workmanship 
to provide for adequate protection of all electrical equipment during the course of 
construction of the project. 

6. The Electrical Contractor shall furnish and install approved insulation at terminal 
connection points for all electrical conducting materials, such as transformer 
terminals, terminal studs, and at any other special locations as directed by the 
Engineer. 

7. Prior to installation of conduit and wire, the Electrical Contractor shall coordinate 
wiring requirements with actual equipment supplied. 

3.06 NAMEPLATES 

A. Provide nameplates in or on panelboards, junction boxes and cabinets, and for special 
purpose switches, motor disconnect switches, remote control stations, starters or other 
controls furnished or installed under this Section.  Nameplates shall designate equipment 
controlled and function. 

B. Nameplates shall be laminated black bakelite with 1/4" high white recessed letters.  
Nameplates shall be securely attached to the equipment with galvanized screws.  
Adhesives or cements shall not be used. 

3.07 NEUTRAL WIRING 

A. For 120-volt branch circuit wiring to receptacles, common neutrals shall not be permitted. 

B. Individual neutral conductors shall be installed within the raceways and be run with the 
branch circuit. 

C. Conductors utilized for neutral wiring shall have type “TW” or better insulation, color 
coded white. 

3.08 WIRING METHODS 

A. Install wire and cable in approved raceways as specified and as approved by authorities 
that have jurisdiction. Surface metal raceways/conduit shall not be used unless explicitly 
specified and shown on Drawings.  Do not use surface raceways on floor.  Do not use 
armored cable except as approved by local code for FA circuits in suspended ceilings and 
stud-wall partitions.  Homeruns for lighting circuits shall be 3-phase, 4-wire run in 
conduit. 

B. Wire from point of service connection to receptacles, lighting fixtures, devices, 
equipment, outlets for future extension, and other electrical apparatus as shown on 
Drawings.  Provide slack wire for connections. Tape ends of wires and provide blank 
covers for outlet boxes designated for future use. 

C. Conductors #10 and smaller in branch circuit panelboards, signal cabinets, signal control 
boards, switchboards and motor control centers shall be bundled.  Conductors larger than 
#10 in switchboards, motor control centers and pull boxes shall be cabled in individual 
circuits. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 26 

D. Two or more conduits installed instead of single conduit shall contain duplicate 
conductors, including neutrals and ground conductors where required; total capacity of 
duplicate conductors shall be at least equal to capacity of conductors replaced. 

E. Follow homerun circuit numbers shown on Drawings to connect circuits to panelboards.  
Where homerun circuit numbers are not shown on Drawings, divide similar types of 
connected loads among phase buses so that currents are approximately equal in normal 
usage.  Connect each branch circuit homerun with two or more circuits and common 
neutral to circuit breaker or switch in three-wire or four-wire branch circuit panelboard so 
that no two circuits are fed from same bus.  Where panelboard cabinets are recessed, 
provide conduits with sufficient capacity for future conductors for spare branch circuit 
protective devices and spaces in panelboard; stub up concealed to junction box.  Provide 
extensions above ceiling. 

F. Electrical metallic tubing may be used generally, if approved by local codes, for lighting 
fixture and receptacle circuits, telephone, inter-communications, signal and 
instrumentation circuits, and for control circuits.  EMT may be used generally, if 
approved by authorities, in masonry walls, above hung ceilings, in equipment rooms, in 
mechanical and electrical chases and closets, in exposed locations along ceilings or walls 
above normal traffic level and where not subject to accidental damage or abuse.  Do not 
run EMT exposed below 8 feet above finished floor.  Conduit below 8'-0" AFF exposed 
shall be rigid steel this shall include the basement area except the new main electric 
room, the life safety closet and the MDF where EMT may be utilized below 8'-0". 

G. Install connectors and couplings as recommended by manufacturers.  Compression 
fittings shall not be used with rigid steel, intermediate metallic or aluminum conduit.  Set 
screw fittings shall not be used with rigid aluminum conduit and shall not be used for 
other applications, unless specified and approved by Engineer.  If set-screw connectors 
are used, tighten to imbed screws in conduit. 

H. Conduit in concrete shall be rigid steel.  EMT shall not be installed underground, in slabs 
on grade, in wet locations, in hazardous areas, or for circuits operating at more than 600 
V.  Buried metallic conduit shall be rigid steel.  Run conduit in slabs above bottom steel 
reinforcing, below top reinforcing and inside beam stirrup, wall reinforcements and 
column ties. 

I. Rigid non-metallic conduit as specified in Part 2 of this Section may be used, if approved 
by local authorities, for installation in concrete slabs when installed as required by NEC 
and manufacturer's requirements.  Penetrations from concrete slabs shall be made with 
rigid steel conduit and rigid steel conduit fittings only. 

J. Maximum outside diameters of raceways in conduit shall be 1/3 slab thickness.  No more 
than two 3/4" raceways shall cross in floor slab at a single point.  Submit raceway 
crossing locations for approval before pouring slabs and relocate at no expense to Owner 
as directed by Engineer.  Lateral spacing of parallel raceways shall be at least 6" on 
centers.  Do not run conduit in slab less than 3" thick without express approval and 
direction of Engineer. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 27 

K. Raceways with outside diameters larger than 1/3 slab thickness shall be run concealed in 
hung ceilings in finished areas, exposed in unfinished Mechanical/Electrical and storage 
areas, below slabs on grade. 

L. Penetrate waterproof walls of structural slabs and foundation walls only where approved 
by Engineer.  Submit proposed penetration points, size openings and penetration methods 
to Engineer for approval. 

M. Provide flexible conduits for connections to electrical equipment and to equipment 
furnished under Divisions 14 and 22 that are subject to movement, vibration or 
misalignment; where available space dictates; and where noise transmission must be 
eliminated or reduced.  Flexible conduit shall be liquid-tight under following conditions: 

1. Exterior locations 
2. Moisture or humidity-laden atmospheres (This shall include the basement area) 
3. Corrosive atmospheres 
4. Where wash-down operations are possible 
5. Where seepage or dripping of oil, grease or water is possible 

N. Run concealed conduit and EMT in as direct lines as possible with minimum number of 
bends of longest possible radius.  Run exposed conduit and EMT parallel to or at right 
angles to building lines.  Ends shall be free from dents or flattening. 

O. Conduit and EMT runs shall be mechanically and electrically continuous from service 
entrance to outlets.  Conduit shall enter and be secured to cabinet, junction box, pull box 
or outlet box with locknut outside and bushing inside, or with liquid-tight, threaded, self-
locking, cold-weld wedge adapter.  Provide additional locknut for rigid conduit and 
wrench- tighten locknut for EMT or flexible conduit where circuit voltage exceeds 250 
V.  Locknuts and bushings or self-locking adapters will not be required where conduits 
are screwed into tapped connections.  Vertical conduit runs that terminate in bottoms of 
wall boxes or cabinets shall be protected from entrance of foreign material before 
installation of conductors. 

P. Size rigid steel conduit, EMT and flexible metallic conduit as required by NEC except as 
specified or shown on Drawings otherwise.  Unless shown otherwise on Drawings, 
telephone conduits shall be at least 1". 

Q. Check raceway sizes to determine that green equipment ground conductor fits in same 
raceway with phase and neutral conductors to meet NEC percentage of fill requirements.  
Increase duct, conduit, tubing and raceway sizes shown or specified as required to 
accommodate conductors. 

R. Unless specified or shown on Drawings otherwise, install conduit and EMT concealed.  
Unless specified or shown otherwise, conduit and EMT may be run exposed on 
unfinished walls and unfurred basement ceilings and in unfinished penthouses, attics and 
roof spaces.  Provide stand-off clips for conduits on exterior masonry walls. 

S. Install conduit systems complete before drawing in conductors.  Blow through and swab 
after plaster is finished and dry, and before conductors are installed. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 28 

T. Expansion/Deflection Fittings:  Conduit buried or secured rigidly on opposite sides of 
building expansion joints and long runs of exposed conduit subject to stress shall have 
expansion fittings.  Fittings shall safely deflect and expand to twice distance of structural 
movement. 

1. Provide separate external copper bonding jumper secured with grounding straps on each 
end of fitting. 

2. Conduits buried in concrete shall cross building expansion joints at right angles; provide 
expansion fittings as required by manufacturer’s instructions.  Provide insulated bushings 
at ends of conduits. 

U. Sealing Fittings:  Threaded sealing fittings for rigid steel conduits shall be zinc- or 
cadmium-coated, cast or malleable iron; sealing fittings for aluminum conduit shall be 
threaded cast aluminum.  Fittings that prevent passage of water vapor shall be continuous 
drain. 

1. Install and seal fittings as required by manufacturer’s recommendations.  In 
concealed work, install fittings in flush steel box with blank cover plate. 

2. Install sealing fittings at following points, and elsewhere as shown: 

a. Where conduits enter or leave hazardous areas equipped with explosion-
proof lighting fixtures, switches, receptacles and other electrical devices. 

b. Where conduits pass from warm to cold locations. 
c. Where required by NEC. 

3. Secure conduit system as required by NEC. 

V. Attach pull ropes to conductors with basket-weave grips on pulling eyes.  Pull cables that 
share conduit at same time. 

W. Provide inserts, hangers, anchors and steel supports as necessary. 

X. If approved for use, surface mounted raceway shall be metallic and painted to match 
walls/ceilings. 

3.09 COLOR CODING 

A. Provide color coding for secondary service, feeders, and branch circuits as follows: 
 
PHASE    COLOR 
 
120/208V, 3-phase, 4-wire, wye: 
A     Black 
B     Red 
C     Blue 
Neutral    White 
Equipment Ground   Green 

120/240V, 1-phase, 3-wire, wye: 
A     Black w/stripe 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 29 

B     Red w/stripe 
Neutral    White w/stripe 
Ground    Green w/stripe 

B. Colors shall be factory-applied entire length of conductors by one of the following 
methods except as noted and limited below: 

1. solid color compound 
2. solid color coating 
3. colored stripping (2 stripes 180 degrees apart) 
4. colored bands or hash marks with maximum spacing of 18" 
5. colored fibrous covering 
6. surface printing every 12", maximum spacing of 18". 

C. Branch circuit conductors #12 and #10 shall have solid color compound, solid color 
coating.  Neutrals and equipment grounds shall have solid compound or solid color 
coating (white, gray and green), except that neutrals with colored stripe shall be used 
where required by NEC.  Conductors #8 and larger with stripes, bands or hash marks 
shall have background color other than white, green and gray. 

D. Solid color coating, stripes, bands or hash marks shall be strongly adherent paint or dye, 
sufficiently wide and clear to be readily distinguishable after installation. 

E. Alternative field-applied color-coding methods may be used for wire #10 or larger, with 
color code specified in Subparagraph A: 

1. Apply 3/4" colored pressure-sensitive plastic tape in half overlapping turns for 6" 
from all terminal points and in boxes in which splices or taps are made.  Apply last 
two laps of tape with no tension.  Do not cover cable identification markings. 

2. Identify with nylon, self-extinguishing, self-locking colored cable ties.  Ties shall 
accommodate wire sizes 1/16" through 1-3/4" in diameter and shall not be less than 
0.18" wide.  Minimum tensile strength shall be at least 50 lbs.  Temperature range 
shall be -65 °F to +350 °F.  Provide three ties to each wire at each terminal point 
starting 3" from terminal and spaced 3" apart and three ties to each wire in boxes 
where splices or taps are made with special tool or pliers, and cut off excess. 

3.10 GROUNDING 

A. Provide equipment grounding system as shown on Contract Drawings and in strict 
conformance with Motorola R56 Standards.  Equipment grounding system shall be 
designed so metallic structures, enclosures, raceways, junction boxes, outlet boxes, 
cabinets, machine frames, portable equipment and other conductive items in close 
proximity with electrical circuits operate continuously at ground potential and provide 
low impedance path for possible ground fault currents. 

B. System shall meet NEC requirements, modified as shown on Drawings and as specified 
in Motorola R56 Standards. 

C. Provide separate green insulated equipment grounding conductor for each single or three-
phase feeder and each branch circuit.  Install grounding conductor in common conduit 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 30 

with related phase or neutral conductors, or both.  Parallel feeders installed in more than 
one raceway shall have individual full size green insulated equipment ground conductors. 

D. Determine numbers and sizes of screw terminals for equipment grounding bars in 
panelboards and other electrical equipment.  Provide screw terminals for active circuits, 
spares and spaces. 

E. Provide green insulated grounding conductor in same raceway with associated phase 
conductors, as follows: 

1. From green ground terminals of receptacles to green 10-32 washer-in-head outlet 
box machine screw.   

2. From green 10-32 washer-in-head machine screw in ceiling outlet box or 
junction box through flexible metallic conduit to ground terminal in fixture. 

3. From green 10-32 washer-in-head machine screw in ceiling outlet box or 
junction box through flexible metallic conduit to green 10-32 washer-in-head 
machine screw in switch outlet box in movable partitions. 

4. From green 10-32 washer-in-head machine screw in junction box or disconnect 
switch through flexible metallic conduit to ground terminal in connection box 
mounted on single phase fractional horsepower motor. 

5. From (distribution panel) equipment ground bus to panelboard equipment ground 
bus. 

6. From (distribution panel) equipment ground bar to equipment grounding bar on 
busway. 

3.11 FIRESTOPPING INSTALLATION 

A. Install firestopping assembly at locations shown and as specified in accordance with UL 
FRD systems or FM P7825 designs, and as recommended by manufacturer. Do not cover 
or enclose firestopped areas until approved by the Owner’s Representative. 

1. Firestopping Locations:  Completely fill openings around penetrating items with 
firestopping material to prevent spread of fire in the following locations: 

a. Around duct, cable, conduit, piping, and their supports that penetrate 
fire-rated above grade floor slabs, interior partitions, and exterior walls. 

b. Around openings and penetrations through fire-rated ceiling assemblies. 
c. Around penetration of vertical fire-rated service shafts. 
d. Around openings and penetrations through fire-rated enclosures. 
e. Other locations indicated. 

2. Filling of Voids:  Completely fill voids flush with the surface; the depth of 
material shall be in accordance with UL FRD or FM P7825.  Firestopping for 
filling voids in floors in which smallest dimension of a void is 4" or more shall 
support the floor design load or be protected by a permanent barrier.  Damaged, 
disrupted, or removed firestoppings shall be replaced with new firestoppings as 
specified in this section. 

3. Insulated Pipes and Ducts:  Cut and remove thermal insulation where pipes or 
ducts pass through firestoppings.  Replace thermal insulation with a material 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 31 

having equal thermal insulating characteristics and equal firestopping 
characteristics. 

3.12 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

A. Equipment and devices shall be installed and energized in accordance with the 
manufacturer's published instructions. 

B. Conformance to Codes:  The installation shall comply with the requirements and 
recommendations of NFPA 70 and ANSI C2. 

C. Verification of Dimensions:  The Contractor shall become familiar with details of the 
work, shall verify dimensions in the field, and shall notify the Owner’s Representative of 
any discrepancy before performing any work. 

D. Spare Accessory Storage:  A cabinet shall be provided for storage of equipment 
accessories as necessary, including spare fuses, fuse tongs, switch sticks, and other tools 
and located where indicated.  Shelves or other appropriate supporting methods shall 
provide an individual space for each type of item stored. 

E. Equipment Installation 

1. Equipment Finishes:  Equipment shall be carefully installed so as not to scratch 
finishes.  After installation, finished surfaces shall be inspected and scratches 
touched up with a finish provided by the manufacturer especially for this 
purpose. 

2. Supports:  Enclosures and enclosure supports shall be installed in accordance 
with manufacturer's instructions.  Supports shall consist of anchored channels 
leveled and then embedded in the concrete foundation.  Channels, anchors, 
shims, or other leveling items shall be installed in accordance with the 
recommendations of the equipment manufacturer. 

3. Incoming Line Surge Arresters:  Surge arresters of the [station] type shall be 
provided on each phase of each incoming line circuit, and mounted on station 
structures as shown. 

F. Manufacturer’s Field Service 

1. Onsite Training:  The Contractor shall conduct a training course for the operating 
staff as designated by the Owner’s Representative.  The training period shall 
consist of a total of 48 hours of normal working time and shall start after the 
system is functionally completed but prior to final acceptance tests.  The course 
instruction shall cover pertinent points involved in operating, starting, stopping, 
servicing the equipment, as well as all major elements of the operation and 
maintenance manuals.  Additionally, the course instructions shall demonstrate all 
routine maintenance operations.   

2. Installation Engineer:  After delivery of the equipment, the Contractor shall 
furnish one or more field engineers, regularly employed by the equipment 
manufacturer to supervise the installation of the equipment, assist in the 
performance of the onsite tests, initial operation, and instruct personnel as to the 
operational and maintenance features of the equipment. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 32 

G. Acceptance:  Final acceptance of the facility will not be given until the Contractor has 
successfully completed all tests and after all defects in installation material or operation 
have been corrected. 

3.13 SLEEVES, INSERTS, AND SUPPORTS 

A. Furnish and install all inserts, conduit hangers, anchors and steel supports necessary for the 
support and installation of all electrical equipment. 

B. Where openings are required in walls and floors for the passing of raceways, the openings shall 
be by the Electrical Contractor in such a manner so as not to interfere with the fireproof 
integrity of the building. 

C. The Electrical Contractor is responsible for the location of - and maintaining the proper position 
of sleeves - inserts and anchor bolts supplied and/or set in place. 

3.14 SALVAGE 

A. The Electrical Contractor shall remove all electrical equipment not to be used. 

B. All electrical equipment removed and deemed salvageable by the Owner shall be stored in an 
area designated by the Owner. 

C. Any electrical equipment removed that is not desired by the Owner shall be disposed of at the 
expense of the Electrical Contractor. 

 

3.15 SUPPORTS AND ATTACHMENTS 

A. Boxes and pendants for surface-mounted fixtures shall be supported in an approved manner. 
Boxes and supports shall be fastened with bolts and expansion shields on concrete or brick, with 
toggle bolts on hollow masonry units, with machine screws on steel work with locknuts. 
Threaded studs shall be provided with lock-washers and nuts. 

3.16 QUIET OPERATION 

A. All equipment and material furnished by the Electrical Contractor shall operate under all 
conditions of load without objectionable noises or vibrations, which, in the opinion of the 
Engineer, is objectionable. Where sound or vibration conditions arise which are considered 
objectionable by the Engineer, the Electrical Contractor shall eliminate same in a manner 
approved by the Engineer. 

3.17 TESTING, INSPECTION AND CLEANING 

A. Furnish all labor, material, instruments, supplies, and services and bear all costs for the 
accomplishment of tests herein specified. Correct all defects appearing under test.  Repeat the 
tests until no defects are disclosed. Leave the equipment clean and ready for use. 

B. The Electrical Contractor shall perform any test other than herein specified which may be 
specified by legal authorities or by agencies to whose requirements this work is to conform. 



Town of Medfield Public Library 
Fire Alarm Replacement 
Medfield, Massachusetts 

 

 
ELECTRICAL 

26 00 00 - 33 

C. Test system free from short circuits and grounds with insulation resistances not less than 
outlines in the National Electrical Code. Provide testing equipment necessary and conduct test 
in presence of the Owner's authorized representative. 

D. Test and inspect work provided under this Section as required by Contract Documents, codes, 
standards and authorities that have jurisdiction, to satisfaction of Engineer.  Notify Engineer and 
authorities at least 48 hours before testing or inspection.  Do not cover work before testing or 
inspection. 

E. Furnish Engineer with certificates of testing and inspection for electrical systems, indicating 
approval of authorities that have jurisdiction and conformance with requirements of Contract 
Documents. 

F. Verify and correct as necessary:  voltages, tap settings, trip settings and phasing on equipment 
from secondary distribution system to points of use.  Test secondary voltages at bus in main 
switchboard, at panelboards, and at other locations on distribution systems as necessary.  Test 
secondary voltages under no-load and full-load conditions. 

G. Provide necessary testing equipment and testing. 

H. Failure or defects in workmanship or materials revealed by tests or inspection shall be corrected 
promptly and retested.  Replace defective material. 

I. Equipment 

1. After completion of project, clean the exterior surface of equipment included in this 
section, including concrete residue. 

J. The electrical contractor shall provide complete certification of completion for the fire alarm 
system prior to final inspection and testing. 

K. The final inspection and test shall include the following: 

1. Testing of the Fire Alarm System in accordance with code and the local AHJ. 
 

 
END OF SECTION 



12

A

10987653 421 11

L

M

J

K

H

G

F

D

E

C

B

13 14 15 16

Drawing No.:

Client:

Project:

ME
DF

IE
LD

 P
UB

LIC
 LI

BR
AR

Y
 F

IR
E 

AL
AR

M 
UP

GR
AD

E
46

8 M
ain

 S
t, M

ed
fie

ld,
 M

A

Submission:

THIS MATERIAL IS CONFIDENTIAL
AND MAY NOT BE DISCLOSED

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
AUTHORIZATION

FROM BLW ENGINEERS INC.
COPYRIGHT BLW ENGINEERS INC.

Seal:

Revision:

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

BID SET

24311

AS NOTED

Project No.:

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
459 MAIN ST, MEDFIELD MA 02052

Scale:
Checked By:
Drawn By:

Title:

CM
RG

311 Great Road, Post Office Box 1551

www.blwengineers.com
T: 978.486.4301  F: 978.428.0067

Littleton, Massachusetts 01460

BLW Engineers, Inc.

HVAC * Electrical * Plumbing * Fire Protection

12/18/2024

TITLE SHEET

TS

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
PUBLIC LIBRARY

FIRE ALARM PROJECT
Town of Medfield
459 Main Street

Medfield, MA 02052

                DRAWING INDEX:

TS - TITLE SHEET
FA-001 - LEGEND, RISER DIAGRAM, AND DETAILS
FAD-100 - FIRE ALARM DEMOLITION - ALL FLOORS
FA-100 - FIRE ALARM PROPOSED - ALL FLOORS



FIRE ALARM
TYPICAL DEVICE ANNOTATION:
          "15" INDICATES CANDELA RATING

AUDIO / VISUAL DEVICE

VISUAL ONLY DEVICE
          "L" INDICATES WHITE LENS FOR FIRE
          "C" INDICATES AMBER LENS FOR CARBON MONOXIDE

CEILING MOUNTED AUDIO / VISUAL DEVICE

CEILING MOUNTED VISUAL ONLY DEVICE

MANUAL PULL STATION

SMOKE DETECTOR
          "D" INDICATES DUCT SMOKE DETECTOR
          "R" INDICATES ELEVATOR RECALL
          "NS" INDICATES NON-SYSTEM DEVICE, 120V HARDWIRED WITH BATTERY BACKUP

• • • • •• • • • • • • • ••• • • ••• • • • •• • •• •• • •• • • •
•••••••••••• •••• • •• • • • • •• • • ••• •• • • •• • • • • • • • • • •
          "C" INDICATED CONVENTIONAL
          "A" INDICATES MOUNTED ABOVE HUNG CEILING OR IN ATTIC SPACE

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM INTERFACE DEVICE
          "FS" INDICATES FLOW SWITCH MONITOR MODULE
          "TS" INDICATES TAMPER SWITCH MONITOR MODULE
          "PS" INDICATES PRESSURE SWITCH MONITOR MODULE
          "PIV" INDICATES POST INDICATOR VALVE MONITOR MODULE

FIRE ALARM DEVICE
          "FACP" INDICATES FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL
          "FABP" INDICATES FIRE ALARM BOOSTER PANEL
          "FATC" INDICATES FIRE ALARM TERMINAL CABINET
          "AES" INDICATES AES MESH NETWORK COMMUNICATOR, COORDINATE TYPE WITH LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT
          "ANN" INDICATES FIRE ALARM ANNUNCIATOR PANEL
          "DACT" INDICATES DIGITAL ALARM COMMUNICATOR TRANSMITTER
          "CELL" INDICATES CELLULAR COMMUNICATOR
          "RADIO" INDICATES RADIO COMMUNICATOR
          "AM" INDICATES ADDRESSABLE MODULE
          "CM" INDICATES CONTROL MODULE
          "MM" INDICATES MONITOR MODULE
          "KB" INDICATES KEY BOX
          "FE" INDICATES FIRE EXTINGUISHER

FIRE ALARM ANNUNCIATION DEVICE
          "B" INDICATES ALARM BELL, 120V HARDWIRED, EXTERIOR MOUNTED, WEATHERPROOF
          "F" INDICATES RED INDICATING BEACON, EXTERIOR MOUNTED, WEATHERPROOF
          "R" INDICATES REMOTE AREA LED INDICATOR

FIRE ALARM MASTERBOX, COORDINATE TYPE WITH LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT

15F

L 15

15F

L 15
F

RS

H F

FS

FACP

F

M

EXISTING EQUIPMENT DESIGNATIONS
X EXISTING TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE ALL ASSOCIATE CONDUIT AND CONDUCTORS

XM EXISTING TO REMAIN

XN EXISTING EQUIPMENT TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW, CONNECT NEW EQUIPMENT TO EXISTING CIRCUIT

XR EXISTING EQUIPMENT TO BE RELOCATED, JUNCTION AND EXTEND EXISTING CONDUIT AND CONDUCTORS

XC
NEW EQUIPMENT TO BE CONNECTED TO NEAREST AVAILABLE BRANCH CIRCUIT, PROVIDE NEW BRANCH CIRCUITRY FROM
NEAREST EXISTING DEVICE (TO REMAIN) TO NEW DEVICE AS REQUIRED

XL NEW LOCATION OF EXISTING EQUIPMENT, JUNCTION AND EXTEND CONDUIT AND CONDUCTORS AS REQUIRED

ELEVATOR RECALL WIRING DETAIL

NOTES:

1. SEND ELEVATOR RECALL SIGNAL TO ELEVATOR CONTROL PANEL WHEN SMOKE DETECTORS IN
ELEVATOR LOBBY OR ELEVATOR SHAFT GO INTO ALARM.

2. SEND A UNIQUE ELEVATOR RECALL SIGNAL TO ELEVATOR CONTROL PANEL WHEN SMOKE
DETECTOR(S) IN PIT GO INTO ALARM TO SEND THE ELEVATOR AWAY FROM THE PIT.

3. ELEVATOR CONTROLLER SHALL INITIATE ELEVATOR RECALL.

FACP

FACP

FACP

FACP

ELEV C

ELEV C

ELEV C

ELEV C

FACP

FACP

ELEV C

FACP

ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM

N.T.S.

ELEVATOR
LOBBY (TYP)

ELEVATOR
CONTROLLER BY
OTHERS

5

S
R

S
R

S
R

S
R

S
RR

RTS

ELEVATOR PIT

N.T.S.TYPICAL ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM, PIT & SHAFT
DETAILS

J

S
R

NOTE:

1. PROVIDE AND INSTALL (5) ADDRESSABLE CONTROL/MONITOR MODULE DEVICES.
1.1. ONE TO INITIATE ELEVATOR RECALL TO PRIMARY FLOOR.
1.2. ONE TO DIRECT RECALL TO ALTERNATE FLOOR.
1.3. ONE TO SIGNAL MACHINE ROOM SMOKE
1.4. ONE TO SIGNAL FIREMANS HAT
1.5. ONE TO CONTROL SMOKE DAMPER AT TOP OF ELEVATOR SHAFT

2. • • • • •• • •• • • •• • • • •• • • • • •• • • •• • • • • •• • • • • • •• • •• • • •• • •• • • • • • • • •• • • • • •••• • • • • • •• • • • • •• • •• • • • • • • • • •
• • •• • • • •• • • • •• • • •• • • •• • •• • •• • • • • •• • • • • • • • •• • •• • • • • • • • •• • • • •• • •• • • • ••• • •• • •• •• • • • • • •••• • • • •• •
CONTROL WIRING FROM DAMPER MOTOR TO FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL, REFER TO FIRE ALARM RISER.

ELEVATOR
MACHINE RM

TOP OF SHAFT

120V

FSD

CM
CM
CM
CM

CM

NOTE 2

2

3
4" CONDUIT WITH

PULLWIRE TO FACP

NOTE 1

TYPICAL FIRE ALARM DEVICE LABELING DETAIL

NOTES:

1. AT A MINIMUM, ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TYPED LABELS WITH PTOUCH MACHINE
TO INDICATE ADDRESS OF FIRE ALARM DEVICE WITHIN ENCLOSED ROOM OR ROOM NUMBER IF
SYSTEMS IS ZONED.  LABELING SYSTEM SHALL BE APPLIED BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING
DEVICES:  AUDIBLE/VISUAL DEVICE, VISUAL DEVICE, SMOKE DETECTOR, REMOTE TEST STATION,
REMOTE ALARM INDICATOR, FLOW SWITCH, TAMPER SWITCH, ETC.

ADDRESS/RM NUMBER

N.T.S.4TYPICAL DUCT SMOKE DETECTOR MOUNTING DETAIL

NOTES:

1. REFER TO MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR EXACT LOCATION OF ALL HVAC UNITS AND DUCTWORK.
DUCT TYPE SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LOCATED AS IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 72 AND
COORDINATED WITH MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR.

2. TO AUXILIARY CONTACTS IN RESPECTIVE AIR-HANDLING UNIT STARTER FOR UNIT SHUTDOWN ON
ALARM.  DUCT SMOKE DETECTOR SHALL BE PROVIDED AND WIRED BY ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR,
INSTALLED BY MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR.  DUCT SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE:

• SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN RETURN AIR SYSTEMS WITH A DESIGN CAPACITY
GREATER THAN 2,000 CFM, IN THE RETURN AIR DUCT OR PLENUM UPSTREAM OF ANY FILTERS,
EXHAUST AIR CONNECTIONS, OUTDOOR AIR CONNECTIONS, OR DECONTAMINATION
EQUIPMENT AND APPLIANCES.

• WHERE RETURN AIR RISERS SERVE TWO OR MORE STORIES AND SERVE ANY PORTION OF A
RETURN AIR SYSTEM HAVING A DESIGN CAPACITY GREATER THAN 15,000 CFM, SMOKE
DETECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED AT EACH STORY.  SUCH SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE
LOCATED UPSTREAM OF THE CONNECTION BETWEEN THE RETURN AIR RISER AND ANY AIR
DUCTS OR PLENUMS.

• SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN THE SUPPLY AIR SYSTEM FOR ALL MAKE-UP AIR
UNITS WITH A DESIGN CAPACITY GREATER THAN 2,000 CFM AS IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 90A.

HVAC UNIT

RF SFRETURN DUCT

CP

S
D

CM

IR 120V POWER SUPPLY
CIRCUIT (TYP)

SUPPLY DUCT

N.T.S.

HVAC UNIT STARTER

HVAC UNIT POWER
SUPPLY FEEDER

HVAC UNIT
DISCONNECT

3

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE GROUNDING DETAIL N.T.S.

UL LISTED GROUND CONNECTOR,
BURNDY No. GAR390_-BU (TYP)

HYDRAULIC COMPRESSION
FITTING

CONDUIT FROM ELECTRIC SERVICE ENTRANCE,
REFER TO POWER RISER DIAGRAM FOR
CONDUIT AND GROUNDING CONDUCTOR SIZE

6

N.T.S.DEVICE MOUNTING HEIGHT DETAIL1

4'-0"

*7'-6"

**6'-8"

FIRE ALARM
AUDIO/VISUAL DEVICE
*WHICHEVER IS LOWER

FIRE ALARM
VISUAL DEVICE
**NOT GREATER
THAN 96" NOT
LESS THAN 80"

FIRE ALARM
PULL STATION 5'-0" MAX TO EXIT DOOR

DOOR WIDTH LESS 3"

5"

A/C SUPPLY OR
RETURN DIFFUSER3'-0" MINIMUM

MAGNETIC
DOOR HOLDER

**8'-0"

CEILING MOUNTED
SMOKE/HEAT DETECTOR

*6"

NEVER HERE

ACCEPTED HERE

4"

FINISHED
FLOOR

FINISHED
CEILING

12" MAX
TO TOP OF
SENSORWALL MOUNTED

SMOKE/HEAT DETECTOR

FIRE ALARM
CONTROL PANEL

BATTERY BACKUP

MAIN COMM
EQUIPMENT
MOUNTING

BOARDJ

120V

FIRST FLOOR

F

34#18-1"C(COMMUNICATION)
3#12-1/2"C(120VOLT POWER)

KB

RG213 ANTENNA CABLE 1" RGS

ONE PHONE LINE AND ONE
OTHER TECHNOLOGY

TO
ROOF

120V

5

6

FIRE ALARM RISER DIAGRAM NOTES:

1. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CIRCUIT BREAKER HANDLE-LOCK ON ALL 120 VOLT
FIRE ALARM POWER CIRCUITS.  HANDLE LOCK SHALL ALLOW THE CIRCUIT BREAKER TO TRIP,
BUT PREVENT SWITCHING OF THE CIRCUIT BREAKER TO THE "OFF" POSITION.

2. PROVIDE SMOKE DETECTOR IN VICINITY (WITHIN 2'-0") OF FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL,  AND
ALL FIRE ALARM BOOSTER PANELS AND COMMUNICATORS.  SMOKE DETECTORS IN ELEVATOR
LOBBY SHALL BE PROGRAMMED AND/OR PROVIDED WITH ELEVATOR RECALL CAPABILITY.

3. RISER DIAGRAM DOES NOT SHOW ENTIRE SYSTEM.  REFER TO FLOOR PLANS FOR EXACT
QUANTITIES AND LOCATIONS OF ALL SYSTEM DEVICES.

4. NOT USED

5. PROVIDE SURFACE MOUNTED  KEY BOX.  ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PURCHASE
THROUGH LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT.

6. PROVIDE A 20AMP, 120VOLT, 1 PHASE SURGE PROTECTOR EQUAL TO MCG SURGE PROTECTION
MODEL NO. 415. SURGE PROTECTOR SHALL BE INSTALLED BETWEEN THE CIRCUIT BREAKER IN
THE PANEL AND THE FIRE ALARM PANEL, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S WIRING
RECOMMENDATIONS.

7. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ALL REQUIRED POWER
SUPPLIES FOR A COMPLETE AND OPERABLE SYSTEM. POWER SUPPLY CALCULATIONS SHALL BE
INCLUDED IN FIRE ALARM SHOP DRAWINGS.

8. PROVIDE (5) CONTROL/MONITOR MODULES FOR ELEVATOR INTERFACE, REFER TO TYPICAL
ELEVATOR DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL CARRY 10 TAMPER/FLOW CONNECTIONS AND COORDINATE EXACT
QUANTITY  IN THE FIELD.

10. EXISTING AES AND ANTENNA TO BE REUSED, AS WELL AS EXISTING CONDUCTORS FOR
CONNECTION TO FACP.

#

FIRE ALARM RISER DIAGRAM
N.T.S.

DACT

F L

CELL
RADIO

S
2

SECOND FLOOR

AES

BASEMENT

ROOF

F L

120V FIRE ALARM
BOOSTER PANEL 7 TYP

(2) 2" CONDUIT

120V FIRE ALARM
BOOSTER PANEL

F S

F L

S
2

S

RTS

R

FSD
120V

TOP OF
ELEVATOR

SHAFT

TO CONTROL MODULE IN
ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM

C

RTS

R

3

1 TYP

F S

F S
ELEVATOR
INTERFACE

TO ALARM BELL

CM MM

FS

MM

TS

MM

PS

(5)

8

9

SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS INPUT / OUTPUT MATRIX
SYSTEM OUTPUTS CONTROL UNIT

ANNUNCIATION NOTIFICATION REQUIRE LIFE
SAFETY CONTROL

FIRE ALARM SYSTEM
OPERATION SCHEDULE

AC
TU

AT
E 

CO
MM

ON
 A

LA
RM

 S
IG

NA
L I

ND
IC

AT
OR

AC
TU

AT
E 

AU
DI

BL
E 

AL
AR

M 
SI

GN
AL

AC
TU

AT
E 

CO
MM

ON
 S

UP
ER

VI
SO

RY
 S

IG
NA

L I
ND

IC
AT

OR
AC

TU
AT

E 
AU

DI
BL

E 
SU

PE
RV

IS
OR

Y 
SI

GN
AL

AC
TU

AT
E 

CO
MM

ON
 T

RO
UB

LE
 S

IG
NA

L I
ND

IC
AT

OR
AC

TU
AT

E 
AU

DI
BL

E 
CO

MM
ON

 T
RO

UB
LE

 S
IG

NA
L

AC
TU

AT
E 

FI
RE

 F
LO

OR
 A

LA
RM

 IN
DI

CA
TO

R
AC

TU
AT

E 
EV

AC
UA

TI
ON

 S
IG

NA
LS

 O
N 

AL
L F

LO
OR

S
AC

TU
AT

E 
LO

CA
L A

UD
IB

LE
 T

EM
P-

3 P
AT

TE
RN

 F
IR

E 
SI

GN
AL

AC
TU

AT
E 

LO
CA

L A
DA

 V
IS

UA
L A

LA
RM

AC
TU

AT
E 

EL
EV

AT
OR

 F
IR

E 
HA

T
DI

SP
LA

Y/
PR

IN
T 

CH
AN

GE
 O

F 
ST

AT
US

TR
AN

SM
IT

 F
IR

E 
AL

AR
M 

SI
GN

AL
 T

O 
SU

PE
RV

IS
IN

G 
ST

AT
IO

N
TR

AN
SM

IT
 S

UP
ER

VI
SO

RY
 S

IG
NA

L T
O 

SU
PE

RV
IS

IN
G 

ST
AT

IO
N

TR
AN

SM
IT

 T
RO

UB
LE

 S
IG

NA
L T

O 
SU

PE
RV

IS
OR

Y 
ST

AT
IO

N

SH
UT

 D
OW

N 
AL

L A
SS

OC
IA

TE
D 

HV
AC

 E
QU

IP
ME

NT

SYSTEM INPUTS A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

1 MANUAL FIRE ALARM BOXES • • • • • • • •
2 SMOKE DETECTORS • • • • • • • •
3 ELEVATOR LOBBY SMOKE DETECTORS • • • • • • • •
4 ELEVATOR LOBBY SMOKE ON PRIMARY RECALL FLOOR • • • • • • • •
5 ELEVATOR MACHINE SMOKE DETECTORS • • • • • • • •
6 WATERFLOW • • • • • • • •
7 SPRINKLER CONTROL VALVE • • • •
8 DUCT SMOKE DETECTORS • • • • •
9 CO DUCT DETECTORS • • • • •

10 FIRE ALARM AC POWER FAILURE • • • •
11 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM LOW BATTERY • • • •
12 OPEN CIRCUIT • • • •
13 GROUND FAULT • • • •
14 NOTIFICATION APPLIANCE SHORT CIRCUIT • • • •
15 SUPERVISORY • • • •
16 TROUBLE • • • •

NOTES:

1.  ALL EVENTS SHALL BE RECORDED AT THE FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL AND SHALL INDICATE TIME AND DATE OF OCCURRENCE AND
    LIST DEVICE INITIATED.

2.  TROUBLE AND SUPERVISORY SIGNALS SHALL BE MONITORED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 780CMR 903.4.1.

5

C

BOILER
ROOM

CONSTRUCTION TYPE SYMBOLS
CEILING HEIGHT AND TYPE SYMBOL
          "ACT" OR "DC" INDICATES ACOUSTICAL DROP CEILING TILE
          "GWB" INDICATES GYPSUM WALL BOARD
          "EXP" INDICATES EXPOSED TO DECK
          "HC" INDICATES HARD CEILING
          "CON" INDICATES CONCRETE

ACT
9'-0"

ALTERNATES
BASE BID ALL WIRING AND RACEWAY  SHALL BE CONCEALED. BASE BID WILL INCLUDE ALL CUTTING AND PATCHING.

DEDUCT ALT #1 SURFACE MOUNT CONDUIT WILL BE ALLOWED. ALL REQUIRED CUTTING AND PATCHING WILL BE INCLUDED.

* IN BOTH CASES EXISTING RACEWAY MAY BE REUSED, IF EXISTING RACEWAY MEETS CODE REQUIREMENT.

12

A

10987653 421 11

L

M

J

K

H

G

F

D

E

C

B

13 14 15 16

Drawing No.:

Client:

Project:

ME
DF

IE
LD

 P
UB

LIC
 LI

BR
AR

Y
 F

IR
E 

AL
AR

M 
UP

GR
AD

E
46

8 M
ain

 S
t, M

ed
fie

ld,
 M

A

Submission:

THIS MATERIAL IS CONFIDENTIAL
AND MAY NOT BE DISCLOSED

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
AUTHORIZATION

FROM BLW ENGINEERS INC.
COPYRIGHT BLW ENGINEERS INC.

Seal:

Revision:

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

BID SET

24311

AS NOTED

Project No.:

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
459 MAIN ST, MEDFIELD MA 02052

Scale:
Checked By:
Drawn By:

Title:

CM
RG

311 Great Road, Post Office Box 1551

www.blwengineers.com
T: 978.486.4301  F: 978.428.0067

Littleton, Massachusetts 01460

BLW Engineers, Inc.

HVAC * Electrical * Plumbing * Fire Protection

12/18/2024

LEGEND, RISER
DIAGRAM, AND

DETAILS

FA-001



BATHROOM BATHROOM

REF DESK

CIRC DESK

DOWN

DOWN

UP

UP

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"2 First Floor - Demolition

L 15
X

F F 15
XX

L 15
X

L15
X

F

15

X

S
X

S
X

F

15

X

F

15

X

X

F
X

KB

X

FACP

X

L 15

FF15
X X

S
R

X

S
R

X

F15
X

S
X

F F 15
XX

F 15
X

S
X

FACP IN MEZZANINE
BETWEEN GROUND
AND 1ST FLOOR

9'
HC

9'
DC

9'
DC

9'
DC

9'
DC

9'
DC

20'
HC

15'
HC

20'
HC

9'
HC

15'
HC

9'
DC

9'
HC

NOTES:
ALL WALLS GYPSUM WALL BOARD, WITH EXCEPTION OF CEMENT/BLOCK
WALLS IN BOILER, FIRE PUMP, CUSTODIAL, AND ELECTRICAL ROOMS ON
GROUND FLOOR.

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"3 Second Floor - Demolition

S
R

X

S
R

F

15

X
F15

X

F
X

S
X

S
X S

X

F 15
X

S
X

FF15
X X

F

15

X

L

15

X

S
X

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

20'
DC

20'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

UP

DESK

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

CUSTODIAN

EQUIPMENT

CONFERENCE ROOM

STUDY 1

ELEV MCHN
ROOM

STORAGESTUDY 3

ROLL DOWN PARTITION

BOILER ROOM

MEETING ROOM

DESK

STORAGE

FRIENDS ROOM KITCHEN

MAKERSPACE

FIRE PUMPELECTRIC ROOM

NOT AN EXIT

UP

F

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"1 Ground Floor - Demolition

F

15

FF15
FE

X X

XM

X
X

SSS
XXX

F

15

X

L15
X

F

15

X

F

15

X F

15

X

L 15
X

FF15
X X

F15
X

F X

S
X

F

15

X

F

75

X

F

15

X

L

15

X

S
X

S
R

X

S
X

L

15

X

L

15

X

S
X

9'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

S
X

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
HC

8'
HC

8'
HC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

8'
DC

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"4 Roof - Demolition

*FOR EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT IN FIELD

1. 8 RTUs PRESENT. ASSUME BOTH DUCT SMOKE DETECTORS AND DUCT CO DETECTORS TO BE
DEMOLISHED FOR ALL FOSSIL FUEL BURNING EQUIPMENT.

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

TYP 1

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

X X

12

A

10987653 421 11

L

M

J

K

H

G

F

D

E

C

B

13 14 15 16

Drawing No.:

Client:

Project:

ME
DF

IE
LD

 P
UB

LIC
 LI

BR
AR

Y
 F

IR
E 

AL
AR

M 
UP

GR
AD

E
46

8 M
ain

 S
t, M

ed
fie

ld,
 M

A

Submission:

THIS MATERIAL IS CONFIDENTIAL
AND MAY NOT BE DISCLOSED

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
AUTHORIZATION

FROM BLW ENGINEERS INC.
COPYRIGHT BLW ENGINEERS INC.

Seal:

Revision:

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

BID SET

24311

AS NOTED

Project No.:

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
459 MAIN ST, MEDFIELD MA 02052

Scale:
Checked By:
Drawn By:

Title:

CM
RG

311 Great Road, Post Office Box 1551

www.blwengineers.com
T: 978.486.4301  F: 978.428.0067

Littleton, Massachusetts 01460

BLW Engineers, Inc.

HVAC * Electrical * Plumbing * Fire Protection

12/18/2024

FIRE ALARM
DEMOLITION -
ALL FLOORS

FAD-100



SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"2 First Floor

BATHROOM BATHROOM

REF DESK

CIRC DESK

DOWN

DOWN

UP

UP

L 15

F F 15

L 15 L15

F

75

S

F

75

F

75

F

KB

FACP

FF15

S
R

S
R

F75

S

F F 75

F 75

S

S

S

S

F
COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION OF BEACON WITH FIRE DEPARTMENT

FACP IN MEZZANINE
BETWEEN GROUND
AND 1ST FLOOR

ANN

1

1. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN EXISTING 120V BRANCH CIRCUITRY FOR USE WITH
NEW FACP.

L 15

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"3 Second Floor

S
R

F

15

F15

F

F 15

FF15

F

15

L

15

L

15

S S

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"1 Ground Floor

UP

DESK

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

CUSTODIAN

EQUIPMENT

CONFERENCE ROOM

STUDY 1

ELEV MCHN
ROOM

STORAGESTUDY 3

ROLL DOWN PARTITION

BOILER ROOM

MEETING ROOM

DESK

STORAGE

FRIENDS ROOM KITCHEN

MAKERSPACE

FIRE PUMPELECTRIC ROOM

NOT AN EXIT

UP

F

F

75

FF75
FE

XM

S

F

75

L15

F

75

F

75

F

75

L 75

FF75

F75

F

S

F

75

F

75

F

15

L

15

SS
R

S

L

15

L

15

S

L

15

S

FS

TS

PS

1. LOCATION OF TAMPER, FLOW, AND PRESSURE SWITCHES TO BE CONFIRMED IN THE FIELD.

1

CM
CM

CM

C

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"4 Roof

*FOR EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT IN FIELD

1. 8 RTUs PRESENT. PROVIDE BOTH DUCT SMOKE DETECTORS AND DUCT CO DETECTORS FOR
ALL FOSSIL FUEL BURNING EQUIPMENT. IN THE EVENT OF ALARM UNIT SHALL BE SHUT
DOWN.

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

TYP 1

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

RTU

S
D

RTS

C
D

RTS

12

A

10987653 421 11

L

M

J

K

H

G

F

D

E

C

B

13 14 15 16

Drawing No.:

Client:

Project:

ME
DF

IE
LD

 P
UB

LIC
 LI

BR
AR

Y
 F

IR
E 

AL
AR

M 
UP

GR
AD

E
46

8 M
ain

 S
t, M

ed
fie

ld,
 M

A

Submission:

THIS MATERIAL IS CONFIDENTIAL
AND MAY NOT BE DISCLOSED

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
AUTHORIZATION

FROM BLW ENGINEERS INC.
COPYRIGHT BLW ENGINEERS INC.

Seal:

Revision:

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

BID SET

24311

AS NOTED

Project No.:

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
459 MAIN ST, MEDFIELD MA 02052

Scale:
Checked By:
Drawn By:

Title:

CM
RG

311 Great Road, Post Office Box 1551

www.blwengineers.com
T: 978.486.4301  F: 978.428.0067

Littleton, Massachusetts 01460

BLW Engineers, Inc.

HVAC * Electrical * Plumbing * Fire Protection

12/18/2024

FIRE ALARM
PROPOSED -
ALL FLOORS

FA-100





























































B-1

AMENDMENT NO. 2

TO

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN SERVICES

Between

TOWN OF MEDFIELD
Medfield Town House

459 Main Street
Medfield, MA 02052

And

BETA GROUP, INC.
701 George Washington Highway

Lincoln, RI 02865

For

Council on Aging Garage Design
Medfield, MA

THIS AMENDMENT No. 2 made this 31st Day of January 2025, between the Town of Medfield,
hereinafter called the “TOWN”, and BETA Group, Inc., hereinafter called the “CONSULTANT”,
amends the “AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN SERVICES” BETWEEN TOWN and CONSULTANT
for Council on Aging Garage Design, dated July 20, 2024, and Amendment No. 1, dated October 9,
2024.

WHEREAS, the during the design of the PROJECT additional time is required to complete the
services of the CONSULTANT, and

WHEREAS, TOWN and CONSULTANT have mutually agreed that the Contract Term is required to
be amended;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter contained, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

AMENDMENT

A.) Amend PARAGRAPH 5 CONTRACT TERM as follows:
Revised the Contract Term end date of January 31, 2025 to July 31, 2025.

All terms and conditions of the AGREEMENT and all prior AMENDMENTS remain in full force
except as specifically modified by this AMENDMENT NO. 2.



B-2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Amendment the day and
year first written above.

MEDFIELD SELECT BOARD BETA GROUP, INC.

By: By: ________________________

By:    Title: President & CEO

By:

TOWN OF MEDFIELD

Kristine Trierweiler, Town Administrator

Approved as to Form:

Mark G. Cerel, Town Attorney











�

�

�

72:1�2)�0('),(/'��0$66$&+86(776�

�
$*5((0(17�)25�352)(66,21$/�(1*,1((5,1*�6(59,&(6���

5(��6,7(�3/$1�)25�02'8/$5�72�%(�/2&$7('�$7�+,1./(<�321'�

�
&2175$&7�����

�

67$7(�&2175$&7����LI�DSSOLFDEOH��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�

7KLV�&RQWUDFW�LV�PDGH�WKLV��� ���GD\�RI��0DUFK��������E\�DQG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�7RZQ�RI�0HGILHOG��
D� 0XQLFLSDO� &RUSRUDWLRQ�� GXO\� RUJDQL]HG� XQGHU� WKH� ODZV� RI� WKH� &RPPRQZHDOWK� RI�
0DVVDFKXVHWWV� DQG� KDYLQJ� D� XVXDO�SODFH�RI�EXVLQHVV�DW� WKH�0HGILHOG�7RZQ�+RXVH������
0DLQ�6WUHHW�LQ�VDLG�0HGILHOG��0$��������KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV�WKH��7RZQ���DQG�%(7$�
*URXS��,QF��RI�����*HRUJH�:DVKLQJWRQ�+LJKZD\��/LQFROQ��5,��������KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�
DV�WKH���&RQWUDFWRU����

:,71(66('��

:KHUHDV��WKH�7RZQ�UHTXHVWHG�D�SURSRVDO�IRU�D�VLWH�GHVLJQ�IRU�D�PRGXODU�XQLW�WR�EH�ORFDWHG�
DW�+LQNOH\�3RQG�KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV��3URJUDP���DQG�

:KHUHDV�� WKH� &RQWUDFWRU� VXEPLWWHG� D� 3URSRVDO� WR� SHUIRUP� WKH� ZRUN� UHTXLUHG� IRU� WKH�
3URJUDP��DQG�WKH�7RZQ�KDV�GHFLGHG�WR�DZDUG�WKH�FRQWUDFW�WKHUHIRUH�WR�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU��

12:��7+(5()25��WKH�7RZQ�DQG�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHH�DV�IROORZV��

��� &RQWUDFW�'RFXPHQWV��7KH�&RQWUDFW�'RFXPHQWV�FRQVLVW�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�WRJHWKHU�
ZLWK� WKH�SURSRVDO� IRU�6FRSH�RI�:RUN�DQG�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�RQO\���$WWDFKPHQW�$���7KH�
&RQWUDFW� 'RFXPHQWV� FRQVWLWXWH� WKH� HQWLUH� $JUHHPHQW� EHWZHHQ� WKH� SDUWLHV�
FRQFHUQLQJ� WKH�VHUYLFHV�DQG�DOO�DUH�DV�IXOO\�D�SDUW�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�DV�LI�DWWDFKHG�
KHUHWR�� ,Q� WKH�HYHQW�RI�FRQIOLFWLQJ�SURYLVLRQV��WKH�ODQJXDJH�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�VKDOO�
JRYHUQ�SURYLGHG�WKDW�LI�WKH�FRQIOLFW�UHODWHV�WR�TXDQWLW\�RU�TXDOLW\�RI�JRRGV�RU�VHUYLFHV��
WKH�JUHDWHU�TXDQWLW\�RU�KLJKHU�TXDOLW\�VSHFLILHG�VKDOO�EH�UHTXLUHG��

Â�
�



��� 6FRSH�RI�6HUYLFHV��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�IXUQLVK�VHUYLFHV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�3URJUDP�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�6FRSH�RI�6HUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH�ZRUN�SODQ��$WWDFKPHQW�$���
DV�ZHOO�DV��DOO�VHUYLFHV�QHFHVVDU\�RU�LQFLGHQWDO�WKHUH�WR��

�
��� 3HUIRUPDQFH�RI�:RUN��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�IXUQLVK�DOO�HTXLSPHQW��VWDIILQJ��
DQG� PDWHULDOV� WR� DFFRPSOLVK� WKH� 3URJUDP� LQ� VWULFW� FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�DOO�DSSOLFDEOH�
)HGHUDO�� 6WDWH�� DQG� ORFDO� ODZV�� HDFK� RI� ZKLFK� LV� LQFRUSRUDWHG�E\� UHIHUHQFH�DQG�
VKDOO�EH� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU�REWDLQLQJ�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�DSSURYDOV�SHUPLWV�DV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�
WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�3URJUDP��

��� 5HFHLYDEOH��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�GHOLYHU�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�SURSRVDO�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�
$WWDFKPHQW�$��

��� &RQWUDFW�7HUP��,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�VFKHGXOH�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�7RZQ�DQG�WR�H[SLUH�
'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ 7KH� SURMHFW� VKDOO� FRPPHQFH� DQG� EH� FRPSOHWHG� ZLWKLQ� WKH�
FRQWUDFW�WHUP�GDWHV��

��� 3D\PHQW� IRU�:RUN��7KH�7RZQ�VKDOO�SD\�IRU�WKH�3URJUDP�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
SULFLQJ� LQ� $WWDFKPHQW� $�� 7RZQ� ZLOO� PDNH� SD\PHQWV� WR�&RQWUDFWRU�EDVHG�XSRQ�
ZRUN� FRPSOHWHG�� 7KH� &RQWUDFWRU� WR� 7RZQ� VKDOO� VXEPLW� PRQWKO\� LQYRLFHV� IRU�
SD\PHQW�RI�WKH�3URJUDP��7KH�7RZQ�VKDOO�PDNH�SD\PHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKLUW\������GD\V�
DIWHU� LWV� UHFHLSW� RI� WKH� LQYRLFH�� $OO� DGGLWLRQDO� VHUYLFHV� ZLOO� UHTXLUH� D� FRQWUDFW�
DPHQGPHQW� VLJQHG� E\� WKH� %RDUG� RI� 6HOHFWPHQ� FRPSOHWHG� LQ� DGYDQFH� RI� WKH�
DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�WR�SURFHHG��

��� ,QGHPQLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�7RZQ��7KH�7RZQ
V�OLDELOLW\�KHUHXQGHU�VKDOO�EH�OLPLWHG�WR�WKH�
DPRXQWV�GXH�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�IRU�VHUYLFHV�DFWXDOO\�UHQGHUHG��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�
GHIHQG�� LQGHPQLI\�DQG�KROG�KDUPOHVV�WKH�7RZQ��LWV�RIILFHUV��ERDUGV��DJHQWV�DQG�
HPSOR\HHV��WR�PD[LPXP�H[WHQW�SHUPLWWHG�E\�ODZ��IURP�DQ\�OLDELOLW\�ORVV��GDPDJH��
FRVW��FKDUJH��RU�H[SHQVH��EXW�RQO\�WR�WKH�H[WHQW��WKH\�UHVXOW�IURP�DQ\�HPSOR\HHV�
RU� WKLUG� SDUW\� FRQWUDFWRU� RU� VXSSOLHU
V� FODLP� IRU� SD\PHQW� IRU� ZDJHV�� ODERU��
PDWHULDOV��JRRGV�RU�VHUYLFHV�UHQGHUHG�WR�&RQWUDFWRU�RU�IURP�DQ\�FODLP�IRU�LQMXU\�
WR�SHUVRQ�RU�SURSHUW\��ZKLFK�DUHD� UHVXOW�RI�DQ\�DFW��RPLVVLRQ�RU�GHIDXOW�RQ�WKH�
SDUW�RI� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU��RU�DQ\�RI� LWV�DJHQWV�RU�HPSOR\HHV�� ,I�DQ\�VXFK�FODLP� LV�
PDGH�� WKH�7RZQ�PD\� UHWDLQ�RXW�RI�DQ\�SD\PHQWV��WKHQ�RU�WKHUHDIWHU�GXH�WR�WKH�
&RQWUDFWRU� D� VXIILFLHQW� DPRXQW� WR�SURWHFW� WKH�7RZQ�DJDLQVW� VXFK�FODLPV��FRVWV�
DQG�H[SHQVHV��

��� &RQWUDFWRU
V� 6WDQGDUG� RI� &DUH�� 7KH� &RQWUDFWRU� VKDOO� SHUIRUP� LWV� VHUYLFHV�DQG�
REOLJDWLRQV� KHUHXQGHU� LQ� FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK� WKH�VWDQGDUG�RI�SURIHVVLRQDO� VNLOO� DQG�
FDUH� DSSOLFDEOH� WR� HVWDEOLVKHG� (QJLQHHULQJ� &RQVXOWLQJ� $SSOLFDQWV� SHUIRUPLQJ�

Ã�
�



VLPLODU� VHUYLFHV�� &RQWUDFWRU� ZDUUDQWV� DQG� UHSUHVHQWV� WKDW� LW� LV� IDPLOLDU� ZLWK�
)HGHUDO�� 6WDWH�� DQG� ORFDO� UHJXODWLRQV� DV� ZHOO� DV� SULYDWH� LQGXVWU\� VWDQGDUGV��
UHODWLQJ� WR� URDGZD\�OD\RXW��GHVLJQ�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�LQWHUVHFWLRQV�DQG�
WUDIILF�FRQWUROV��VWRUPZDWHU��]RQLQJ��ODQGVFDSLQJ��DQG�KD]DUGRXV�PDWHULDOV���

��� &RQWUDFWRU
V� 3HUVRQQHO�� 7KH� &RQWUDFWRU¶V� HPSOR\HHV� DQG� &RQWUDFWRU¶V�
FRQVXOWDQWV�VKDOO�EH�WKRVH�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�$WWDFKPHQW�$�DQG�QR�RWKHUV�ZLWKRXW�SULRU�
ZULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�RI�7RZQ��

����/LDELOLW\�,QVXUDQFH�5HTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�DW�LWV�RZQ�H[SHQVH�REWDLQ�
DQG�PDLQWDLQ�D�3URIHVVLRQDO�/LDELOLW\�3ROLF\�FRYHULQJ�QHJOLJHQW�HUURU��RPLVVLRQV�
DQG� DFWV� RI� WKH� &RQWUDFWRU�� 7KH� 7RZQ� ZLOO� UHTXLUH� D� &HUWLILFDWH� RI� ,QVXUDQFH��
LQGLFDWLQJ� HYLGHQFH� RI� 3URIHVVLRQDO� /LDELOLW\�� *HQHUDO� /LDELOLW\�� $XWRPRELOH�
/LDELOLW\� ZLWK� PLQLPXP� OLPLWV�RI����������������DQG�RI�DQ\�SHUVRQ�RU�EXVLQHVV�
HQWLW\� IRU�ZKRVH�SHUIRUPDQFH� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU� LV� OHJDOO\� OLDEOH��DULVLQJ�RXW�RI�WKH�
SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��7KH�LQVXUDQFH�VKDOO�EH�LQ�IRUFH�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�
WKLV� $JUHHPHQW� XQWLO� WKH� H[SLUDWLRQ� RI� WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�SHULRG�RI� OLPLWDWLRQV��7KH�
&RQWUDFWRU� VKDOO� QRWLI\� WKH� 7RZQ� VKRXOG� FRYHUDJH� EHFRPH� XQDYDLODEOH� GXULQJ�
WKDW�SHULRG��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�REWDLQ�DQG�SURYLGH�D�FHUWLILFDWH�RI�LQVXUDQFH�IRU�
HDFK�FRQVXOWDQW�HPSOR\HG�RU�HQJDJHG�E\�&RQWUDFWRU��HYLGHQFLQJ�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�
RI�WKH�VDPH�W\SH�RI�SROLF\�DQG�FRYHUDJH��

7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�DOVR�PDLQWDLQ�OLDELOLW\�LQVXUDQFH�IRU�DOO�YHKLFOHV�
DQG�HTXLSPHQW��ZKLFK�LW�RZQV�RU�RSHUDWHV�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�
SURMHFW��

7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�DOVR�REWDLQ�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�LQ�IRUFH�ZRUNHU�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��
DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ��

&HUWLILFDWHV�HYLGHQFLQJ�WKDW�WKH�UHTXLUHG�LQVXUDQFH�FRYHUDJH�LV�LQ�HIIHFW�VKDOO�
EH�VXEPLWWHG�E\�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�WR�7RZQ�SULRU�WR�WKH�VLJQLQJ�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��
$Q\�FDQFHOODWLRQ�RI�LQVXUDQFH�ZKHWKHU�E\�WKH�LQVXUHUV�RU�E\�WKH�LQVXUHG�VKDOO�
QRW�EH�YDOLG�XQOHVV�ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�WKHUHRI�LV�JLYHQ�E\�WKH�SDUW\�SURSRVLQJ�
FDQFHOODWLRQ�WR�WKH�RWKHU�SDUW\�DQG�WR�7RZQ�DW�OHDVW�WKLUW\������GD\V�SULRU�WR�WKH�
LQWHQGHG�HIIHFWLYH�GDWH�WKHUHRI��ZKLFK�GDWH�VKDOO�EH�VWDWHG�LQ�VXFK�QRWLFH��

����,QGHSHQGHQW�&RQWUDFWRU��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRQWUDFWRU�DQG�LV�QRW�
DQ�DJHQW�RU�HPSOR\HH�RI�WKH�7RZQ�DQG�LV�QRW�DXWKRUL]HG�WR�DFW�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�
7RZQ��7KH�7RZQ�ZLOO�QRW�ZLWKKROG�)HGHUDO��6WDWH�RU�SD\UROO�WD[HV�RI�DQ\�NLQG��RQ�
EHKDOI�RI� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�RU� WKH�HPSOR\HHV�RI� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU��7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�

Ä�
�



QRW� HOLJLEOH� IRU�� DQG� VKDOO� QRW� SDUWLFLSDWH� LQ�� DQ\� HPSOR\HH� SHQVLRQ�� KHDOWK�RU�
RWKHU�IULQJH�EHQHILW�SODQ�RI�WKH�7RZQ��

����6XFFHVVRUV�DQG�$VVLJQV��7KLV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�ELQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHWR��WKHLU�
VXFFHVVRUV�� DVVLJQV� DQG� OHJDO� UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�� 1HLWKHU� WKH� 7RZQ� QRU� WKH�
&RQWUDFWRU� VKDOO� DVVLJQ� RU� WUDQVIHU� DQ\� LQWHUHVW� LQ� WKH� $JUHHPHQW� ZLWKRXW� WKH�
ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�RWKHU��

����,QVSHFWLRQ�DQG�5HSRUWV��7KH�7RZQ�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�ULJKW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�WR�LQVSHFW�WKH�
UHFRUGV�RI�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�UHODWLYH�WR�WKH�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�WR�WKH�7RZQ�SXUVXDQW�
WR�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��7KLV�VKDOO�LQFOXGH�WKH�ULJKW�WR�HQWHU�XSRQ�DQ\�SURSHUW\�RZQHG�
RU�RFFXSLHG�E\�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU��ZKHWKHU�VLWXDWHG�ZLWKLQ�RU�EH\RQG�WKH�OLPLWV�RI�WKH�
7RZQ�� 8SRQ� UHTXHVW� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO� LPPHGLDWHO\� IXUQLVK� WR� WKH�7RZQ�DQ\�
DQG� DOO� ZULWWHQ� UHSRUWV� UHODWLYH� WR� VXFK� VHUYLFHV� DULVLQJ� RXW� RI� LWV� RSHUDWLRQV�
XQGHU�WKLV�&RQWUDFW�GXULQJ�DQG�RU�DIWHU�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��

�

����$UELWUDWLRQ��2QO\� LI�0XWXDOO\�$JUHHG�8SRQ�&ODLPV��GLVSXWHV��RU�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�LQ�
TXHVWLRQ�EHWZHHQ� WKH�SDUWLHV� WR� WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�DULVLQJ�RXW�RI�RU�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKLV�
$JUHHPHQW�RU�EUHDFK�WKHUHRI�PD\�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�DQG�GHFLGHG�E\�DUELWUDWLRQ�RQO\�LI�
WKH�SDUWLHV�PXWXDOO\�DJUHH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�GR�VR��

����7HUPLQDWLRQ��

D�� )RU�&DXVH���7KH�7RZQ�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�ULJKW�WR�WHUPLQDWH�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�LI�
�L�� WKH� &RQWUDFWRU
V� QHJOHFWV� RU� IDLOV� WR� SHUIRUP� RU� REVHUYH� DQ\� RI� LWV�
REOLJDWLRQV�KHUHXQGHU�DQG�D�FXUH�LV�QRW�HIIHFWHG�E\�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�ZLWKLQ�
VHYHQ�����GD\V�QH[W�IROORZLQJ�LWV�UHFHLSW�RI�D�WHUPLQDWLRQ�QRWLFH�LVVXHG�E\�
WKH� 7RZQ�� �LL�� LI� DQ� RUGHU� LV�HQWHUHG�DJDLQVW� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�DSSURYLQJ�D�
SHWLWLRQ� IRU� DQ� DUUDQJHPHQW�� OLTXLGDWLRQ�� GLVVROXWLRQ� RU� VLPLODU� UHOLHI�
UHODWLQJ� WR�EDQNUXSWF\�RU� LQVROYHQF\�DQG�VXFK�RUGHU� UHPDLQV�XQYDFDWHG�
IRU� WKLUW\� ����� GD\V�� RU� �LLL�� LPPHGLDWHO\� LI� WKH� &RQWUDFWRU� VKDOO� ILOH� D�
YROXQWDU\� SHWLWLRQ� LQ� EDQNUXSWF\� RU� DQ\� SHWLWLRQ� RU� DQVZHU� VHHNLQJ� DQ\�
DUUDQJHPHQW�� OLTXLGDWLRQ�RU�GLVVROXWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�EDQNUXSWF\��LQVROYHQF\�
RU� RWKHU� UHOLHI� IRU� GHEWRUV� RU� VKDOO� VHHN� RU� FRQVHQW� RU� DFTXLHVFH� LQ�
DSSRLQWPHQW� RI� DQ\� WUXVWHH�� UHFHLYHU� RU� OLTXLGDWLRQ� RI� DQ\� RI� WKH�
&RQWUDFWRU
V�SURSHUW\��

7KH�7RZQ�VKDOO�SD\�DOO�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�VXSSRUWDEOH�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�SULRU�WR�
WHUPLQDWLRQ�� ZKLFK� SD\PHQW� VKDOO� QRW� H[FHHG� WKH� YDOXH� RI� VHUYLFHV�
SURYLGHG��

Å�
�



E�� )RU�&RQYHQLHQFH� ��7KH�7RZQ�PD\�WHUPLQDWH�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�
IRU�DQ\� UHDVRQ�XSRQ�VXEPLWWLQJ� WR�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�WKLUW\������GD\V�SULRU�D�
ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�RI�LWV�LQWHQWLRQ�WR�WHUPLQDWH��8SRQ�UHFHLSW�RI�VXFK�QRWLFH��WKH�
&RQWUDFWRU� VKDOO� LPPHGLDWHO\� FHDVH� WR� LQFXU� H[SHQVHV� SXUVXDQW� WR� WKLV�
$JUHHPHQW� XQOHVV� RWKHUZLVH� GLUHFWHG� LQ� WKH� 7RZQ
V� WHUPLQDWLRQ� QRWLFH��
7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�SURPSWO\�QRWLI\�WKH�7RZQ�RI�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�WR�GDWH�RI�
WHUPLQDWLRQ�DQG� WKH�7RZQ�VKDOO�SD\�DOO�VXFK�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�VXSSRUWDEOH�
FRVWV� ZKLFK� SD\PHQW� VKDOO� QRW� H[FHHG� WKH� XQSDLG� EDODQFH�GXH�RQ� WKLV�
$JUHHPHQW��

F�� 5HWXUQ�RI�3URSHUW\� ��8SRQ� WHUPLQDWLRQ�� WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�
UHWXUQ� WR� WKH� 7RZQ�� ZLWKRXW� OLPLWDWLRQ�� DOO� GRFXPHQWV� DQG� LWHPV� RI� DQ\�
QDWXUH�ZKDWHYHU��VXSSOLHG�WR�&RQWUDFWRU�E\�WKH�7RZQ�RU�GHYHORSHG�E\�WKH�
&RQWUDFWRU�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��

���� 1RWLFH�� $Q\� QRWLFH� UHTXLUHG� WR� EH� JLYHQ� WR�&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU� WKH� WHUPV�RI� WKLV�
$JUHHPHQW� VKDOO� EH� LQ�ZULWLQJ�DQG�VHQW�E\� UHJLVWHUHG�RU�FHUWLILHG�PDLO��SRVWDJH�
SUHSDLG�UHWXUQ�UHFHLSW�UHTXHVWHG��WR��%(7$�*URXS��,QF��RI�����*HRUJH�:DVKLQJWRQ�
+LJKZD\��/LQFROQ��5,�������RU�VXFK�RWKHU�DGGUHVV�DV�&RQWUDFWRU�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�
PD\�KDYH�GHVLJQDWHG�E\�ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�WR�WKH�7RZQ�DQG�VKDOO�EH�GHHPHG�WR�KDYH�
EHHQ� JLYHQ� ZKHQ�PDLOHG� E\� WKH� 7RZQ�� $Q\� QRWLFH� UHTXLUHG� WR�EH�JLYHQ� WR� WKH�
7RZQ�E\�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�$JUHHPHQW�VKDOO�EH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�DQG�
VHQW�E\�UHJLVWHUHG�RU�FHUWLILHG�PDLO��SRVWDJH�SUHSDLG��UHWXUQ�UHFHLSW�UHTXHVWHG�WR��
7RZQ� RI� 0HGILHOG�� $WWQ�� 7RZQ� $GPLQLVWUDWRU�� ���� 0DLQ� 6WUHHW�� 0HGILHOG��
0DVVDFKXVHWWV�������RU�VXFK�RWKHU�DGGUHVV�DV�WKH�7RZQ�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�PD\�
KDYH�GHVLJQDWHG�E\�ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�WR�WKH�&RQWUDFWRU�DQG�VKDOO�EH�GHHPHG�WR�KDYH�
EHHQ�JLYHQ�ZKHQ�PDLOHG�E\� WKH�7RZQ� WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�VLPXOWDQHRXV�FRS\�WR�0DUN�
*�� &HUHO�� 7RZQ� &RXQVHO�� DW�0HGILHOG�3URIHVVLRQDO�%XLOGLQJ��3RVW�2IILFH�%R[����
0HGILHOG��0$��������

����6HYHUDELOLW\��,I�DQ\�WHUP�RI�WKLV�&RQWUDFW�RU�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WKHUHRI�VKDOO�WR�DQ\�H[WHQW�
EH� KHOG� LQYDOLG�� LOOHJDO�RU�XQHQIRUFHDEOH�E\� WKH�FRXUW�RI� FRPSHWHQW� MXULVGLFWLRQ��
OHJDOLW\��DQG�HQIRUFHDELOLW\�RI�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�&RQWUDFW�
VKDOO� QRW� EH� GHHPHG� DIIHFWHG� WKHUHE\� XQOHVV� RQH� RU� ERWK� SDUWLHV� ZRXOG� EH�
VXEVWDQWLDOO\�RU�PDWHULDOO\�SUHMXGLFHG��

����*RYHUQLQJ�/DZ��7KH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKLV�&RQWUDFW�VKDOO�EH�JRYHUQHG��FRQVWUXHG�
DQG� HQIRUFHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� ODZV� RI� WKH� &RPPRQZHDOWK� RI�
0DVVDFKXVHWWV�� &ODLPV� DQG� 'LVSXWHV� DQG� 5HVROXWLRQ� 3URFHGXUH�� &ODLPV��
GLVSXWHV��RU�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�LQ�TXHVWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�7RZQ�DQG�&RQWUDFWRU�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�
SDUW\�FODLPLQJ�ULJKWV�XQGHU�WKLV�DJUHHPHQW�UHODWLQJ�WR�RU�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKH�3URMHFW��

Æ�
�



WKH�:RUN��RU�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�WHUPV�RI�WKH�&RQWUDFW�RU�&RQWUDFW�'RFXPHQWV�
VKDOO� EH� UHVROYHG� RQO\� E\� D� FLYLO� DFWLRQ� FRPPHQFHG� LQ� WKH�&RPPRQZHDOWK�RI�
0DVVDFKXVHWWV� LQ�HLWKHU� WKH�6XSHULRU�&RXUW�'HSDUWPHQW��1RUIRON�&RXQW\��RU�WKH�
'LVWULFW� &RXUW� 'HSDUWPHQW�� 'HGKDP� 'LYLVLRQ�� RI� 0DVVDFKXVHWWV� 7ULDO�&RXUW�� LQ�
WKH�DOWHUQDWLYH��SULYDWH�DUELWUDWLRQ�RU�PHGLDWLRQ�PD\�EH�HPSOR\HG� LI� WKH�SDUWLHV�
PXWXDOO\�DJUHH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�GR�VR��

����(QWLUH�$JUHHPHQW��7KLV�&RQWUDFW��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�LQFRUSRUDWHG�KHUHLQ�E\�
UHIHUHQFH��FRQVWLWXWHV� WKH�HQWLUH�LQWHJUDWHG�DJUHHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLHV�ZLWK�
UHVSHFW� WR� WKH� PDWWHUV� GHVFULEHG�� 7KLV� &RQWUDFW� VXSHUVHGHV� DOO� SULRU�
DJUHHPHQWV�� QHJRWLDWLRQV��HLWKHU�ZULWWHQ�RU�RUDO�DQG� LW� VKDOO�QRW�EH�PRGLILHG�RU�
DPHQGHG�H[FHSW�E\�D�ZULWWHQ�GRFXPHQW�H[HFXWHG�E\�WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHWR��

Ç�
�



�,1�:,71(66�:+(5(2)��WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHWR�KDYH�H[HFXWHG�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�RQ�WKLV�GD\�
DQG�\HDU�ILUVW�DERYH�ZULWWHQ��

��

�&RQWUDFWRU�� � � � � � � 6HOHFW�%RDUG�
�
�
%\��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� � � BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
7LWOH��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� � � BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
� � � �
� � � � � � � � BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�
� � � � � � � � �
� � �
� � � � � � �
$SSURYHG�DV�WR�)RUP����BBBBB�� � � � � 7RZQ�RI�0HGILHOG��0$��
� �
� � � � �
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�� ���BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
0DUN�*��&HUHO��7RZQ�$WWRUQH\� � � ��.ULVWLQH�7ULHUZHLOHU��7RZQ�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
� � � � �

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
È�

�
�



&(57,),&$7,21�2)�*22'�)$,7+�
�

7KH� XQGHUVLJQHG� FHUWLILHV� XQGHU� SDLQV� DQG� SHQDOWLHV� RI� SHUMXU\� WKDW� WKLV� FRQWUDFW� KDV� EHHQ� REWDLQHG�LQ�

JRRG� IDLWK� DQG�ZLWKRXW� FROOXVLRQ� RU� IUDXG�ZLWK� DQ\� RWKHU� SHUVRQ��� $V�XVHG�LQ�WKLV�FHUWLILFDWLRQ��WKH�ZRUG�

³SHUVRQ´� VKDOO�PHDQ� DQ\� QDWXUDO� SHUVRQ�� EXVLQHVV�� SDUWQHUVKLS�� FRUSRUDWLRQ�� XQLRQ�� FRPPLWWHH�� FOXE��RU�

RWKHU�RUJDQL]DWLRQ��HQWLW\��RU�JURXS�RI�LQGLYLGXDOV��

7KH�&RQWUDFWRU�E\�� � BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
� � � � 3ULQW�1DPH�
�
�
� � � � BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
� � � � 7LWOH�$XWKRULW\�
�

�

�

�

&(57,),&$7(�2)�67$7(�7$;�&203/,$1&(�

�

� 3XUVXDQW�WR�0DVVDFKXVHWWV�*HQHUDO�/DZV��&KDSWHU���&��6HFWLRQ���$�

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��DXWKRUL]HG�VLJQDWRU\�IRU��
�QDPH�RI�VLJQDWRU\�
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��ZKRVH��

��������������������������������QDPH�RI�FRQWUDFWRU�
�

SULQFLSDO�SODFH�RI�EXVLQHVV�LV�DW�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��

�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBGRHV�KHUHE\�FHUWLI\�XQGHU�WKH�SDLQV�DQG�SHQDOWLHV�RI�SHUMXU\�WKDW�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�KDV�SDLG�DOO��

QDPH�RI�FRQWUDFWRU�
�

0DVVDFKXVHWWV�WD[HV�DQG�KDV�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�DOO�ODZV�RI�WKH�&RPPRQZHDOWK�RI�0DVVDFKXVHWWV�UHODWLQJ�WR�
WD[HV��UHSRUWLQJ�RI�HPSOR\HHV�DQG�FRQWUDFWRUV��DQG�ZLWKKROGLQJ�DQG�UHPLWWLQJ�FKLOG�VXSSRUW��

�

� � � �
� � � �
� BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

6LJQDWXUH� � � �
� 'DWH� �

É�
�
�



(;$03/(�&/(5.¶6�&(57,),&$7(�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

$FWLRQ�RI�6KDUHKROGHUV�
:ULWWHQ�&RQVHQW�

�'DWH��
� 7KH�XQGHUVLJQHG��EHLQJ�WKH�6KDUHKROGHUV�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��D�0DVVDFKXVHWWV�
&RUSRUDWLRQ��WKH��&RUSRUDWLRQ���HQWLWOHG�WR�YRWH�RQ�WKH�DFWLRQ��KHUHE\�FRQVHQW�WR�WKH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�YRWHV��

927('�� 7KDW�WKH�>3UHVLGHQW�DQG�RU�WKH�9LFH�3UHVLGHQW�RU�QDPHG�LQGLYLGXDO@��HDFK�RI�WKHP�
DFWLQJ�VLQJO\�LV��DXWKRUL]HG�WR�H[HFXWH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�FRQWUDFW�GRFXPHQWV�DQG�WR�
HQWHU�LQWR�DQG�QHJRWLDWH�WKH�WHUPV�RI�DOO�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�VDPH�DQG�WR�
H[HFXWH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�GRFXPHQWV��LQVWUXPHQWV��DQG�DJUHHPHQWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�
HIIHFWXDWH�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�DQG�WKDW�VDLG�WUDQVDFWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�YDOLG��ELQGLQJ��
HIIHFWLYH��DQG�OHJDOO\�HQIRUFHDEOH��

� 927('�� 7KDW�WKH�RIILFHUV�DUH��DQG�HDFK�RI�WKHP�DFWLQJ�VLQJO\�LV��DXWKRUL]HG��IURP�WLPH�WR�
WLPH��LQ�WKH�QDPH�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�WR�WDNH�RU�FDXVH�WR�EH�WDNHQ�
DOO�VXFK�DFWLRQ�V��DV�V�KH�RU�WKH\��DV�WKH�FDVH�PD\�EH��GHHP�QHFHVVDU\��
DSSURSULDWH�RU�DGYLVDEOH�WR�HIIHFW�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�YRWHV��DV�PD\�EH�VKRZQ�E\�WKH�
RIILFHU�RU�RIILFHUV�H[HFXWLRQ�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�ZKLFK�VKDOO�EH�FRQFOXVLYH�HYLGHQFH�
WKDW�WKH�VDPH�LV�DXWKRUL]HG�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKLV�&RUSRUDWLRQ��

� 927('�� 7KDW�WKH�RIILFHUV�DUH��DQG�HDFK�RI�WKHP�DFWLQJ�VLQJO\�LV��DXWKRUL]HG��IURP�WLPH�WR�
WLPH��LQ�WKH�QDPH�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKLV�&RUSRUDWLRQ��XQGHU�LWV�FRUSRUDWH�VHDO��LI�
GHVLUHG��DWWHVWHG�E\�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�RIILFHU��LI�GHVLUHG��WR�H[HFXWH��PDNH�RDWK�WR��
DFNQRZOHGJH��GHOLYHU�DQG�ILOH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQWV��LQVWUXPHQWV��
FHUWLILFDWHV�DQG�GRFXPHQWV�UHIHUUHG�WR�RU�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�YRWHV��

� 927('�� 7KDW�WKH�RIILFHUV�DUH��DQG�HDFK�RI�WKHP�DFWLQJ�VLQJO\�LV��DXWKRUL]HG��IURP�WLPH�WR�
WLPH�DQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKLV�&RUSRUDWLRQ��XQGHU�LWV�FRUSRUDWH�VHDO��LI�GHVLUHG��WR�
H[HFXWH��DFNQRZOHGJH�DQG�GHOLYHU�DQ\�DQG�DOO�DJUHHPHQWV��LQVWUXPHQWV��
FHUWLILFDWHV�DQG�GRFXPHQWV�UHIHUUHG�WR�RU�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�YRWHV��ZLWK�VXFK�
FKDQJHV�DV�WKH�RIILFHU�RU�RIILFHUV�VR�DFWLQJ�PD\�GHHP�QHFHVVDU\�RU�GHVLUDEOH��
DQG�WKH�VLJQDWXUH�RI�VXFK�RIILFHU�RU�RIILFHUV�WR�EH�FRQFOXVLYH�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�WKH�
VDPH�LV�DXWKRUL]HG�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKLV�&RUSRUDWLRQ��

&OHUN�RI�&RUSRUDWLRQ�&HUWLILFDWH�
�
,��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�WKH�&OHUN�RI�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�FRUSRUDWLRQ��GR�KHUHE\�FHUWLI\�WKDW�WKH�
DERYH�YRWH�ZDV�WDNHQ�DW�D�GXO\�FDOOHG�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�RQ�BBBBBBBBBBBBB��
��BB��
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
&OHUN�RI�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
6($/�
�
�
�
�

�

Ê�
�
�



 

 

 
 

BETA GROUP, INC. 
One Springfield Street, Suite 4, Chicopee, MA 01013 
P: 413.331.5326 | F: 413.331.5327 | W: www.BETA-Inc.com 

February 14, 2025 
 
Mr. Frank Gervasio 
Assistant Town Administrator 
Town of Medfield 
 
Re:    Proposal for Professional Services ʹ Hinkley Pond Modular Structure  
 55-59 Green Street, Medfield, Massachusetts 
 
Dear Mr. Gervasio, 
 
BETA Group, Inc. (BETA) is pleased to provide this proposal to the Town of Medfield. ;͞Town͟ Žƌ�͞CLIENT͟Ϳ�ƚŽ�
provide engineering, design, and permitting services associated with the proposed modular building to be 
located at 55-59 Green Street, Medfield, Massachusetts.  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The PROJECT includes the installation of a modular structure (approximate dimensions of 48͛� ǆ� 6Ϭ͛Ϳ� ĂŶĚ�
associated limited site work at the Hinkley Pond property located at 51 Green Street in Medfield. The Town has 
provided plans for the proposed modular structure, record survey plan (PDF) for the project site and has 
provided some general guidance on desired location. The PROJECT will include the following tasks: preparing a 
conceptual site plan; preparing Issued for Permitting (IFP) site plans; and preparing Permitting Submittals. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
�E'/E��Z͛^�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƐŚĂůů�ďĞ�ĂƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘ 

TASK 1:  PREPARATION OF CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
Under this task, BETA will prepare a conceptual site plan depicting the location of the proposed modular 
structure. The proposed location of the garage building will be based on guidance from the Town of Medfield. 
Detailed design information will not be provided as part of this task, and it is assumed that the structure will be 
located outside of required setbacks and buffer zones to wetland resources and sited to avoid conflicts with 
existing utilities. Existing conditions will be based upon publicly available GIS, aerial imagery, or record survey 
information provided by the Town, if available, and any significant visible site features (e.g.  ledge outcroppings, 
tree lines, fences, etc.), which will be approximately located in the field by BETA within 25 feet of the proposed 
structure. The Town of Medfield will be responsible for the following tasks: 

x Confirmation that the proposed structure and associated site work are located outside wetland 
resource areas and buffer zones. 

x Confirmation that the proposed structure will not impact existing utilities and is located so that new 
utilities can be provided, to the extent necessary.  

x Confirmation that depicted property lines, ownership, easements, etc. are current and accurate. 
 
This task also includes one virtual meeting with the Town, if requested, to discuss the conceptual Site Plan. 

The deliverable will be a concept plan, provided on one plan sheet and will be submitted electronically. 

Frank

Frank
ATTACHMENT A



February 14, 2025 
Page 2 of 4 

  

 

TASK 2:  PREPARATION OF ISSUED FOR PERMITTING (IFP) SITE DESIGN PLANS. 
Following acceptance of the Conceptual Site Plan by the Town, BETA will prepare design plans, stamped by a 
professional engineer, for the proposed work in sufficient detail for the purposes of meeting Site Plan Review 
requirements, excluding any survey requirements. The site design plans will include the location of a new 
modular structure and modifications to the existing site, including but not limited to, minor grading, accessible 
parking designation, signage, tree removal, and fence relocation, as necessary, to accommodate the new 
structure. The plan set is anticipated to include a cover sheet, general notes, existing conditions plan, 
construction plan, and construction details (if required). 

The PROJECT is anticipated to disturb less than 1 acre and will not be subject to the Stormwater Management 
Bylaw; however, as the site is located within the Aquifer Protection Overlay District a stormwater Project Review 
Application will need to be prepared and filed with the Board of Health. It is anticipated that the PROJECT will 
not result in an increase in impervious area or require stormwater mitigation for the control of peak flow rates. 
A draft stormwater management summary will be prepared documenting compliance with Board of Health 
regulations and includes the design of one subsurface infiltration system (e.g. leaching basins) to capture and 
ƚƌĞĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ͞ĨŝƌƐƚ� ĨůƵƐŚ͟�ŽĨ�ƉƌĞĐŝƉŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ� ƌŽŽĨ� ĂƌĞĂ͘� /ƚ� ŝƐ� ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ��Wt�ǁŝůů� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶǇ�
required test pits and BETA will perform the soil evaluation. If additional stormwater management analysis or 
design is required for the control of peak flow rates or treatment beyond the area of the new roof it will be 
provided as an additional scope.  

The deliverables will be an IFP level project plan set depicting design features in accordance with the above and 
a draft stormwater management summary, which will be submitted electronically to the CLIENT for review and 
comment. 

TASK 3: PREPARATION OF PERMITTING SUBMITTALS  
 
Under this task, BETA will incorporate minor revisions based on CLIENT comments on IFP plans and prepare 
concurrent submittal packages to support an application for Site Plan Review with the Planning Board and a 
Project Review Application with the Board of Health. The submittal packages will include application form, 
zoning chart, narrative, IFP Plans, and Stormwater Management Summary. It is anticipated that the Town will 
be the Applicant and will be exempt from local filing fees.   

BETA will prepare for and attend up to two (2) Planning Board public hearings and up to two (2) Board of Health 
Public hearings. It is anticipated that all public hearings will be attended virtually. Minor revisions requested by 
the Boards during the initial hearings will be incorporated into a revised application package and be resubmitted.  
 
Additionally, this task will include the preparation, printing, and submittal of application documents to the 
Boards and Town of Medfield, if requested. The cost of preparation, materials, mailing, and other incidentals 
are included in the fee for this task.  

The deliverable will be up to two (2) application packages suitable for concurrent submittal to the Town of 
Medfield Planning Board and the Board of Health.  

SERVICES AND FEES NOT INCLUDED 
The following services are not included; if required, they will be provided as an additional service: 

ͻ Wetland resource area delineation 
ͻ Field survey 



February 14, 2025 
Page 3 of 4 

  

 

ͻ Permitting with the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, Town of Medfield 
Conservation Commission, Medfield Building Department, or any other Town, State, or Federal 
Department not included in the above Tasks. 

ͻ Stormwater management analysis and design, except as listed above 
ͻ Coordination with Historical Commission 
ͻ Application fees, filing fees, or any other fees required by the project. 
ͻ Preparation of legal notices or abutter notifications 
ͻ Structural or architectural design 
ͻ Lighting design or photometric analysis 
ͻ Performing subsurface explorations 
ͻ Geotechnical design or reports, except for soil evaluation for proposed stormwater infiltration system 
ͻ Utility design, coordination, or relocations 
ͻ Traffic or parking counts 
ͻ Preparation or recording of easement plans 
ͻ Hazardous materials sampling/testing 
ͻ Coordination with the Fire Department for emergency site access and circulation. 
ͻ Preparation of specifications and bid documents. 
ͻ Bidding assistance 
ͻ Construction phase services 

 
FEE ESTIMATE 

Payment for services as outlined above, based on a time and materials basis, shall be a Not to Exceed Fee of 
$17,900 without prior approval from the Town.   The following provides a breakdown of the project costs, which 
are not intended to be individual ceilings but rather a general representation of the estimated fee per task: 
 

Project Task  Cost 
 Task 1: Conceptual Site Plan 
 

$4,300  
 Task 2: Issued for Permitting Site Design Plans $5,800  
 Task 3: Permitting Submittals $7,800  
   

 Total      $17,900  
 
ACCEPTANCE 
If this proposal is acceptable, BETA will forward our standard agreement for execution. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact us at 781-255-1982. 

Very truly yours, 
BETA Group, Inc. 

 
Matthew J. Crowley, PE  
Associate                           
 
 





Southeastern Regional Services Group 

DPW SERVICES AWARDS for 3/1/2025 – 2/28/2026 

The Board of Selectmen of Medfield herby authorizes the award of contracts to the bidders listed below 
under the SERSG DPW Services IFB for a twelve-month period commencing 3/1/25.  This award is 
conditioned upon the receipt of the appropriate documents specified in the above IFB.  The SERSG 
Regional Administrator will collect these documents on behalf of the Select Board and present to them 
for final approval and signature. 

 

2023 Pricing – Renewed for 2025 

 

 

 

5. Superpave Hot Mix Asphalt- Zone B

PJ Keating
Superpave HMA 98.00$      per ton 4,000 tons 392,000.00        

Bitumen Tack Coat 6.00$        per gallon 2,000 gallons 12,000.00          
Hot Poured Rubrzd. Sealer 0.10$        per lin ft lin ft 0.10                   

Warm Mix Additive 2.00$        per gallon 4,000 gallons 8,000.00            
Cold Planing 2.47$        sq yd 30,000 sq yds 74,100.00          

Structure Adjustments 450.00$    each 50 each 22,500.00          
Structure Remodel 25.00$      each 10 each 250.00               
Structures Rebuilt 25.00$      per vertical ft 10 vert ft 250.00               

Hand Work 98.00$      per ton 100 tons 9,800.00            
Unclassified Excavation 25.00$      per cubic yd cub yds 25.00                 

Sawcutting 1.00$        per lin ft 5,000 lin ft 5,000.00            
Playgrounds/Parking Lots 98.00$      per ton 100 tons 9,800.00            

TOTAL BID PRICE 533,725.10$      

AllState

Rubber Chip Seal 6.25$        per sq yd 30,000 sq yds 187,500.00        
Leveling Course 225.00$    per ton 100 tons 22,500.00          

TOTAL BID PRICE 210,000.00        

7.  Rubber Chip Seal 

All State
Bonded Wearing Course 8.40$        per sq yd 15,000 sq yds 126,000.00        

Leveling Course 225.00$    per ton 100 tons 22,500.00          
Structure Adjustments 700.00$    per structure 10 structures 7,000.00            

Structure Remodels 700.00$    per structure 5 structures 3,500.00            
Structure Rebuilds 500.00$    per vert ft 5 vert ft 2,500.00            

TOTAL BID PRICE 161,500.00        

10. Bonded Wearing Course 



Southeastern Regional Services Group 

DPW SERVICES AWARDS for 3/1/2025 – 2/28/2026 

 

 

 

Indus
7,175.00$ per day 0 days -                     

11.30$      per gallon 5,000 gallons 56,500.00          
TOTAL BID PRICE 56,500.00          

11. Random Crack Sealing 

SteelCo Fence
Straight (galv metal posts) 32.14$      per foot 500 feet 16,070.00          

Straight (galv wooden posts) 34.14$      per foot
50

feet 1,707.00            
Straight ("rust" wooden) 36.14$      per foot 300 feet 10,842.00          

Curved (galvanized) 15.00$      per foot 100 feet 1,500.00            
Curved ("rust") 16.00$      per foot 100 feet 1,600.00            

End pieces (galvanized) 88.00$      each 4 pieces 352.00               
End pieces ("rust") 88.00$      each 4 pieces 352.00               

TOTAL BID PRICE 32,423.00          

16.  Installation of Steel Beam Guard Rails - Type SS



Southeastern Regional Services Group 

DPW SERVICES AWARDS for 3/1/2025 – 2/28/2026 

 

 

 

 

Tasco
812.00$    each
750.00$    each
688.00$    each
575.00$    each

650.00$    each
600.00$    each
550.00$    each
500.00$    each

812.00$    each
750.00$    each
688.00$    each
500.00$    each

0 structr ADJ 40 needed x 706.25$    28,250.00$             
structr RBLD 10 needed x 575.00$    5,750.00$               

structr REMDL 10 needed x 687.50$    6,875.00$               
for total bid of 40,875.00          

687.50$                                  

Structures Remodeled (1-5 structures per mobilization)
Structures Remodeled (6-10 structures per mobilization)

Structures Remodeled (11-20 structures per mobilization)
Structures Remodeled (20+ structures per mobilization)

575.00$                                  

706.25$                                  

17. Structure Work 

AVERAGE FOR REBUILD 
Structures Rebuilt (20+ structures per mobilization)

Structures Rebuilt (11-20 structures per mobilization)

Structures Rebuilt (1-5 structures per mobilization)

AVERAGE FOR ADJUSTMENT 
Structures Adjusted (20+ structures per mobilization)

Structures Adjusted (11-20 structures per mobilization)
Structures Adjusted(6-10 structures per mobilization)
Structures Adjusted (1-5 structures per mobilization)

AVERAGE FOR REMODEL 

Structures Rebuilt (6-10 structures per mobilization)

G. Lopes
On-site at Hwy Dept 487.00$    per hour 24 hours 11,688.00          

21. Tub Grinding 

Gibson Roofs
Snow Shoveling/Rooves 125.00$    per hour 200 hours 25,000.00          

27.  Snow Shoveling on Flat Rooves



Southeastern Regional Services Group 

DPW SERVICES AWARDS for 3/1/2025 – 2/28/2026 

 

LAL

SIDEWALKS
105.00$        10,000 sq yds 1,050,000.00     
125.00$        sq yds 125.00               
175.00$        3,000 sq yds 525,000.00        
90.00$          2,500 sq yds 225,000.00        

200.00$        40
panels 8,000.00            

CURBS/EDGING
10.00$          0 linear feet -                     
12.00$          0 linear feet -                     

1.00$            
0

inlets -                     

600.00$        
0

inlets -                     
500.00$        0 corners -                     
67.00$          0 linear feet -                     

67.00$          0 linear feet -                     
95.00$          0 linear feet -                     

67.50$          0 linear feet -                     
95.00$          300 linear feet 28,500.00          
60.00$          2,000 linear feet 120,000.00        

95.00$          500
linear feet 47,500.00          

75.00$          500 linear feet 37,500.00          
850.00$        0 slopes -                     
10.00$          0 linear feet -                     
35.00$          500 linear feet 17,500.00          

500.00$        0 corners -                     
500.00$        0 inlets -                     
40.00$          0 linear feet -                     
10.00$          0 linear feet -                     
75.00$          0 inlets -                     

DRAINAGE/STRUCTURES
50.00$          0 linear feet -                     
65.00$          0 linear feet -                     
65.00$          0 linear feet -                     

1,500.00$     0 structures -                     
550.00$        0 structures -                     
250.00$        0 vertical foot -                     

35.00$          100 cubic yards 3,500.00            
35.00$          0 cubic yards -                     

550.00$        0 cubic yards -                     
25.00$          0 cubic yards -                     
60.00$          0 cubic yards -                     
35.00$          0 cubic yards -                     
35.00$          0 cubic yards -                     
12.00$          0 square yards -                     
1.00$            500 linear feet 500.00               
1.00$            500 linear feet 500.00               

TOTAL BID PRICE 2,063,625.00     

Remove & Reset Granite Edging
Remove & Stack Granite Curb 

Remove & Stack Granite Curb Inlet

Furnish & Install 6" Pipe
Furnish & Install 8" Pipe

Furnish & Install 12" Pipe

Install Granite Curb Type VB - Straight Installation of bituminous concrete berms and 
curbs

Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type A - Corner
Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type SB - Straight 

Furnish & Install Granite Edging Type SB - 
Straight Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type VA4 - 
Curved 

Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type VA4 - 
Straight

Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type VB - Curved
Furnish & Install Granite Curb Type VB - Straight

Furnish & Install Granite Transition Curb for 
wheelchair ramps & driveways Type VB - Curved

Stump Excavation
Topsoil Excavated and stacked

Dense graded stone
Processed gravel, in place

Unclassified Excavation
Loam and Seed

MISC. ADDITIONAL WORK
Earth Excavation

Class A Rock Excavation

Furnish & Install Granite Curb Inlet Type A - 
Curved

Furnish & Install Granite Curb Inlet Type A - 
Straight

Sweeping/Cleanup following 
Sawcutting/Grinding

28. Sidewalk Construction and Setting of Curbs and Edging

Cement Concrete Sidewalk
Cement Concrete Sidewalk at Driveways

Cement Concrete Wheelchair Ramp
Hot Mix Asphalt Walk Surface & Driveways

Furnish & Install rubber ADA Handicap Panels, 
all color choices

Pavement Sawcutting/Grinding

Furnish & Install Granite Transition Curb for 
wheelchair ramps & driveways Type VB - 

Furnish & Install Transition Slope to Vertical
Remove & Reset Granite Curb - Type SB
Remove & Reset Granite Curb - Type VB

Remove & Reset Granite Curb Corner
Remove & Reset Granite Curb Inlet

Structures Change in Type/Converted 
Structures Adjusted 

Structures Rebuilt 



Southeastern Regional Services Group 

DPW SERVICES AWARDS for 3/1/2025 – 2/28/2026 

 Total - $ 3,135,336.10 

 

 

 

 

Signature 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Chair, Select Board              Date Signed 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member      Date Signed 

 

Member      Date Signed 

 























Select Board 
Eileen M. Murphy, Chair 
Gustave H. Murby, Clerk 

Osler L. Peterson, Member 
 

 
 

Kristine Trierweiler 
Town Administrator 

 
Frank Gervasio 

Assistant Town Administrator 
 

TOWN OF MEDFIELD 
Office of the Select Board 

Town House • 459 Main Street • Medfield, Massachusetts 02052-0315 

Phone: 508-906-3011 • www.town.medfield.net 

 

March 4, 2025 

 

Re: MBI Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment Program 

To whom it may concern, 

On behalf of the Town of Medfield we are happy to submit this letter in support of Comcast’s 
proposal to work with MBI to connect unserved areas.  The MBI Broadband Equity, Access, and 
Deployment Program will fund broadband to unserved areas.  We are pleased that Comcast plans 
to deploy qualifying broadband service to additional locations in Medfield. 

Comcast has been providing broadband service in nearby areas for many years and is well 
positioned to partner with the state on this project, bringing broadband access to additional 
households and businesses. 

Comcast has demonstrated its commitment to bringing broadband service to these unserved areas 
and we look forward to working with them on these efforts.  By accepting Comcast’s proposal, 
MBI will help bring us one step closer to our goal as well as moving forward the broader goal of 
deploying broadband infrastructure to unserved areas in Massachusetts. 

Thank you for your time and consideration of this proposal. If you have any further questions 
related to this letter, please feel free to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Eileen M. Murphy 

Chair, Medfield Select Board 



Massachusetts Broadband Institute Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment Program  
  
 
Goals  

1. Universal broadband access to all unserved and underserved Broadband 
Serviceable Locations, using reliable broadband technology with speeds of at least 100 
Mbps/20 Mbps.  
2. For Community Anchor Institutions, access to 1 Gig/1 Gig broadband service.  

  
 
BEAD application deadline:  Friday, February 28, 2025  

• MBI encourages applicants to include letters of support with their application.  
• All letters of support must be submitted by no later than Monday, March 10, 2025   

  
 
Letter of Support letter requirements  

1. Unconditional: not contingent on any specific actions, conditions, or requirements  
2. Issued by the Governing Body of the municipality or an appropriately elected or 
appointed municipal acting on behalf of the municipality.  

  
 
Municipalities may provide a letter of support to more than one provider.  
 
 
 
Program Overview  
 
The National Telecommunications and Information Administration’s (NTIA) BEAD Program 
provides $42.45 billion to expand high-speed internet access across the U.S. states and territories. 
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts has been allocated BEAD funding totaling $147 million to 
support expansion of broadband access to Unserved and Underserved Locations. The Executive 
Office of Economic Development (EOED), working in close collaboration with MBI, is managing 
the Commonwealth’s BEAD funding. EOED is the prime recipient and responsible for the 
delivery, reporting, and compliance related to the funding. The BEAD program in 
Massachusetts aims to provide universal broadband access and support digital equity 
initiatives. The goal is that the BEAD deployment program will achieve its 100% availability 
goal.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Key Acronyms  
BEAD = Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment  
BSL = Broadband Serviceable Location  
CAI = Community Anchor Institution  
MBI = Massachusetts Broadband Institute  
  
Key Definitions  
  
Broadband-Serviceable Location (BSL): A business or residential location at which fixed 
broadband Internet access service is, or can be, installed.    
  
Community Anchor Institution (CAI): An entity such as a school, library, health clinic, health 
center, hospital or other medical provider, public safety entity, institution of higher education, 
public housing organization, or community support organization that facilitates greater use of 
broadband service by vulnerable populations, including low-income individuals, unemployed 
individuals, and aged individuals.    
  
Reliable Broadband Service: Includes broadband service that is accessible to a location via fiber-
optic technology or cable modem/hybrid fiber-coaxial (HFC) technology   
  
Underserved:  lacks access to Reliable Broadband Service with speeds of at least 100 Mbps/20 
Mbps  
  
Unserved:  lacks access to Reliable Broadband Service with speeds of at least 25 Mbps/3 Mbps  
 





 
 
 
 
 

Informational  


















































































